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Mission
& Vision
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S&P Group is passionate to deliver quality coconut
food products with its natural flavour and
nutritional attributes in a convenient form to the
world whilst committed to achieve superior returns
and sharing the success with all involved. We want
to be the preferred global supplier of coconut food
products.
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A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the past
five years, as extracted from the published consolidated financial
statements or the prospectus of the Company dated 29 June 2017 is set

Five-Year Financial Summary
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TXEHINAEERBELFNEE BEE
RAEHME DREBEAMNKEA MG
BRIARBAAHPR T —EFANA-T

out below: NABNHREKRER
REVENUE PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Wz BRBLRER
(RM) (RM)
(BrmEe s ey (TGS
(B51) 18,357,943
89,795,056 18,238,315
78,343,631 79,989,035
65,181,204
10,186,793
] 8,904,163
4,526,599
(restated)
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
SEE CT-RF ST NE 2 +F ZB-N\E ST E —E-RF ST -NE SR ZB-N\E
PROFIT FORTHE YEAR NET ASSETS
£ %R BEERE
(RM)
(Bkamzs o) (BHREmEEE) sy
(m5|) 122,754,156
13,622,235 13,357,301
7,349,043 6,294,883 46,726,584 53,386,956
40,204,064
181,700
(restated)
(&351)
As at 31 December
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 R+-—A=+—8
SECNE SSCRE SF R S 0LE SR 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
ZT-WNF ZT-AF ZTF ZT—+tF =B-N\F
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-B=1+—HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-NE —E—+FE ZE-RKE ZZE—HFE —ZZT—NEF
RM RM RM RM RM
BERADRSE SRALSE BRALLSE BRAESE BRAELTH
Restated
=5
Results (Audited) %#& (RE®&)
Revenue U %= 79 ,989,035 96,231,559 89,795,056 78,343,631 65,181,204
Profit before taxation [ 4 A1 i F 8,904,163 4,526,599 18,238,315 18,357,943 10,186,793
Income tax expense  FT 15 Fi 8 52 (2,609,280) (4,337,899) (4,881,014) (4,735,708) (2,837,750)
Profit for the year F & F 6,294,883 188,700 13,357,301 13,622,235 7,349,043
Attributable to: AR AT B :
Owners of the iN/NESIE SN
Company 6,295,729 188,700 18,357,301 13,622,235 7,349,043




Five-Year Financial Summary (continuedq)
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As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\E —E—+tF ZE-RF —E—AF —E—-\mF
RM RM RM RM RM
BEREDSE BRALRSE BRARSE BSXALRSE BRXARSE
Restated
gl
Assets and liabilities EE R & &
(Audited) (RER)
Total assets BEMAE 141,812,902 133,468,975 73,995,833 78,713,244 67,268,450
Total liabilities BfERTE 19,058,746 17,992,376 20,608,877 31,986,660 27,064,386
Net assets BERE 122,754,156 115,476,599 53,386,956 46,726,584 40,204,064

*  The financial information for 2017 has been restated to take into account the effects of * —ZE—+ S BERNDETEY - At REEET B .
International Financial Reporting Standard 15. REEBEIGHRMTE -
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LISTING INFORMATION
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Board Lot
5,000 shares
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Room 6805-6806A, 68/F

International Commerce Centre

1 Austin Road West

Kowloon

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Public Bank Berhad

No. 49, 51 & 53, Jalan SS21/60
Damansara Utama

47400 Petaling Jaya

Selangor Darul Ehsan

Malaysia

Public Bank Berhad

A-1, A-2 and A-3

Sunway Giza Mall

Jalan PJU 5/14, Dataran Sunway
Kota Damansara, 47810 Petaling Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Malaysia

CIMB Bank Berhad
Level 13, Menara CIMB
Jalan Stesen Sentral 2
Kuala Lumpur Sentral
50470 Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia

A s LIRS
6. | s&p International Holding Limited
iR N Annu_aI!RtT

= sIREiNL N

Ik

Corporate Information (continued)
NalE e

E R
B4
2 F
e
BT
AT Ee %
KAKE
22122201-2203 %

B 3 % BLED

KPMG PLT, % 7F & &t Al
Level 10, KPMG Tower

8, First Avenue, Bandar Utama
47800 Petaling Jaya

Selangor Darul Ehsan
Malaysia

ERE[

BEH (FB)ERAR
Eb
hEE
AT @B
BINE P ES
6812 6805-6806A =

FEAREBIT
BRAEE KRBT

No. 49, 51 & 53, Jalan SS21/60
Damansara Utama

47400 Petaling Jaya

Selangor Darul Ehsan

Malaysia

BRER KRBT
A-1,A-2and A-3

Sunway Giza Mall

Jalan PJU 5/14, Dataran Sunway

Kota Damansara, 47810 Petaling Jaya

Selangor Darul Ehsan
Malaysia

BB R 1T

Level 13, Menara CIMB
Jalan Stesen Sentral 2
Kuala Lumpur Sentral
50470 Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia



MEEBEFR A A 7
—EB-N\FEH

Corporate Structure
NolNiE

Jurisdiction of Incorporation: S&P Iptern_atl_onal

MM AR ¢ Holding Limited
MEKERREAT

Cayman Islands

RS

British Virgin Islands

RERZHS

Hong Kong

=i

Malaysia

FERFA D

Singapore

eIk

Thailand
EE

SP Coco Limited

S&P Food Pte Ltd
S&P (Hong Kong) Limited (previously known as/ A M. Ace (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Stancodex Pte Ltd)

Shifu Ingredients Sdn Bhd Edaran Bermutu Sdn Bhd Radiant Span Sdn Bhd Rasa Mulia Sdn Bhd
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Annual Report 2018

FREE

Dear Valued Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (“Directors”) of S&P International
Holding Limited (“Company” or “S&P International”), it is my pleasure
to present to you the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “S&P Group” or “Group”) for the financial year ended 31
December 2018 (“FY2018").

The Group is engaged principally in manufacturing and distribution of
coconut-based food products. Coconut products in both powder and
milk form, are traditionally consumed as an ingredient for preparation of
curry-based food, pastry, biscuits and desserts, particularly in the Asian
countries. In some countries, coconut milk is consumed as a key
component of people’s dietary habits. Lately, coconut-based beverage
has become increasingly popular over traditional carbonated beverages.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW AND BUSINESS
OUTLOOK

Consumption of coconut based food products is projected to keep
expanding in the foreseeable future arising from increasing recognition of
the nutritional benefits of coconut and related food products in most
parts of the world.

A substantial part of the total global coconut production comes from the
Asia Pacific region. In response to the growing potential of the crop,
governments in the region (including Malaysia) have initiated programs
and provided various incentives to encourage coconut planting and
downstream processing activities. These industry developments augur
well for the continuing growth and expansion of the Group’s operations.

GROUP BUSINESS DIRECTION

We are committed to produce coconut products of the highest quality
and continuously improve our work processes so as to be sensitive to
the needs of our customers. In this regard, the management team places
significant emphasis on research and development (“R&D”) efforts as
well as product innovation to cater to evolving consumer preferences.

8 S&P International Holding Limited

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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In tandem with the positive outlook of the industry, S&P Group continues
to execute its strategy aimed at enhancing capacity, capability and
efficiency of its supply chain and distribution channel and widening its
range of products. As part of the Group’s long-term growth strategy to
respond to the fast-growing domestic and export market, the Company
undertook a plant upgrading and expansion project at its Perak Plant
which is expected to be completed in the second half of 2019. In addition
to coconut cream powder (CCP), the expanded plant would produce
coconut milk and coconut water.

The Group is also committed to widen its distribution channels in fast
rising consumption and under-represented countries progressively in the
coming years. Presently, our products are exported to more than 40
countries worldwide. We believe that the export market will continue to
be the main source of the Group’s revenue growth.

As a responsible corporate citizen, we are committed to create value for
the communities in which we operate in a sustainable and environmentally
friendly manner. In this regard, we utilize renewable energy resources,
including deployment of a biomass boiler (to replace fossil fuels), recycling
and reuse of by-products.

In short, we believe, with the benefit of the plant upgrade and expansion,
enhanced supply chain arrangement and management processes, and
focused marketing strategies developed, the Group is well placed to
grow and take advantage of the positive industry outlook in the
foreseeable future.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FY2018 has been anything but a challenging year. The management
team was pre-occupied very much by focused attention on two key
areas. Firstly, the management of effects arising from unforeseen sudden
depressed demand for coconut food products in certain Middle Eastern
countries. This sudden drop in demand was caused by repatriation of a
huge number of foreign labourers triggered by a change in labour
regulations by Governments of these countries. Corrective actions to
mitigate the impact of the depressed demand have been initiated and is
now beginning to take effect. Next, the management team was also
actively engaged in the Perak plant upgrading and expansion project. To
manage the upgrading and expansion project and in preparation for
commissioning of the upgraded plant, appropriate personnel have been
brought on board.
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Annual Re_por_t 2018

The Group’s revenue was approximately RM80.0 million for FY2018,
representing a decrease of approximately 16.9%, or RM16.2 million,
when compared with that for FY2017 of approximately RM96.2 million (as
restated). The decrease in sales was largely attributed to a drop in sales
volume of coconut related products caused by the unforeseen event as
said above.

The Group’s cost of sales decreased by approximately 16.7%, or
RM10.8 million, from approximately RM65.0 million for FY2017 to
approximately RM54.2 million for FY2018, in tandem with the decrease in
the sales volume and a drop in the price of the Group’s major raw
materials, namely coconuts and white kernel. However, total gross profit
for FY2018 decreased by approximately 17.3%, or RM5.4 million when
compared with that for FY2017 in tandem with the decrease in revenue
and the impact of additional overheads incurred in relation to
implementation of the plant upgrade and expansion project.

Further explanation of our Group’s financial performance of FY2018 is
provided in the 'Management Discussion and Analysis’ section of this
annual report.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of my fellow Directors, | would thank all our staff in S&P Group,
for their devotion and faithful commitment, for the Group’s achievements
in 2018, despite the abovesaid challenges.

| would also like to extend my gratitude to our valued customers,
business associates and government bodies for their steadfast support.
To our shareholders, we thank you for your confidence in S&P
International. We shall commit ourselves to create sustainable
shareholder value and solid financial performance in the years ahead.
Last but not least, my heartfelt appreciation also goes to my fellow
Directors for their guidance, advice and insight in steering the Group
forward.

Mr. Tang Koon Fook
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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Profile of Directors and
Senior Management

SEREHEREM[N

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Tang Koon Fook (“Mr. Tang”), aged 56, was appointed as our
Director on 10 November 2016 and became our Chairman and Executive
Director on 22 March 2017. He is also the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee as well as a member of the Remuneration Committee, and a
director of various subsidiaries of our Company. He is primarily
responsible for the overall management, strategic planning and the day-
to-day business operations and financial management of our Group since
its establishment.

Mr. Tang has more than 20 years of experience in the food industry.
Mr. Tang joined Carrier (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd., an air-conditioning
company, as a credit assistant in January 1986 and last served as
a credit officer in January 1990, where he was responsible for credit
control. From November 1991 to January 1995, he was the accountant
and credit controller of Jasa Kita Trading Sdn. Berhad (a subsidiary of
Jasa Kita Berhad), an investment holding company and was listed on the
stock exchange of Kuala Lumpur (stock code: 8648), where he was
responsible for credit control and account management. From June 1995
to December 1997, Mr. Tang was the chief executive officer of Angkatan
Hebat Sdn. Bhd., a fleet management service provider in Malaysia, where
he was responsible for the overall management. From January 1998 to
December 2007, Mr. Tang worked in S&P Food Industries (M) Sdn. Bhd.
(“S&P Food Industries”), the business predecessor of our Group, as the
general manager and managing director, where he was in charge of the
food manufacturing operations.

Mr. Tang received a master’s degree of business administration (banking
and finance) from the University of Hull, England in July 1991. He is the
sole director of TYJ Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

MANAGING DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Mr. Lee Sieng Poon (“Mr. Lee”), aged 59, was appointed as our
Director on 10 November 2016 and became our Managing Director and
Executive Director on 22 March 2017. He is also the Chairman of the
Sanctions Oversight Committee and a director of various subsidiaries of
our Company. He is primarily responsible for the overall management,
sales and marketing, research and development, day-to-day
management of the sales and marketing and maintenance of customer
relationship of our Group since its establishment.
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Profile of Directors and
Senior Management (continued)
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Mr. Lee has over 35 years of experience in the food industry. From
September 1984 to October 1987, Mr. Lee was the financial executive of
S&P Food Industries, where he was responsible for preparation of the
management accounts, planning, sourcing and liaison with the suppliers.
From October 1992 to January 2008, he was the executive director of
S&P Food Industries, where he was responsible for the sales and
marketing and factory operations.

Mr. Lee studied in Sandford Park High School, Ireland until 1978. He is
the sole director of Trinity Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of
the Company.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yap Boon Teong (“Mr. Yap”), aged 52, was appointed as our
Executive Director on 22 March 2017. Mr. Yap is a director of S&P
Industries Sdn. Bhd. (“S&P Industries”) and also the general manager of
the plant and technical division of Stancodex Sdn. Bhd., both being the
Company’s key operating subsidiaries. He is primarily responsible for the
implementation of new projects and provides technical support to factory
operations of our Group.

Mr. Yap has over 25 years of experience in the food industry. From
January 1996 to March 1998, Mr. Yap last served as the production
manager of Dan Kaffe (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd., a coffee manufacturer,
where he was responsible for overall production. From April 1998 to
August 1998, Mr. Yap worked as the factory manager of S&P Food
Industries, where he was responsible for overseeing the production and
packing department, quality assurance department, purchasing and
warehouse department and maintenance department.

Mr. Yap received a bachelor of technology (with honours) in the field of
food technology from the Universiti Sains Malaysia in August 1991.

Ms. Wong Yuen Lee (“Ms. Wong”), aged 44, was appointed as our
Executive Director on 22 March 2017. Ms. Wong is also a member of the
Sanctions Oversight Committee. Ms. Wong is a director of S&P
Industries, a key operating subsidiary of the Company. She joined S&P
Industries on 1 January 2008 as an executive secretary and was
promoted as the human resources manager in January 2011. She has
been the general operations manager of S&P Industries since March
2015. She is responsible for human resources and information
technology matters and supervising the compliance department.
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Ms. Wong has over 15 years of experience in the food industry. Prior to
joining our Group, Ms. Wong worked as the retail operations executive of
Zitron Enterprise (M) Sdn. Bhd., a mobile phone distributor, from
November 1999 to July 2004, where she was responsible for retail
operations and customer service. From December 2004 to December
2007, Ms. Wong was an executive secretary of S&P Food Industries,
responsible for secretarial and administrative work.

Ms. Wong received a bachelor of arts degree from the Universiti Putra
Malaysia in July 1998.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony (&) (“Mr. Fung’), aged 50, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director on 8 June 2017.
Mr. Fung is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee. He is responsible
for providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Fung has extensive experience in accounting and corporate finance.
From August 1992 to September 1999, he successively served as a staff
accountant, semi senior accountant, senior accountant and manager in
the Hong Kong offices of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, where he was
mainly responsible for audit planning and control. From October 1999 to
August 2007, Mr. Fung was a director of Winsmart Consultants Limited (54
B EEERI AR AT, a financial consulting company, where he was
responsible for advising the clients on corporate finance and investor
relations related matters. From January 2008 to August 2010, Mr. Fung
was the vice president of NagaCorp Limited (% F4ZiERAR), a
licensed casino listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3918), where
he was responsible for the development of investor relations procedures,
policies and strategies for the company and liaison with investors as well
as securities analysts. From January 2011 to July 2014, Mr. Fung was
the chief financial officer and company secretary of Zall Development
(Cayman) Holding Co., Ltd. (RRZEEGFIS)IERAR A7) (how known
as Zall Group Ltd. (EREEKMD AR A7), a property developer listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(stock code: 2098), where he was responsible for financial and
compliance matters. From July 2014 to April 2017, Mr. Fung was the
chief financial officer and company secretary of Kong Sun Holdings
Limited (T IL3ZA& AR A7), a solar power plants investor and operator
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0295), where he was
responsible for overall financial operation, company secretarial matters
and investor relations. From September 2014 to April 2017, Mr. Fung
was an independent supervisor of Chery HuiYin Motor Finance Service
Co., Ltd. (FIHHIE B LB MDAER A F]), an automobile finance joint
venture, where he was responsible for monitoring the company’s
operations as a member of the board of supervisors.
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Mr. Fung has been an independent non-executive director of FY Financial
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (EREVEEE(RYI)BBRAF), a financial services
company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8452), since
April 2017, responsible for supervising and providing independent advice
to the board of directors. Since May 2017, Mr. Fung has been the chief
financial officer of Beijing Enterprises Urban Resources Group Co., Ltd. (1t
=i TSR EE AR A F), responsible for the overall financial and
investor relations matters.

Mr. Fung was admitted as a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom (“UK”) and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in October 2001 and
September 2005, respectively. Mr. Fung received his bachelor’s degree
in accountancy from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in October 1992.

Mr. Chong Yew Hoong (“Mr. Chong”), aged 64, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 8 June 2017. Mr. Chong is also
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. He is responsible
for providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Chong served as the partner of the advisory services division and the
project consultant of Ernst and Young Vietnam Limited from October
2007 to December 2010 and from January 2011 to June 2011,
respectively. From September 2011 to July 2014, he served as a
member of the Council of Members and a member of Council of Risk
Management Committee of Hong Leong Bank Vietnam Limited.

Mr. Chong has been a director of Tom Chong Business Advisory
Services Sdn. Bhd., a company principally engaged in the provision of
corporate restructuring, financial planning and executive training services,
since August 2011 and the director of Delta 5 Group Sdn. Bhd., a
company principally engaged in the provision of enterprise resource
planning implementation and consulting services, since May 2014. He
has also been a director of Finsoft Consulting Sdn. Bhd., a company
principally engaged in the provision of enterprise resource planning
software and services, since January 2017.

Mr. Chong was admitted as a certified public accountant of the Malaysia
Association of Certified Public Accountants in April 1982 and a member
of Malaysia Institute of Accountants in May 1985. Mr. Chong took a joint
examination organised by the University of Cambridge, in collaboration
with the University of Malaya, and obtained a Higher School Certificate,
incorporating a General Certificate of Education, in December 1975.
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Mr. Ng Hock Boon (“Mr. Ng”), aged 57, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 8 June 2017. Mr. Ng is also a
Member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. He is responsible for providing
independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Ng has over 21 years of experience in company secretarial services.
From October 1993 to August 1996, he worked as an assistant manager
of corporate planning of Arab-Malaysian Merchant Bank Berhad, where
he assisted in the provision of group corporate planning. From May 1998
to June 1999, Mr. Ng was the assistant general manager of Tru-Mix
Concrete Sdn. Bhd., a concrete manufacturer, where he was responsible
for assisting the general manager. From May 2001 to May 2005, Mr. Ng
was the corporate affairs and company secretary of Shanghai Chong Kee
Construction Sdn. Bhd., a company which principally engages in interior
design and fitout works. From April 2005 to July 2011, he was the
personal assistant to the managing director of Shanghai Chong Kee
Furniture and Construction Private Limited.

Mr. Ng completed a company secretarial course of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in England in February 1985.
Mr. Ng was re-elected as an Associate of The Malaysian Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in January 2017. He received a
diploma in commerce (business management) from Tunku Abdul Rahman
College in Malaysia in June 1985 and a master’s degree of business
administration from The Cranfield Institute of Technology in England in
June 1993.
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Eugene Kang Hong Ngee (‘Mr. Kang”), aged 47, has been our
Chief Financial Officer since 1 May 2018 and is primarily responsible for
finance, accounting and taxation matters of the Group.

Mr. Kang has accumulated over 20 years of experience in financial audit,
corporate finance and commercial finance and accounting. He started his
career in 1995 as an audit associate in Price Waterhouse, Malaysia
before progressing to the position of Assistant Manager in 2000.
Subsequently, he joined Alliance Merchant Bank Berhad in 2000 and
HwangDBS Investment Bank Berhad in 2003, and worked in their
respective corporate finance departments. During that period, he was
involved in various projects including initial public offerings, equity fund
raising and mergers and acquisitions. In 2008, Mr. Kang joined
Rubberflex Sdn Bhd, a Malaysian rubber-based product manufacturer
and exporter, as its director and chief financial officer, where he was
responsible for finance, accounting, taxation and corporate matters.

Mr. Kang completed his examinations of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (“ACCA”) in 1995, and was admitted as an
Associate in 1998, and subsequently became a fellow of the ACCA in
2003. He is also a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

R&D GENERAL MANAGER

Ms. Chew Mun Tho (“Ms. Chew”), aged 50, has been our research
and development (R&D) general manager since 1 March 2016 and is
primarily responsible for the management of our R&D and providing
technical support to our customers.

Ms. Chew has over 11 years of experience in the food industry. From
September 1994 to August 2014, Ms. Chew worked as a R&D manager
of Cadbury Confectionery Malaysia Sdn. Bhd., a company which
produces snack foods, where she was responsible for the overall
management of R&D.

Ms. Chew received a bachelor of technology degree from the University
of Science in Malaysia in August 1992.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the second Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report
(the “Report”) of S&P International Holding Limited (“S&P” or the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group” or “We”). This
report addresses a range of material impacts on the Group, outlining our
sustainability approaches and disclosing our ESG performances during
the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 (the “Reporting
Period”).

Unless otherwise stated, this Report mainly focuses on our core
businesses in the manufacturing and distribution of coconut cream
powder, low fat desiccated coconut, coconut milk and other related
products in Malaysia, i.e. the headquarters (the “HQ”) and our plant in
Perak (the “Perak Plant”), which account for the majority of our total
revenue during the Reporting Period.

In preparation of this Report, we have adhered to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG Guide”) set out in
Appendix 27 issued by the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
to disclose our sustainability issues in material aspects during the
Reporting Period. It is recommended to read this Report in conjunction
with the “Corporate Governance Report” included in this Annual Report,
regarding the Corporate Governance measures.

We treasure every valuable opinion of our stakeholders. If you have any
opinions about this report and our sustainability performances, please do
not hesitate to send your feedback to us at info@spfood.com
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ABOUT S&P

Being one of the global major brands among the coconut cream powder
industry, we are committed to producing the highest quality products.
We are passionate to deliver quality coconut food products with their
natural flavour and nutritional attributes being presented in a convenient
form to the world whilst being committed to achieve superior results and
share the success with all parties involved.

Core Values:

Teamwork

Elcerg

Loyalty, Trust Strivi ng for

and Respect

- 5 ® Excellence

RUE L :
BR A

Continuous
Learning

and Innovation

TEEE
R A%

Dedicated to Quality:

o World-class technology for the freshest taste

o Systematic manufacturing processes

° Technological investments

o Uncompromising quality control

In order to fulfil the diverse needs and requirements of our customers in
different market sectors, we offer our customers with a variety of
products under our different brands, namely “Santan”, “Cocos” and “Rasa

Enak”. Through continuous innovation and refinement, it assists us to
maintain steady and excellence product quality.

Enwronmental Social and
Governance Report (continued)
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During the Reporting Period, we are engaged in manufacturing and
distribution food products, such as coconut cream powder, low fat
desiccated coconut, non-diary creamer, rice dumplings (ketupat) and
toasted coconut paste (kerisik), etc. Our footprints cover more than 40
countries, to provide our products to OEM customers, distributors,
industrial customers, trading companies and wholesaler customers all
over the world.

North
. America

=M

America

EEY

During the manufacturing process of coconut powder, we extract natural
coconut milk from selected fresh coconuts by spray drying. This way not
only secures the natural taste of coconut cream in an instant and
convenient form, but also provides a versatile and easy to store product
for our customers. Therefore, our coconut cream powder become our
best-selling products, and is widely used as a cooking ingredient in
South-east Asian and Middle Eastern cuisines.
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Sustainability Approach

Sustainability is an integral part of our growth and development,
meanwhile, it is deeply embedded in our daily operation. During the
Reporting Period, our unwavering commitment to investment in people
together with the coordinated strategy of brand building has helped
maintained our market leader position in the food and beverage industry
and paved the way towards achieving the long-term success of the
Group. We are committed to creating value and enriching our effort on
the environment and society in which we operate through the following 5
sustainability values.
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SUTAINABILITY VALUES
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S Supply Chain Management & fESEEE

LA Community Investment i B%&

Our sustainable growth and success lie in our commitment and
perseverance in constantly providing quality food and service to our
customers. We pursue to understand and satisfy our customers’ needs
through our daily operation.

Sustainability governance

We are committed to continually improving our sustainability governance
practice.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the oversight of the Group’s risk
management activities. Through its Audit Committee, which is further
supported by three parties, Compliance Department, Risk Management
Committee and internal audit, it supervises the risk management of the
entire Group.

All material risks, which is inclusion of ESG-related risks, are addressed
by Risk Management Committee. Identified risks are prioritized and
further mitigation actions will be taken to address those issues with
higher risks. The Compliance Department will then be responsible for
monitoring the implementation of mitigation measures.
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Thus, the Environmental Regulatory compliance Monitoring Committee
(ERCMC), which is chaired by an Executive Director, has been set up and
is responsible for providing further assistance on establishing
environmental-related policy and monitoring work. The ERCMC is
supported by the Environmental Performance Monitoring Committee
(EPMC). The EPMC reports to the ERCMC on a regular basis and enforce
Group sustainability policy and activities.

Stakeholder engagement

We believe that understanding the views of our stakeholders lays a solid
foundation to the long-term growth and success of the Group. We have
developed multiple channels to a broad spectrum of stakeholders in
order to provide them with the opportunity to express their views on our
sustainability performance and future strategies.

To reinforce mutual trust and respect, we are committed to maintaining
enduring communication channels, both formally and informally, with
stakeholders to better shape our business strategies in order to respond
to their needs and expectations, anticipate risks and strengthen key
relationships.

Employees, customers, business partners, shareholders, suppliers,
government and the community are our key stakeholders. To solicit
feedback from our key stakeholder groups, we conducted an online and
paper survey during the Reporting Period. In accordance with the survey,
we have defined the priority aspects with the largest impact on our
business and stakeholder businesses through the materiality assessment.

We mapped the results of our materiality assessment onto a matrix to
reflect the relative importance and impact of the issues to our
stakeholders and our business. We strive to review these issues
continuously in order to improve our sustainability performance. The
materiality matrix also serves as an underlying basis for the structure of
this Report.
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Our Material issues

Employee-related
issues

EEMRERE

Environmental
Protection and
Green Operation

BRRRBREEE

Operating Practices

EEEH

FrHEBREBHS @

FESE
Product and Service Community
Responsibility Contribution
EmkRESE HE &R

1. Diversification and
Anti-discriminatory
b RRER

2. Turnover Rate

ML E

3. Occupational Safety
and Health
BEZTHEER

4. Training and
Development

B & % R

5. Child and Forced
labour
FETREHET

6. Employment
Relationship/
Communication

ERBAR ERE

7. Employee Benefits/
Recreation

EEREMN, %

8. Sewage Disposal

75 KRR

9. Greenhouse Gas
Emissions
B

10. Air Emissions

& RBE R

11. Treatment of Hazardous

and Non-Hazardous

Wastes

EEREEEEDNN

BRI

12. Energy and Water

Conservation

£ BE B K

. Natural Resources
RAREIR
14. Supplier Environmental

and Social Assessment
HEBRERE ST H

15. Carbon Trading System

R 58 %

16. Supplier Selection
Process

HEREERF

17. Anti-Fraud and
Corruption
REFRRES

18. Business Continuity
Plan

X BT S

19. Product Quality 24. Participation in

ERE=E Volunteer Activities
2MEREES
20. Complaints Handling
% 5 i 1 25. Donations
BR
21. Intellectual Property
HMBERE
22. Customer Privacy
BERRL
283. Research and
Development
e
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PRODUCT QUALITY AND SAFETY

Quality Control

In S&P, we treat high food quality and safety as the backbone of the
customer journey and a fundamental pre-requisite in achieving customer
satisfaction. An in-house chemical and microbiological testing laboratory
have been set up to conduct quality checking on the incoming material in
accordance with different certification systems. These testing processes
are critical in identifying any incoming materials that do not meet our
quality standards. Our production system is fully automated and centrally
monitored, which allows us to deliver high quality products to our
customers consistently.

The Group has been accredited with certifications and standards related
to quality management and food safety. They include Hazard Analysis
and Critical Control Point (HACCP), ISO 22000:2005 food safety
management, MS 1480:2007 Malaysian Food Safety Standard and ISO
9001:2008 Quality management. Moreover, our products have been
certified HALAL and KOSHER, allowing us to sell our products to
customers in different ethnic communities. These certifications provide
our customers confident in our quality and standard upon consumption.

Apart from the above-mentioned certifications, the information relating to
the material licences, permits and certificates required in conducting our
business during the Reporting Period are as follow:

o Manufacturing license (Issued by Ministry of International Trade and
Industry of Malaysia)

o Food premises license (Issued by Ministry of Health of Malaysia)

o Permit of scheduled controlled goods (Issued by Ministry of
Domestic Trade, Co-operatives and Consumerism)

o Industry and trading licence (Ilssued by Teluk Intan Municipal
Council & Petaling Jaya Municipal Council)

o Business licence (Issued by Petaling Jaya Municipal Council & Batu

Pahat Municipal Council)

° Food establishment licence (Ilssued by Petaling Jaya Municipal
Council)

EERZE
274l
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LEARR(BRREMR)
A AR R R E AR BB R I E

Pre-production phase (packaging and raw materials)
All incoming raw materials are gone through our quality assessment

before use. Coconuts and white kernels are checked in respect of their & (- M FREAHAMm S KM= B
weight, acidity level, physical appearance and odour. For other raw ZET&E = B E - 4N LRI o ?jﬁﬁ{mﬁﬂﬁﬁ

ingredients, they are checked based on their certificates or labels =T @ HFSBBEHEFEHNO(LEBESE -2
prepared by the suppliers to ensure that they match with the description 2 #4718 d - R EMITIBE S — 5 I
of goods ordered, physical condition, moisture content and E©REEWERRL  SKERREBH o
manufacturing date. For food packaging materials, swab tests and HERBEMEmMS B2 ETH FH
microbiological analysis will be conducted. If any products are found to B R AW D MR TR E R FERM
be problematic, they would be managed separately. B Ble P UAREE-

SERR(FEER)

Production phase (intermediate products)

Mixing of e Sampling tests are carried out to assess the acidity levels

Intermediate
Products

B PEER

Pasteurisation
Stage

Eiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁx

Sieving of
Semi-finished
Products

¥R mER D

by chemical analysis, in order to monitor the consistency and
quality of our products.

ETLESMRBREMSAR  UERRMERN —BMEREE -

The spray dryer operator monitors the pasteurisation
temperature regularly.

ERRRMRIFEEHEEE T EESRE

Products are scanned by the metal detector to ensure the
powder does not contaminate of any metal fragments.

ERBASBRARGE  UBRRBRTSZENEBHEITHR
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Post-production phase (finished products)

For finished products, a final comprehensive test will be conducted by
our Quality Control Department. Random sampling checks and physico-
chemical analysis are carried out on various aspects, including acidity
and moisture levels, density, solubility, carbohydrate, protein and fat
content, and presence of ash. A final microbiological test is also carried
out to examine any presence of bacteria and pathogens, such as E.coli,
coliform, salmonella, yeast and mould.

Food packaging plays a vital role in preserving food throughout the
distribution chain. For the packaging of our finished products, we use
different kinds of packaging materials, including PE bag, Woven Bag,
Kraft Paper, Carton Box and Aluminium Foil. We have approximately 230
types of packaging materials purchased from suppliers with good
credentials. In order to ensure that the packaging materials are readily
available and maintained at an ideal level, we keep track on all incoming
and outgoing inventories.

—EB-N\FEH
l:l ()
SERER(EKM)

LB MM E - EEEG EARETRR

2R - I % 877 1T RE AR
ERBEDNT BREERESKE TE-

BEE RKLEYW EQEEREREE
UERERE - ARITEETREMEDR
A REEEGTEANABER  KBE -
PPAKR BSRRBESEHERMNKERE-

EmBPEREBEIHEBEFERTFRERA
EHAEZ -AEAMEKBOEERS %HF?
ERATREENBEME  BREMK &
BR - FRA - BRI BMEA R
BEMHEEERBLA20EREME - S
FEEMHERERRERANERE &
MEeRBAEFENRARRKE

Unit 2018 2017
£t —E-N\F —T+%F
Total Packing Materials used for Finished Products tonnes 733.10
BURK M T B EE M R 4R 8L NI
Metal tonnes 202.10
Gl NI
Paper tonnes 500.60
Aok X E
Plastic tonnes
R N 30.40
Others' tonnes
HAh' N
Total Packing Materials used for Finished Products tonnes/tonne of 0.12
Production Unit
K mAARREMEEH AWE WA E B L
1 Others mean Woven Bag used in reporting period and woven and plastic bag used in 1 HERREHRERNREIENR T+ &
2017. ERANRRERBHE:

=W\

T
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ENVIRONMENT

Under the trend of low-carbon and energy-saving development, the
Group is not aware of any non-compliance with relevant national laws
and regulations related to environmental protection in Malaysia, including
Environmental Quality (Industrial Effluent) Regulations, Environmental
Quiality (Clean Air) Regulations & Environmental Quality Act.

We incorporate the energy conservation and low-carbon concept into
every aspect of our operation and continue to optimize use of resources.
Facing the evolvement of regulatory requirement and the rising
expectation of stakeholders on environmental issues, we had established
a systematic and quantitative approach to manage our environmental
emissions and resources.

We have appointed an independent registered energy service company
to conduct an Energy Audit during the Reporting Period. In order to
secure the improvement of energy management for the good energy
saving investment, six energy conservation measures have been
identified. They include:

(1) Air leakage management on the Compressor;

(2)  Maintenance and comprehensive cleaning on the Pump;

(8)  Improvement on Sustainable Energy Management System;

(4)  Comprehensive maintenance on the Chiller;

(5)  Excess air improvement on the Boiler; and

(6) Resized and retrofit to High Efficiency Motor

All of these measures will be implemented by stages. We believe we will
be able to reduce energy consumption by around 10% after implementing

these energy conservation measures.

During the Reporting Period, we purchased water from municipal water
supply and faced no difficulties in sourcing water.

tional 'Holding Limited
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The following table shows the environmental KPI of the Group during the
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reporting Period: AR -
Unit
B
Air Emission
REHHE
Nitrogen Oxide (NO) tonnes
AEEY(NO) N
Sulphur Oxide (SO) tonnes
WAt ¥1(SO,) N
Particulate Matter (PM) tonnes
BF AL (PM) N
GHG Emissions
BERBERE

Total GHG Emissions

RERBYMES
Gross GHG Emissions (Scope 1)
HMRERBHWE (SE1)
GHG Emissions (Scope 2)
BERBHEME (S8E2)
GHG Emissions (Biogenic)
BERBYERE (EWIR)

Total GHG Emissions Intensity

RERBHREERE

Energy’
BEIR?
Total Energy Consumption
REREEES
Purchased Electricity
EE
Diesel
ey
Biomass
EME

Energy Consumption Intensity

EERBEREE

2 The methodology in calculating the energy consumption generated from biomass was 2
revised during the Reporting Period. Therefore, the figure in year 2017 is revised to
show the relevant comparative figure.

tonnes of COe
NWE—E R EE
tonnes of COe
N —ERES
tonnes of COe
N —EIREE
tonnes of CO.e
N ECRE &
tonnes of CO,e/
tonne of Production Unit
NE - RES
NWEHEEEN

MWh

JK B BF

MWh

JK LB

MWh

JKELBF

MWh

JK BB

MWh/tonne of
Production Unit

JKFUBE AW A E B i

MEEBEFR A A
—EB-N\FEH
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TRINTRBEHEAKRENRERRE

2018 2017
2N\ ZZ2—+tF

7.92

1.06

18.89

8,838.95 11,727.29
296.56 394.43
1,685.93 1,905.33
6,856.46 9,427.53
1.93 1.93
il tvass 30,300.86
2,275.20 2,571.30
1,236.51 1,627.27
Iy CERgE 26,202.29
4.87 4.98

REEME FEEYERBEROTAES
Bl -Hit —F-tFRBANLBREFELE
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Unit 2018 2017
i —E-\F —Z—£F
Water
¥
Total Water Consumption m? 94,803.00 98,567.00
BFEKE AVAD I/ N
Water Consumption Intensity m®/tonne of 20.75 16.19
KERERE Production Unit
B VN | -3k vk
Hazardous Waste
BEEBEY
SW 409 tonnes 0.52
SW 409 NI
Hazardous Waste Intensity kg/tonne of 0.08
EEBENRE Production Unit
FRAMEEEBEN
Non-Hazardous Waste®
BEBEY®
Total Non-Hazardous Waste tonnes 1,130.30
EEBEREDES N
Plastic tonnes 35.15
R N
Paper tonnes 24.44
R ok N
Rejected coconut tonnes 1,070.71
NE S F N
Other General Waste* tonnes N/A
Hih— R EED* N TiE A
Non-Hazardous Waste Intensity tonne/tonne of 0.19
BEBEZEVEE Production Unit
ANWE,NWE A EE BT
3 Regarding the Non-Hazardous Waste, the amount disclosed for Plastic, Paper and 3 EEFEZEYME  TEENSBE KERTE

Rejected Coconut are related to the quantity recycled or reused, while the Other BB FH8EECKKBERNAHEE@ mEMm—
General Waste, which is residual ash and office and plant general waste, are disposed BEEM(NERUAEFAZTR T —REEY)
of. Al F LA & -

RIBEHE - BARARKERRE LM —RER
w8 -

4 In the reporting period, we started collecting and reporting other general waste data. 4
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Emission Management

The Group continues to step up efforts to control air emission and
effluent discharge, so as to minimize pollution arisen during operation. In
accordance with the Environmental Quality (Industrial Effluent) Regulation
2009, no party shall discharge effluent to water body beyond the
designated condition. In order to perform close monitoring on the
discharge level, we conduct effluent analysis twice a month, with the use
of analysis parameters which include Chemical Oxygen Demand (CQOD),
Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) and pH.

The Group’s main air and greenhouse gas emission is generated from
the operation of biomass boiler, use of diesel forklift and purchased
electricity. In this regard, we had adopted smoke density meters to
monitor the air emission regularly. Moreover, we had entrusted a third
party laboratory to conduct Isokinetic stack sampling and air emission
monitoring regularly so as to comply with the requirements of the
Environmental Quality (Clean Air) Regulations 2014.

To strengthen our monitoring process, we had installed a Continuous
Emission Monitoring (CEM) System at our key emission exhaust. This
system helps to monitor multiple gas species simultaneously and reduce
the number of workforces for monitoring. If there is any abnormal result
noted, an ERCMC meeting will be held immediately to identify and adopt
the rectification measures as soon as practicable.

Waste Management

Our hazardous waste is mainly produced during the production process,
including disposed containers, bags or equipment contaminated with
chemicals, pesticides, mineral oil or scheduled wastes, which its
hazardous waste code is SW409 as stated in the Environmental Quality
(Scheduled Wastes) Regulations 2005. It is stored in an individual cabin
which is separated from other non-hazardous wastes. All hazardous
wastes are placed on pallet to avoid contact with the floor. A qualified
third party is responsible for the collection and handling those hazardous
wastes on a regular basis.

Industrial effluent is the primary waste generated from our production
process at the Perak Plant. It is generated from our Clean-in-place (CIP)
system, which discharges nitric and caustic acid, and generated from the
process of cleaning our white kernels. We treat the industrial effluent with
our on-site industrial effluent treatment plant carefully before discharge.

e —
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Residual ash is generated during the combustion of coconut shells, in the
biomass boiler. The ash would be collected together with other general
waste by a third party for disposal and recycling. To monitor the ash
generation, a monitoring system has been installed as requested by the
Department of Environment in Malaysia. Also, the biomass boiler is
examined by the Department of Environment and the Department of
Occupational Safety and Health in Malaysia every year.

Mitigation Measures

By formulating the system for energy utilization and implementing
measures on energy conservation and emission reduction, the Group
continues to improve energy efficiency and push forward low-carbon
operation:

Energy-saving

o Give priority to cooling equipment with lower energy consumption
and highly efficient electronic appliances

° Use natural light in office as far as possible

° Advocate the application of energy-saving lamps

o Use teleconference or email instead of overseas business trips

° Remind employees to turn off all air-conditioners and power supply
during the non-office hours

Water conservation

o Give priority to water-saving equipment and products in the office
area

° Promote the water saving idea to all staffs

° Place the poster with the reminder of “Conserve water” near the
taps of each water supply system, such as canteen area, sinks, etc

° Install water-saving taps and sanitary fittings and properly design
the water supply and drainage systems

O S&P Internat HQt:‘mall I-ibfamg Limited

| L}

Enwronmental Social and
Governance Report (continued)

iﬁ D ()

MTFRELEVMERBERERSELRRK
BRGEREM - REZYHE=THEE
TRENBY - BERIRRHES &M

%RE”%IEEEER MAMERZKE N X

5o BESh - EY)E SRR R S R P r IR BB

EBEZ2RERBASFETRE -

K 15 T

REBERBEERIREAGE REEEHfE
BB M TETIR A AR E - BITEMRE
2
£ B
o EBEBREEEERENLANRENRS KR

o LEHERNETHERBEIES
Z IR

o REREBAEIFPLAFEREAME =S
K EIR

B 7K

o TEWMRNRBIGELEEEKEMERER

D MATE B THEMKES

o HEEE KAEZSEHEKIRFAKE
A BT 34T 5R Bh [ &5 40 A 7K | M9 4R RO 3R

o REMKIKEBREERE B

REHHK RBEK RS



MEEBEFR A A 3-1

—B-N\EEH

Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (continued)

EE -HEB8REGHS @

Reduction of paper use
o Adopt electronic document filing system

° Promote the use of electronic communication means for
announcement publishing, event reporting, recommendation
solicitation and feedback

o Promote the reuse of file folders, envelopes and other stationery

Others
° Hold “Environmental Day” to share knowledge, tips and information
on environment protection through fun games and video sharing

° Share tips on saving the environment to all employees by email on
a monthly basis

o Encourage employees to bring their own cups and tableware, and
avoid using disposable utensils or plastic containers

While highlighting management of energy conservation and emission
reduction in operation, we strive to minimize wastes and extend the
waste life cycle by implementing different waste reduction measures.

In order to reduce waste production, we pay great effort to fully utilize
every single coconut. By adopting the waste-to-energy technology, we
use biofuel as our main fuel instead of fossil fuel since 2013. We collect
and burn the coconut shells and woodchips as bio-fuel for our biomass
boiler to produce heat. With the introduction of biomass boiler and the
combustion of coconut shells, we have reduced fuel costs to a great
extent.

We are committed to advocating the green and low carbon concept to
our stakeholders. Thus, we have initiated the awareness program on
environmental policies at our HQ and the Perak Plant since last year. We
share environmental policies and data analysis review at the billboard and
entrance of our HQ and the Perak Plant. We also encourage our
employees to participate in the training regarding environmental
protection held by the Department of Environment in order to raise their
environmental protection awareness. We strive to promote the public the
low carbon, green, sustainability and other environmental protection
concepts.
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OUR PEOPLE

We adhere to the business philosophy of “people-oriented”, and
recognizes that employees and communities are fundamental to the
substantial development of the Group.

We are dedicated to providing our employees with a safe working
environment, attractive compensation and benefits, adequate training
and career advancement, where continuous benchmarking to our current
mechanism, so that every employee can grow with us.

Staff Overview

We are convinced that success depends entirely on the enthusiasm and
excellence of our staff. As of 31 December 2018, the Group employs a
total of 285 employees, detailed classifications are as follow:

Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (continued)
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Talents Recruitment

We are dedicated to promoting professional development and providing
a harmonious working environment and development platform for our
employees.

We will never deter their employment and promotion opportunities due to
their age, gender, marital status, race, religion or nationality. During the
recruitment process, we take a variety of factors into account, such as
our development plans, vacancies within our Group, work experience
and education background of the candidates. We assess their personal
knowledge, technical skills and working attitude through written tests and
interviews, thereby recruiting suitable persons. Talented staffs are
promoted by assessing their performance, experience and ability. We
attach great importance to employees’ performance management and
incentives. Performance appraisal will be conducted regularly to evaluate
and analyse the employees’ accomplishment of performance targets.

Upholding the employment principle of “fairness, openness and equity”,
the Group adopts a zero-tolerance approach towards any form of
discrimination and prohibits the use of child and force labour.

There are several roles within our Group that have to be filed by

personnel with the requisite skillset, work experience, educational
background or qualification. Examples are shown as follow:

Project manager 18 B #&£ 1%

e Requires a bachelor degree in engineering or equivalent qualification

ABIRELEUNFRFER

Quality assurance executive & £ 1#

e Requires a degree, diploma or equivalent qualification in food technology or food science
EBERmBMRmBE2ET8 - WRHFAFER

Boilerman $81& T

e Obtains a boiler certificate issued by the Department of Occupational Safety and
Health (jabatan keselamatan dan kesihatan pekerja)
B ¥ 2 2 B {# F E0P9 (jabatan keselamatan dan kesihatan pekerja)J8 3 K $aiE & =

R&D staff iff2& & T

e Requires a degree in food technology or food science

AR MR miBt 22
e At least three years of relevant work experiences

ELAB=FHETIEER
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We generally enter into a standard form of employment contract with our
employees, which contain confidentiality clauses and standard restrictive
covenants. During the Reporting Period, we are not aware of any major
labour disputes, work stoppages or labour strikes.

Remuneration and Welfare

Adhering to the principle that corporate growth relies on and benefits
employees, the Group establishes a remuneration system based on the
characteristics of different posts to reflect the internal fairness and
external competitiveness. Remuneration packages consist of basic
salary, incentive bonus scheme which encourages employees to improve
their individual and departmental performance. Employees are entitled to
paid annual leave, marriage leave, maternity leave, replacement leave and
other statutory holidays in accordance with the laws, protecting their
basic rights.

At the same time, we regularly adjust employees’ remuneration package
according to their performance and skills, as well as the industry norms,
to ensure both external competitiveness and internal equity.

Development and Training

In order to offer better development prospect, the Group elaborately
establishes a sound employee training and development program,
covering induction training to practical courses of on-the-job training. We
also encourage employees to learn advanced knowledge and participate
in external training courses. We provide complete course support for
employees at each of their career development stage, so as to facilitate
their rapid growth.

For new employees, we organize orientation training and provides tailor-
made relevant courses for them so that they can be more familiar with
and integrate into the corporate culture, adapt and understand the
business operation efficiently.

For existing employees, we provide workshops, internal and external
trainings for them to improve their understanding and knowledge of work
safety issues and hazard identification, risk assessments and risk control
issues.

All Directors, including the Independent Non-executive Directors, should
keep abreast of their responsibilities as directors and our business
activities. To facilitate the Directors to perform their responsibilities, they
are required to attend the training to strengthen their management
knowledge and skills.
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Occupational Health & Safety

The Group takes various measures to create an excellent working and
living environment, so as to safeguard the safety and occupational health
of our employees. We are not aware of any non-compliance with
Occupational Safety and Health Act and all applicable laws and
regulations relevant to occupational health and safety during the
Reporting Period. In this regard, achieving the aim of enacting this Act,
which are to secure the safety, health and welfare of workers in
workplace and protect others against risks to safety or health, are our top
priorities.

A Work and Environment Safety Committee has been set up to discuss
and address matters related to environmental and occupational health
and safety issues of our Group. The committee members include our
factory managers and production managers, and personnel from the
Human Resources Department. With opinions collected from different
departments, we believe we can address our environmental, health and
safety issues in a considerate way.

Our production sites are equipped with fire protection equipment and
tools. Warning signs are placed around the production sites to warn and
remind our staff of safety issues. Regular trainings regarding occupational
safety, hazardous chemicals handling and fire safety are provided to
enhance our employees’ health and safety awareness.

Annual health examination and medical insurance are provided to ensure
the physical health of our staffs. We also maintain employer’s liability
insurance, public liability insurance against any damages caused to third
parties and consequential loss insurance policies. Besides, we have
taken out an insurance policy against any damage that may be caused
by our biomass boiler.

Labour Standard

We adhere to a human rights framework that creates an environment
where human rights issues can be openly discussed.

Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited during the recruitment
process as defined by the laws and regulations. During the hiring
process, candidates shall provide identity documents and valid
employment visas to ensure that they are legally employable. The Human
Resources Department will also ensure that the identity documents are
carefully checked and no child or forced labour are employed by the
Group. If any false presentation or fraud committed by an employee is
found, the Group or its subsidiary has the right to terminate the contract
of that employee. During the Reporting Period, we are not aware of any
non-compliance incidents regarding child and forced labour.
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We have been in stringent compliance with the laws and regulations in
Malaysia relevant to the Labour Standards, including but not limited to:

° The

e The

e The

e The

Employment Act 1955 (“EA 1955”)

regulates all labour relations including contracts of service,
payment of wages, employment of women, rest days, hours
of work, termination, lay-off and retirement benefits and
keeping of registers of employees.

defines employee as any person, irrespective of his
occupation, who has entered into a contract of service with
an employer under which such person’s wages do not
exceed RM2,000 a month.

provides that in the event where the terms of the employment
of an employee are inconsistent with the minimum standards
provided under EA 1955, the more favourable terms will
prevail and apply to the employees.

Employees Provident Fund Act 1991

imposes the statutory obligations on employers and
employees to make contribution towards the Employees’
Provident Fund which shall serve as a saving scheme for
retirement purposes of an employee.

Employees’ Social Security Act 1969

provides social security in certain contingencies and other
relevant matters and it shall apply to all industries having one
or more employees.

Immigration Act 1955 (“IA 1955”) (For Foreign

employees only)

no person other than a citizen shall enter Malaysia unless he
or she is in possession of a valid entry permit or exemption is
granted to him or her pursuant to IA 1955.
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Ethical Culture

We uphold the corporate culture of “fairness, justice, honesty and
integrity”. We take a zero-tolerance approach with regard to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering. In an aim to cultivate an ethical
corporate culture and practice, all gifts, banquets and customer rebates
are prohibited according to our “No Gift policy”. If any misconduct, fraud,
unlawful behaviour or suspected commercial bribery is found, it shall be
passed on to judicial authorities for pursuit of charges.

During the Reporting Period, we are not aware of any pending or
concluded legal proceedings regarding corruption brought against the
Group or any of our employees.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT AND
CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

The Group believes that successful collaboration with suppliers and
business partners is critical to our business operation, which leads us in
achieving sustainable development.

We have adopted standardised procurement procedures in order to
improve the efficiency of our operations. The procurement procedures
are as follow:

WWM’ W!{_yf i

5 @)

B

BHRAIAFRAE HERRINEEX
oo HMEHE - DR - RFRXRERN
TRBEE - RERERNEEXLERS
B BRMANMEERBRIZLE—UEE
FEREREFEN - WEEMNTETR B
FETNETRARSMEEXBE  — 2R\
BDEMBETREE -

RBEHRB HMPLTABEAEREE
FRMNEFN-—UREREABBESHNR
R CIRERRERF

HEZSEEREFAR

AEBEBRE BEHREFREBBHOKRY
BEERMNEBEEEREZ AR
MERAIFEER-

ZMERARELCHORBREF UWRSE
BRER - ARARBEREFNOT

Obtain price Rece
quotations Issue purchase A Sggllivez
from suppliers orders S
o mpoeem  mimmaE  RWGE




AN I
L Fi

AnnuaI Repart 2018

EiR -HEKRE]

The Group continues to improve the nutrition value and quality of our
products and enhance the customer satisfaction in terms of flavour
innovation and packaging design. A Customer Complaint Policy and a
Product Return Policy have been established to standardize the
procedures of handling customers complaints and ensure that any
returned products are properly documented. Whenever we receive
customer’s complaint, we will first carry out verification of the complaints.
Quiality testing on the alleged sub-standard product will be conducted
whenever it is necessary. If our products are found and proved to be
defective, we will follow up on the relevant complaint with our customer
and our factory. In addition, we will continue to address the issues giving
rise to the quality issues or defective packaging until the problem is
settled.

We have maintained product liability insurance to cover any liabilities
arising from the sale of our products.

PRIVACY PROTECTION

The trust of our customers forms the foundation of our business success
and brand image. The Group complies with data privacy laws and
regulations and respects customer privacy. We collect and handle
customer’s personal data carefully. Unauthorised use of customer data is
strictly prohibited. Customer data are only accessible by authorised
personnel within the Group on a need-to-know and need-to-use basis. In
order to raise the employees’ awareness of the importance of privacy
protection, relevant training on managing sensitive customer and
company information is provided.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

As a responsible corporate citizen, we actively participate in various
charity and social welfare issues for the sake of caring for the local
communities. Understanding our local communities, foreseeing their
needs and promoting a sustainable future are our ultimate goals. We
have launched a CSR campaign during the Reporting Period, in order to
raise the awareness of national pride while doing goods by giving back to
the society.
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CASE STUDY — Free giveaway

To celebrate Merdeka, the Independence Day of Malaysia, we had
organized a giveaway event in August 2018. Free Nasi Lemak, Santan
goodie bag and Santan CCP were offered to the community in different
locations, such as business districts, train stations and morning markets.

We also promised to donate RM1 to charity organization whenever we
receive one post with hashtag (#SantanFreeNasiLemak) on social media.
This fundraising campaign has provided a fun and easy opportunity for
the community to get involved. Thanks to the support from all
participants, the campaign was a fabulous success.

._L F

CASE STUDY — Orphanage Home Visit

Other than dishing out free Nasi Lemak ahead of Merdeka Day, twelve of
our volunteers visited an orphanage home, Hamidiah Orphanage House,
in Selekoh, Perak in June 2018. They brought along with them our
sponsored supplies as gift to the children, to provide not only our
presents but also to express our care to those in need.
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A. Environmental

A BB

Aspect A1 : Emissions
BEAT: HERY

General Disclosure Environment
Information on:
(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

— BB

il
i

FRABRIBEREHN KRS AERETER
MHELEFH

(@ BHE: &k

() BFTHETAREAZENHEBEEZEZRRANNEER -

KPIA1.1  The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emission Management

BREN HmmERREEBEREIE - PR E IR

FEIFEALA

KPIA1.2  Greenhouse gas emissions in total and where appropriate, Emission Management
intensity.

BMREN RERBEIMER(MEREE- PERRY B

EIEAL.2

KPI A1.3  Total hazardous waste produced and where appropriate, Waste Management
intensity.

BMREN MELEAEEEVRAER(MER)EE - EREYER

EIZAL3

KPI A1.4  Total non-hazardous waste produced and where Waste Management
appropriate, intensity.

BREN MELARZEEVEER (WER)TE - BEEYEIR

EIEA1.4

26-31

27

27

28

28
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TESER - EH —REERBERERER BH RE BER

KPIA1.5  Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results Emission Management 29
achieved.

BRAENR RORESFRENEREMERR - s E R

EIFEALS

KPIA1.6  Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes Waste Management 29-30

are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
BREN HIEEEEREEBREVNS L REELEENE BEWESE
BIZA16 MBRATERE-

Aspect A2 : Use of Resources

EBEA2: ERER

General Disclosure Environment 26-28,
30-31

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and
other raw materials.

Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation,
in buildings, electronic equipment, etc.

— R E R
ARERER(BIEER - KEEMEM ) EE - IHQ

i BRAAREE [#fF Ew BF TFREF- \

KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total Emission Management i
and intensity.

BREN RENESHNEEL SHEEREEERTE - HRYER

EIZA2.1

KPI A2.2  Water consumption in total and intensity. Emission Management

BRER #HEKEREE- i E I8

HEIZA2.2

KPI A2.3  Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results ~ Emission Management
achieved.

FARAEN fARERARGEAELMERR - e 12

EIFA2.3

KPI A2.4  Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water Emission Management
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

BRER M kBGERKIR ER BERMRE - A REF AR BEY) &8

EIBA2.4  HE B NATERR -

KPIA2.5  Total packaging material used for finished products, and if Product Quality and Safety
applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

BREN HEmAeEMHNEER (MER)B4EENL EmBESHTS

BIZA25 HE -

% P




.l|.

\'\-'I.\-‘
1 J"'

T / 2 S&P Interna onqﬂrl-ibtamg Limited
et nupI'R

| \

Enwronmental Social and
Governance Report (continued)

EE -UHEBREGHS @

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosure and KPIs Chapter/Disclosure Page

TEHR BEH —REERARERER BHRE A

Aspect A3 : The Environment and Natural Resources
BHEHA3: BERXRER
General Disclosure Environment 26-31

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

— R

i
B

MEBETAHRERRREREKNEATENERE

KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of Environment 26-31
activities on the environment and natural resources and
the actions taken to manage them.

BREN MAEREIHHRERRAERNEATENER

EEAS1 MERBHETENTH -
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B. Social
B.# &
Employment and Labour Practices

EBERELETER
Aspect B1 : Employment

EEB1: EfE

General Disclosure Our People 32-36
Information on:
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
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TEERE EH —REERBRENER W WE =P/
KPIB1.1  Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group  Staff Overview 32
and geographical region.
BRAEN R EBEER FRAMNRMEEHSIMNEERL BIHE
BIZB11 e
KPIB1.2  Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A
geographical region. Period
BgEN ®mUR FRANRMESDNEERALE - R EHB Y EE R A~ iE A
EiEB1.2
Aspect B2 : Health and Safety
BEB2: @REZR
General Disclosure Occupational Health and Safety 35
Information on:
(@ the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
— R BERERETS
EARHLZ2TERBELREEE#ABEERESN
@ EE:R
b) BTFHBETAGEAZENHBEZERLBAONEHR -
KPIB2.1  Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A
Period
BREER FAIFEBEMIETHABRKLE- R s HIE N R R i A
E1EB2.1
KPIB2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A
Period
BgEN AIEBBEAIEAZ- AN TR 45 B 0 A 5 BR A iE A
EiEB2.2
KPIB2.3  Description of occupational health and safety measures ~ Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored. Period
BRAEN MAFRMANBRERRET2EE  ARBABERTR NREHMET EHRE
EIEB2.3 EERFE -
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IRER BE —REERBREEANER BH KRB BR

Aspect B3 : Development and Training
BEB3: &R REFI
General Disclosure Development and Training 34

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training activities.

— R = R RIE

FARARERITIIEBRE N MH REEENBUR - Wl F IS

g o

KPIB3.1  The percentage of employees trained by gender and Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A
employee category. Period

BEREN RUEBREBEAMNESHXIEEBSLL - AN SR 5 B R 0 A R BR A3 A

E1EB3A1

KPIB3.2  The average training hours completed per employee by Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A
gender and employee category. Period

BREN RUEFIREBENE S  BREETKIIN TR KNGS AR EHKE A iE A

E1ZEB32 #H o
Aspect B4 : Labour Standards
[EEB4 : 8 T2
General Disclosure Labour Standard 35-36
Information on:
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and
forced labour.

— MR R & T AR

BRI IEE T oabls T :

(@ HX: X

() BFHETAREATZENHEBEEZERRNNEER -

KPIB4.1  Description of measures to review employment practices  Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A
to avoid child and forced labour. Period
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TESER - EH —REERBERERER EH WE HR

KPI'B4.2  Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A
when discovered. Period

BREN HMAEZRRERBAREREEBENMRRA IR o KNS MY B E i A

E1EB4.2

Operating Practices

EEEY

Aspect B5 : Supply Chain Management

[BEB5: tEHEEE

General Disclosure Supply Chain Management and 37-38
Customer Satisfaction

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply

chain.
— R EE HEBEEREPMEE

EEHEENREITERAREBR

KPIB5.1  Number of suppliers by geographical region. Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A
Period
BRER mMRIEASNHHEFEE - R E R iR A A
515 B5.1
KPIB5.2  Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A
number of suppliers where the practices are being Period
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
BRENR HMOAEHERHEERNEN  mERITEBEN A M AR E BE I &R EE i@ A
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Aspect B6 : Product Responsibility
EEB6: EmER
General Disclosure Product Quality and Safety 23-25
Information on:
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.
— R EmEEHTE
ERMREERNBRENERELS B BERLESZTEMN
KA T A
(@ BE: &k
() BFHETAREAZENHEBEEERRANNEER -
KPIB6.1  Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A
recalls for safety and health reasons. Period
BREN CEXACEXEMEHPRL>ERRIEHMAD A¥RE HB T ERE A iE A
EEB61 WHBE DL
KPI'B6.2  Number of products and service related complaints Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A
received and how they are dealt with. Period
BREN BEREEAREMRRBORFHRE UAREHFE- RN HARE I R R ER i A
$E15B6.2
KPIB6.3  Description of practices relating to observing and Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A
protecting intellectual property rights. Period
BREN HmtEgERREMNUAEEGHNED - R E R R A3 A
#51%B6.3
KPIB6.4  Description of quality assurance process and recall Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A
procedures. Period
BRENR fMiESmTBRENEMOKRER - N3 BRI MR RR A iE A
1512 B6.4
KPI'B6.5  Description of consumer data protection and privacy Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A
policies, how they are implemented and monitored. Period
BRENR RMBEEEERRERILBEE  URMBEEARTRE ARERBMTEHE A

EIEB6.5 ke
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R -HEB8KREEHS @
Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosure and KPIs Chapter/Disclosure Page
TESER - EH —REERBERERER BH RE HR
Aspect B7 : Anti-corruption
EBHEB7: XK&ES
General Disclosure Ethical Culture 37
Information on:
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

— R R BRIt
BERAM LR R MEFRAEREN:
@@ B R
) BFHETAFEAZENHBEZEZLBAOINER -
KPI'B7.1  Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A

practices brought against the issuer or its employees Period

during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
BAREN RERAAHZETANHEHEERETYEEENEST AHREHMITEREE AN A
BEB7 FARHMEA RFRER-
KPIB7.2  Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing ~ Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A

procedures, how they are implemented and monitored. Period
BREN MR HEERBREF  UAREENTRERS AREHBETEREE A A

EiRBT2 JA-
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Environmental, Social and
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosure and KPIs Chapter/Disclosure Page
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Aspect B8 : Community Investment
EEB8: HERE

General Disclosure Community Investment 38-39

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take
into consideration the communities’ interests.

— R R HERE

BRNHEBESERTRETALEMCELRFTZMBRE XK
ABEE R R EABR

KPIB8.1  Focus areas of contribution. Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A
Period

MREN FIFREE- N3R5 HA TR O AR R BR A5 A

515 B8.1

KPIB8.2  Resources contributed to the focus area. Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A
Period

BREN THEIBEBMPBHAER- N3R5 B R R BR A3 A
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is engaged in the manufacturing and distribution of food
products. The core products include coconut cream powder and low fat
dessicated coconut, manufactured at the Group’s manufacturing facility
located at Bagan Datoh, Perak, Malaysia (the “Perak Plant”), which is
equipped with a multi-stage spray dryer which is fully automated and
monitored centrally ensuring high quality and stable production. The
Group also manufactures other food products such as non-dairy creamer
and other traditional South-east Asian traditional food ingredients such as
rice dumplings (ketupat) and toasted coconut paste (kerisik).

The Group is committed to delivering high quality and safe food products
and services, meeting customers’ expectations and complying with legal
requirements, and continually improving customers’ satisfaction and
having a quality management team. It implements comprehensive and
strict quality assurance procedures throughout all stages of the
production process from the procurement of raw materials to the
packaging and delivery of the finished products. In this regard, the Group
has been accredited with various certifications in relation to quality
management and food safety.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group’s revenue was approximately RM80.0 million for FY2018,
representing a decrease of approximately 16.9%, or RM16.2 million,
when compared with that for FY2017 of approximately RM96.2 million (as
restated). The decrease in sales was largely attributed to a drop in sales
volume of coconut related products, as discussed in the section below.

The Group’s cost of sales decreased by approximately 16.7%, or
RM10.8 million, from approximately RM65.0 milion for FY2017 to
approximately RM54.2 million for FY2018, which was in tandem with the
decrease in the sales volume and a drop in the price of the Group’s
major raw materials, namely coconuts and white kernel. Total gross profit
for FY2018 decreased by approximately 17.3%, or RM5.4 million when
compared with that for FY2017 in tandem with the decrease in revenue.

Meanwhile, the gross profit margin of the Group remained stable for
FY2018 at 32.3% (FY2017: 32.4%, as restated).
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Coconut related products

The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from coconut related products.
Revenue for such products for FY2018 was approximately RM78.7
million, representing a drop of approximately RM16.0 million as compared
to that for FY2017 of approximately RM94.7 million (as restated). The
decrease in revenue for coconut related products was attributed primarily
due to the drop in sales volume from certain overseas markets resulting
from the change in market conditions thereat.

Other revenue are mainly made up of sales of ketupat, freight charges to
customers and sales of miscellaneous items. In FY2018, other revenue
was approximately RM1.3 million, representing a marginal drop of RM0.2
million from RM1.5 million posted in FY2017.

Other income

In FY2018, other income comprised mainly rental income of RMO.2
million and sale of scrap items and other sundry income of RM0.3 million.

Selling and distribution expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses of approximately RM4.5
million for FY2018 was approximately RM1.1 million lower than those of
approximately RM5.6 million for FY2017. This was in line with the
reduced sales revenue in FY2018.

Administrative expenses

In FY2017, the Group’s administrative expenses was RM20.0 million,
which can be categorised into one-off Listing expenses of approximately
RM13.2 million and recurring administrative expenses of approximately
RM6.8 million. The Group’s administrative expenses for FY2018 were
approximately RM10.8 million, which represented an increase of
approximately RM4.0 million over the recurring administrative expenses
of FY2017. Such increase was due to an increase in staff and other
related costs in line with the Group’s factory and sales expansion plans.
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Other expenses

The Group’s other expenses for FY2018 were approximately RM2.6
million, which were mainly made up of net foreign exchange loss and an
impairment loss on goodwill of approximately RM0.5 million. The net
foreign exchange loss arose primarily from the fluctuation of RM against
the United States Dollar (“US$") during FY2018.

Net finance income/(costs)

In FY2018, the Group recorded net finance income of RMO0.6 million, as
compared to net finance costs of RM0.2 million in FY2017. This net
income was primarily derived from interest earmned on unutilised net
proceeds received by the Company from the IPO exercise (the “Net
Proceeds”), pending their deployment for the Group’s expansion plans.

Income tax expense

The Group’s income tax expense decreased by approximately 39.5%, or
RM1.7 million from approximately RM4.3 million for FY2017 to
approximately RM2.6 million for FY2018, which was primarily in line with
a decrease in the taxable profit as the one-off Listing expenses in FY2017
was not tax deductible.

Profit Attributable to equity Shareholders

The Group recorded a profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) of approximately RM6.3 million for
FY2018, as compared to a profit of approximately RMO0.2 million in
FY2017 (as restated). This was attributable mainly to the one-off and
non-recurring Listing expenses of approximately RM13.2 million incurred
during FY2017 but the profit in FY2018 was offset by the lower gross
profit and higher administrative expenses in FY2018.

FUTURE PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES

The Group intends to grow and expand in tandem with the growing
coconut related products industry. Initiatives have been put in place to
capitalise on the vibrant industry outlook. The areas on which the
management team places emphasis are, amongst others, widening of
the global distribution network and strengthening of the Group’s product
innovation and development capabilities, and talent development and
management initiatives to ensure sustainable growth of the Group.
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In addition to the above, the Group is in the midst of implementing its
business expansion plans which include expanding and upgrading the
production facilities at its Perak Plant to, among others, produce coconut
milk and coconut water. Based on the current schedule, it is expected
that such expansion and upgrade will be completed by the second half of
2019, when such new products are expected to be launched
commercially.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group maintains a solid financial position and as at 31 December
2018 was in a net cash position. The Group is able to meet its obligations
when they become due in its ordinary and usual course of business.

Capital Structure

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to maintain a strong
capital base and safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so as to maintain investors, creditors and market confidence
and sustain future development of the business.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management
during the FY2018.

Cash Position

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
approximately RM46.1 million as compared with approximately RM59.4
million as at 31 December 2017. The decrease of approximately RM13.3
million in cash was mainly due to partial utilisation of the Net Proceeds for
their intended use, during FY2018.

Loans and Borrowings

As at 31 December 2018, the loans and borrowings amounted to
approximately RM3.4 million, representing a decrease of approximately
RM1.4 million as compared to approximately RM4.8 million as at 31
December 2017, attributable primarily to net repayments of bank
borrowings during FY2018.

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio equals to total debt divided by total equity. As at 31
December 2018, the gearing ratio was approximately 0.03 (2017: 0.04).
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the assets pledged to licensed banks for
banking facilities granted to the Group were as follows:

EEEH

RZE-NF+_RA=+—RH stA&EH
ERNBRTREMEFRTRHBRITNEE
m

Leasehold land HELH
Freehold land KAFERE T I
Factory buildings and other buildings IHEFRAMEF

2018 2017
—®-N\F CE—tF
RM RM
BRETSE BREDSE
246,339 254,642
97,046 97,046
10,091,943 11,344,831
10,435,328 11,696,519

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

During FY2018, the Group had incurred capital expenditures of
approximately RM27.3 million as compared to approximately RM5.2
million in FY2017. The expenditures were mainly related to the purchase
of property, plant and equipment and construction work in progress.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group did not hold any significant investments as at 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017.

MATERIALS ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

During FY2018, the Group had acquired a 90.6% stake in M. Ace (Thailand)
Co. Ltd. for a total cash consideration of Thai Baht Three Hundred.

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during FY2017.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign
currencies, mainly in US$ and HKS$, and hence, exposure to exchange
rate fluctuations arises. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, management monitors foreign
exchange exposure closely in order to keep the net exposure to an
acceptable level. The Group will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

FINAL DIVIDEND

At the meeting of the Board held on 29 March 2019, the Board has
resolved not to recommend the payment of any dividend to the
Shareholders for FY2018.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) will be held at
11:00 a.m. on Thursday, 30 May 2019 at 27-1, Jalan PJU 5/13, Dataran
Sunway, Kota Damansara, 47810 Petaling Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia and
the notice of the AGM will be published and despatched in accordance
with the requirements under the Company’s articles of association (the
“Articles of Association”) and Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules” and
the “Stock Exchange”, respectively) in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the Shareholders’ rights to attend and
vote at the forthcoming AGM, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Saturday, 25 May 2019 to Thursday, 30 May 2019,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be
registered. In order to be eligible for attending and voting at the
forthcoming AGM, non-registered Shareholders must lodge their duly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Boardroom
Share Registrars (HK) Limited, Room 2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road,
North Point, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 24 May 2019.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

The Group had 285 employees and 238 employees as at 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017, respectively. Remuneration is determined
by reference to the prevailing market terms and in accordance with the
performance, qualification and experience of each individual employee.
Periodic inhouse training is provided to the employees to enhance the
knowledge of the workforce. Meanwhile, training programs conducted by
qualified personnel are also attended by our employees to enhance their
skills set and working experience.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) with effect from 11 July 2017 to enable the Board to grant
share options to eligible participants with an opportunity to have a
personal stake in the Company with a view to achieving the following
objectives: (i) motivate the eligible participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group and (ii) attract and
retain or otherwise maintain an ongoing business relationship with the
eligible participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
long-term growth of the Group.

As at 31 December 2018 and the date of this report, there was no
outstanding share option granted under the Share Option Scheme and
no share option lapsed or was exercised or cancelled during FY2018.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2017 except as disclosed in Note 27
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its Shares listed on the Stock
Exchange nor did the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell
any of such Shares during FY2018.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 13 March 2019, a subsidiary of the Company entered into a US$12.5
million secured term loan facility agreement with a Malaysian licensed
bank (the “Bank”) for the purpose of financing the subsidiary’s expansion
plan at Bagan Datoh, Perak. The term loan is repayable within 7 years
and bears a floating rate interest based on London Inter-bank Offered
Rates plus an agreed percentage.

The term loan is secured by freehold land and buildings of a subsidiary,
specific debentures by the subsidiary incorporating specific charge over
the machineries and equipment to be financed by the Bank, and a
corporate guarantee in favour of the Bank from the Company. As at 29
March 2019, the Group has drawn down a total of US$5.0 million from
this term loan.

Other than the above, no event that has a significant impact on the
Group has occurred after the reporting period and up to the date of this
report.
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The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to shareholders
(the “Shareholders”) and protecting and enhancing Shareholders’ value
through good corporate governance.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) recognise the importance
of incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the
management structures, internal control and risk management
procedures of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) so as to
achieve effective accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s ordinary shares (the “Shares”) in issue were listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 11 July 2017 (the “Listing Date”). The Company has
adopted and complied with all applicable code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) during the financial year ended 31
December 2018 (“FY2018”) and up to the date of this annual report.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct governing
the securities transactions by the Directors. Following a specific enquiry
made by the Company on each of the Directors, all Directors have
confirmed that they had complied with the Model Code during FY2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The board of Directors (the “Board”) is primarily responsible for
overseeing and supervising the management of the business affairs and
the overall performance of the Group. The Board sets the Group’s values
and standards and ensures that the requisite financial and human
resources support is in place for the Group to achieve its objectives. The
functions performed by the Board include but are not limited to
formulating the Group’s business plans and strategies, deciding all
significant financial (including major capital expenditure) and operational
issues, developing, monitoring and reviewing the Group’s corporate
governance practices and all other functions reserved to the Board under
the Company’s Articles of Association. The Board has established Board
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committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference. The
responsibilities of these Board committees include monitoring the
Group’s operational and financial performance, and ensuring that
appropriate internal control and risk management are in place. The Board
may from time to time delegate certain functions to management of the
Group if and when considered appropriate. The management is mainly
responsible for the execution of the business plans, strategies and
policies adopted by the Board and assigned to it from time to time.

The Directors have full access to information of the Group and
management has an obligation to supply the Directors with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable the Directors to perform their
responsibilities. The Directors are entitled to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense.

Composition

The Company is committed to holding and implementing the view that
the Board should include a balanced composition of executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”) so that there is a
strong independent element on the Board which can effectively exercise
independent judgment.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises the following
seven Directors, of which the INEDs in aggregate represent more than
one-third of the Board members:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Koon Fook (Chairman)

Mr. Lee Sieng Poon (Managing Director)
Mr. Yap Boon Teong

Ms. Wong Yuen Lee

INEDs

Mr. Fung Che Wai, Anthony
Mr. Chong Yew Hoong
Mr. Ng Hock Boon

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” of this annual report.

There was no financial, business, family or other material relationship
among the Directors.
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The INEDs have brought in a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experience and independent judgement to the Board. Through
active participation in the Board meetings and serving on various Board
committees, all INEDs will continue to make various contributions to the
Company.

Throughout the FY2018, the Company had three INEDs, which was in
compliance with the requirement of the Listing Rules that the number of
INEDs must represent at least one-third of the Board members, and that
at least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence in
writing from each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Based on such confirmation and not aware of the occurrence of any
event that would impair the independence of the INEDs, the Company
considers that all the INEDs are independent and have met the
independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

In FY2018, the Chairman, being an executive Director, had held at least
one meeting with the INEDs without the presence of other executive
Directors.

Proper insurance coverage in respect of legal actions against the
Directors’ liability has been arranged by the Company.

Directors’ Induction and Continuing Professional
Development

Each of the Directors has received a formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure that he/
she has a proper understanding of the Company’s operations and
business and is fully aware of the director’s responsibilities under statute
and common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements and the Company’s business and governance policies.
During FY2018, each of the Directors had attended a training seminar
arranged by the Company’s Hong Kong legal advisers on directors’
responsibilities.

In compliance with code provision A.6.5 of the CG code, the Company
will from time to time fund and arrange suitable training to all the Directors
to partake in the continuous professional development in order to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in relation to their duties
and responsibilities, such that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. All Directors are also encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expense and they have been
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requested to provide the Company with their training records. According
to the training records maintained by the Company, the continuing
professional development programmes received by each of the Directors
during the FY2018 is summarised as follows:

Name of Directors

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

(§8)

KAARREREFICE - REAR A
RENFILCE SEFR_FT-N\FH
BEERESNFESERRRERALLT

Type of training

E=pnE EIEa
Mr. Tang Koon Fook Aand B
Tang Koon Fook 4t 4 AKB
Mr. Lee Sieng Poon Aand B
Lee Sieng Poon 5t &£ AKB
Mr. Yap Boon Teong Aand B
Yap Boon Teong %t £ AXB
Ms. Wong Yuen Lee Aand B
Wong Yuen Lee %z + AKB
Mr. Fung Che Wai, Anthony Aand B
HEREE AKB
Mr. Chong Yew Hoong Aand B
Chong Yew Hoong 5t & ANB
Mr. Ng Hock Boon Aand B
Ng Hock Boon 5t 4 AKX B
A:  attending training sessions, including but not limited to, seminars, A : 2 NEZ I RPE2 - BEE TR R EHK
briefings, conferences, forums and workshops @ e e wmELFTe
B: reading materials relating to the economy, general business, B: HEAEBELEE  — KK  bEEA

corporate governance and directors’ duties and responsibilities

Meetings of the Board and Directors’ Attendance
Records

During FY2018, regular meetings of the Board was scheduled four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals with notice given to the
Directors at least 14 days in advance. For all other Board meetings,
notice has been given in a reasonable time in advance. The Directors are
allowed to include any matter in the agenda that is required for discussion
and resolution at the meeting. To enable the Directors to be properly
briefed on issues arising at each of the Board meetings and to make
informed decisions, an agenda and the accompanying Board papers are
sent to all Directors at least three days before the intended date of the
Board meeting, or such other period as agreed. The company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) is responsible for keeping
all Board meetings’ minutes. Draft and final versions of the minutes are
circulated to the Directors for comments and record respectively within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open for the
Directors’ inspection.
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During the FY2018, the Board held four regular meetings at approximately
quarterly intervals on 28 March 2018, 29 May 2018, 30 August 2018 and
28 November 2018, and amongst other matters, approved the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 and the unaudited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2018. One additional Board
meeting was held and attended by all Directors during the normal course
of business throughout the FY2018.

The attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings during
FY2018 is as follows:

Name of Directors

RZE-—NFHBRFE EF2E2X 2
—N\NE=ZA=-+N B - ZE—N\FEFHRAZ
+hB ZE—NFNA=Z+HEZ-ZZ—
NFE+—B-ZF+NBEROEEFTE—RE7T
MATHEZ N(EHPRBMELAEE
BHE-_Z—+tE&E+-_RA=+—RILEEWY
KEGGAVBEREREBE=2ZS—N\FEAX
A=1+RHLERNEAMNKREEZEAVER
K- REBA-_Z—N\FHRFENERE
¥BEAN 2RBRESETILEFET B —

REFEEH -

R-ZFE-N\EFHBEE SEEENES
SRbEREET

8

No. of Attendance/
No. of Meetings

HERE
EEpE BRRY™
Mr. Tang Koon Fook 5/5
Tang Koon Fook %t 4
Mr. Lee Sieng Poon 5/5
Lee Sieng Poon 5t &
Mr. Yap Boon Teong 5/5
Yap Boon Teong 5 &
Ms. Wong Yuen Lee 5/5
Wong Yuen Lee %2 +
Mr. Fung Che Wai, Anthony 5/5
HERELE
Mr. Chong Yew Hoong 5/5
Chong Yew Hoong 7t &
Mr. Ng Hock Boon 5/5
Ng Hock Boon 7t &

During FY2018, the Company held its annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
on 30 May 2018 which all directors attended.

The Board held a meeting on 29 March 2019 and, amongst other
matters, considered and approved the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for FY2018.

R \FHREE AANER-T
T ERCE G £
BREATAR (RFAFAR)) -

EXZgER T - NF=ZA-_t+NLAEHT
—REFH N(HbheRB) ERMELSE
BR-_F-N\FHBREFENEEZEANM
BHREK -



Annual Report 2018

e 62

S&P International Holding Limited

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

PREGES @

Board Diversity Policy

During the Year, the Company has a Board diversity policy whereby it
recognises and embraces the importance and benefits of a diversity of
Board members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business. All Board nominations,
appointments and re-appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board members
and the nomination policy of the Company. Selection of candidates will
be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills and knowledge.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

During FY2018, Mr. Tang Koon Fook was the chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”) whilst Mr. Lee Sieng Poon was the Managing Director and
they will continue to act in such capacities in 2019. Therefore, the
Company has complied with code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, which
stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

The Chairman has been responsible for the overall management,
strategic planning and the day-to-day business operation and financial
management of the Group. The Managing Director has been responsible
for the overall management, R&D, the day-to-day management of the
sales and marketing, maintenance of customer and supplier relationship
of the Group and overseeing the Sanctions Oversight Committee.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain Board committees, including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Sanctions Oversight Committee, to oversee particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and upon reasonable request,
members of the Board committees are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expenses.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 8 June 2017 with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The written terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are published on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. It comprises all the
three INEDs, namely Mr. Chong Yew Hoong, Mr. Ng Hock Boon and Mr.
Fung Che Wai, Anthony who is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include but are
not limited to:

o making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditors, and approving
their remuneration and terms of engagement, and handling any
questions regarding their resignation or dismissal;

o reviewing and monitoring the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards and discussing with the external auditors
on the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations
before the audit commences;

° developing and implementing a policy on engaging external
auditors to supply non-audit services and reporting to the Board,
identifying and making recommendations on any matters where
action or improvement is needed;

° monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts and half-year report, and reviewing
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;

o reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system, and risk
management and internal control systems;

° discussing the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty to
have such effective systems;

° considering major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management’s response to these findings;

° where an internal audit function exists, ensuring co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, ensuring that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Company, and reviewing and monitoring its
effectiveness;
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o reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

° reviewing the external auditors’ management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditors to management about the accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response;

° ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues
raised in the external auditors’ management letters; and

o considering other topics as defined by the Board.

During FY2018, two Audit Committee meetings were held on 28 March
2018 and 30 August 2018, respectively; and the Audit Committee,
amongst other matters, considered and approved the draft audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for FY2017 and the
unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2018 for presentation to the Board for
consideration and approval and audit-related matters.

The attendance record of each INED at the Audit Committee meetings
during FY2018 is as follows:

Name of Directors
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No. of Attendance/
No. of Meetings

HERE
E=pnE BRAH™
Mr. Fung Che Wai, Anthony 2/2
BERELE
Mr. Chong Yew Hoong 2/2
Chong Yew Hoong 5t &£
Mr. Ng Hock Boon 2/2
Ng Hock Boon 5t 4

The Audit Committee held a meeting on 26 March 2019 and, amongst
other matters, considered and approved for presentation to the Board for
consideration and approval the draft audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for FY2018. The chairman and the members of
the Audit Committee attended such meeting.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 8 June 2017 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The written
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are published on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Remuneration Committee comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Chong Yew
Hoong and Mr. Ng Hock Boon and Mr. Tang Koon Fook, the Chairman
and an executive Director. Mr. Chong Yew Hoong is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include
but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing the remuneration policy;

° reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

° either: (i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors and senior
management; or (i) to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

° making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the
non-executive Directors;

o considering the salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group;

o reviewing and approving the compensation payable to the
executive Directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent
with the contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

° reviewing and approving the compensation arrangements relating
to the dismissal or removal of the Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with the contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and
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o ensuring that no Director or any of his associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

During FY2018, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held on 28
March 2018 and the chairman and the members of the Remuneration
Committee attended such meeting.

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting on 26 March 2019, and
among other things, reviewed and recommended to the Board for
consideration certain remuneration-related matters of the Directors and
senior management. The chairman and the members of the
Remuneration attended such meeting.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 8 June 2017 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the code provisions of the CG
Code. The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. It comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Chong Yew Hoong and
Mr. Ng Hock Boon, and Mr. Tang Koon Fook, the chairman and an
executive Director. Mr. Tang Koon Fook is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Nomination Committee include
but are not limited to:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

o identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

o assessing the independence of the INEDs; and

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and the succession planning for the
Directors, in particular, the Chairman and the chief executive.

During FY2018, one Nomination Committee meeting was held on 28
March 2018 and the chairman and the members of the Nomination
Committee attended such meeting.
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The Nomination Committee held a meeting on 26 March 2019 and
among other things, reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board, assessed the independence of the INEDs and recommended to
the Board for consideration the re-appointment of the retiring Directors at
the forthcoming AGM. The chairman and the members of the Nomination
Committee attended such meeting.

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the
selection, appointment and re-appointment of a Director including an
INED in accordance with the following procedures and process:

i The Nomination Committee will, giving due consideration to the
current composition and size of the Board, develop a list of
desirable skills, perspectives and experience at the outset to focus
the search effort;

ii The Nomination Committee may consult any source it considers
appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing Directors, advertising, recommendations
from a third party agency firm and proposals from the Shareholders
with due consideration given to the criteria which include but are
not limited to:

(@) Diversity in the aspects, amongst others, of gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service;

(b)  Commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect of
available time and relevant interest (details of the Board
Diversity Policy is set out on page 62 of this annual report;

(c) Qualifications, both academic and professional, including
accomplishment and experience in the relevant industries in
which the Group’s business is involved;

(d)  Independence;

(e)  Reputation for integrity;

® Potential contributions that the individual can bring to the
Board; and

(9  Plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the Board.
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The Nomination Committee may adopt any process it considers
appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such as
interviews, background checks, presentations and third party
reference checks;

The Nomination Committee will consider a broad range of
candidates who are in and outside of the Board’s circle of contacts;

Upon considering a candidate’s suitability for the directorship, the
Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by way of written
resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the recommendation to the
Board for appointment;

The Nomination Committee will provide the relevant information of
the selected candidate to the Remuneration Committee for
consideration of the remuneration package of such selected
candidate;

The Nomination Committee will thereafter make the
recommendation to the Board in relation to the proposed
appointment, and where a non-executive Director is considered,
the Remuneration Committee will make the recommendation to the
Board on the policy and structure for the remuneration;

The Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be
interviewed by the members of the Board, who are not members of
the Nomination Committee and the Board will thereafter deliberate
and decide the appointment as the case may be; and

All appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing of the
consent to act as Director of the relevant Director (or any other
similar filings requiring the relevant Director to acknowledge or
accept the appointment as Director, as the case may be) to be filed
with the relevant regulatory authorities, if required.

Sanctions Oversight Committee

The Sanctions Oversight Committee was established on 28 February
2017. The current members of the Sanctions Oversight Committee are
Mr. Lee Sieng Poon and Ms. Wong Yuen Lee, both executive Directors.

Mr.

Lee Sieng Poon is the chairman of the Sanctions Oversight

Committee.
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The principal roles and functions of the Sanctions Oversight Committee #I|FHEBEZEeN T ERE MBS E R
include but are not limited to: TR

evaluating the sanctions risks prior to determining whether the
Group should embark on any business opportunities in the
Sanctioned Countries (as defined below) and with Sanctioned
Persons (as defined below);

Remarks:

(@  “Sanctioned Countries” means countries whose governments
such as the United States of America (“USA”) or Australia, or
governmental organisations such as the European Union or
the United Nations, have, through executive order, passing of
legislation or other governmental means, implemented
measures that impose economic sanctions against such
countries or against targeted industry sectors, groups of
companies or persons, and/or organisations within such
countries.

(b) “Sanctioned Persons” means certain person(s) and
identity(ies) listed on the Specially Designated Nationals and
Blocked Persons List of the United States Department of
Treasury’s Office of Foreign Assets Control (“OFAC”) or other
restricted parties lists maintained by the USA, the European
Union, the United Nations or Australia.

reviewing and approving all relevant business transaction
documentation from customers or potential customers from
Sanctioned Countries and with Sanctioned Persons. In particular,
reviewing the information (such as the identity and nature of
business as well as its ownership) relating to the counterparty to
the contract along with the draft business transaction
documentation;

checking the counterparty against the various lists of restricted
parties and countries maintained by the USA, the European Union,
the United Nations or Australia, including, without limitation, any
government, individual or entity that is the subject of any OFAC-
administered sanctions which lists are publicly available, and
determining whether the counterparty is, or is owned or controlled
by, a person located in Sanctioned Countries or a Sanctioned
Person; and
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o periodically reviewing the Company’s internal control policies and
procedures with respect to sanctions matters, including but not
limited to the global sanctions policy of the Board.

During FY2018, one Sanctions Oversight Committee meeting was held
on 28 March 2018; and the Sanctions Oversight Committee had
undertaken review on, amongst other matters, () the list of Sanctioned
Countries and Sanctioned Persons against the list of customers and
potential customers of the Group; (i) the global sanctions policy adopted
by the Company; and (i) the current procedures put in place to detect
and avoid doing business with customers or potential customers from
Sanctioned Countries and with Sanctioned Persons.

The attendance record of the Sanctions Oversight Committee meeting
during the FY2018 is as follows:

Name of Sanctions Oversight Committee Member

s XEMBREARABBIRFZTENAI
THERMERF BRETRRES
S RIRGIBBK

R-ZF-N\EHERFE" ﬂﬁyﬁiﬁa
RZF-NF=ZA=-+N\NBET—
%'&ﬂﬁ?ﬂéhaﬁgﬁﬁi¢a%m
XHEARLEIHNEALTRERAEER
FPREEEFPBE : (i)RN1QARMAE 2 IR
BORR ¢ K (i) B AT B TE B9 4R X6 E B K
EFUBEREFP RIHEALTIARE R HE
HETERBERNER -

R-ZFE-N\EHBREE HIREEZES
@M F LT

No. of Attendance/
No. of Meetings

HERE
HREEZEENENRSR EE VS
Mr. Lee Sieng Poon 11
Lee Sieng Poon 7t 4
Ms. Wong Yuen Lee 1/1
Wong Yuen Lee ZZ &=

Corporate Governance Functions

The Audit Committee is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions as set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code,
which include but are not limited to:

o developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board;

° reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

o reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

o reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this annual report.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three years commencing on the Listing Date,
which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice served
by either party on the other.

Each of the INEDs has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a period of three years commencing on the Listing Date,
which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice served
by either party on the other.

None of the Directors has a service agreement or letter of appointment
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries other than the agreements/
letters of appointment expiring or determinable by the employer within
one year without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting of Shareholders after his appointment
and shall be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

All the Directors, including INEDs, are subject to retirement by rotation and
are eligible for re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association.
At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at the AGM at least once every three years.
A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act
as a Director throughout the meeting at which he retires. The Directors to
retire by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to ascertain the
number of Directors to retire by rotation) any Director who wishes to retire
and does not offer himself for re-election. Any further Directors so to
retire shall be those who have been the longest in office since their last
re-election or appointment and so that as between the persons who
became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day those to retire
shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by
lot.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for FY2018 are set out in Note
10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management (other than the Directors) whose
particulars are contained in the section headed “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report by band is set out below:

EEREREEEBTM

T N\EUREFEESENHFHFBFER
RAEMBHMRME0-

RIEBEEERTRTAMEXEBISEK &
REBANB(BEFHRINFHM(EERIZAR
ERAFRIEZTLSREEEBN] &
)BT

Number of
Remuneration band (in RM) individuals
FAR (BREAERSE A
Nil to 500,000 2
= £ 500,000

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the FY2018, KPMG PLT was engaged as the Group’s independent
auditors, JWMG CPA Limited was engaged as the independent auditors
for S&P (Hong Kong) Holding Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Apinya Kulchongcharoen, CPA was engaged as the
independent auditor for M. Ace Thailand Co. Ltd. Apart from the provision
of annual audit services, a local affiliate of KPMG PLT also provided non-
audit services in relation to indirect tax matter for the year.

The remuneration paid/payable to all independent auditors and their
affiliates in respect of FY2018 is set out below:

B 2B E &

RZZE-NFHWBRFE KPMGPLTERE &
AEENBYZEM cBERSME
BEHAERARERARARGRZENBRA
S&P (Hong Kong) Holding Limited #) & 37 1% £
B & Apinya Kulchongcharoen © CPAJE B2 A& M.
Ace Thailand Co. Ltd. 8 38 37 #% XAl o Bk 32 4
FEZHERBEI  KPMGPLT—H E 2 H A
ATMRERNREEEMERBESEENIER
H R -

“E-N\FUBREFEENENAEBL
BB EE D RRHFHMESAT

Fee paid/

Services payable RM
BN EAER

IR #% EXAESE
Audit services — Annual audit BERB—FEEZ 407,032
Non-audit services — Indirect tax matter R —HEREEE 50,000
Total BET 457,032
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for FY2018.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

In addition, KPMG PLT have stated in its independent auditors’ report the
responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated financial statements
for FY2018.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks the Company is willing to take in achieving
the Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The Board oversees management in the
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems. The Board acknowledges that such risk
management and internal control systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Company had reviewed its need for an internal
audit function and engaged an external third party professional firm to
carry out such function under the leadership of the Board and the Audit
Committee during FY2018.

During the Year, the Board, through the Audit Committee, has overseen
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group covering all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance as well
as risk management on an ongoing basis. The Board considers that the
Group’s risk management and internal control are adequate and effective.
The Board expects that a review of the risk management and internal
control systems will be performed annually.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong and the
Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside information should
be announced promptly. The procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information are as follows:

° the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong in June 2012;

o the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair
disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of
information to the public through channels such as financial
reporting, public announcements and the Company’s website;

° the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or
inside information; and

o the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs, so that
only the executive Directors, the Company Secretary and the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company are authorised to communicate
with parties outside the Group.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring that reliable and
relevant flow of information is maintained amongst members of the Board
and that all procedures have been adhered to in accordance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Mr. Kwok Siu Man (“Mr. Kwok”) served as the Company Secretary
throughout FY2018.

Mr. Kwok was nominated by Boardroom Corporate Service (HK) Limited
(“Boardroom”) to be the Company Secretary and Boardroom has been
providing certain corporate secretarial services to the Company pursuant
to an engagement letter entered into between the Company and
Boardroom. The primary person at the Company with whom Mr. Kwok
has been contacting in respect of company secretarial matters is the
Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Eugene Kang Hong Ngee.
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Mr. Kwok delivered and attended over 15 hours’ relevant continuous
professional development training during FY2018 pursuant to Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to make proposals or
move resolutions at the AGMs under the memorandum of association of
the Company and the Articles of Association (the “M&A”) or the laws of
the Cayman Islands. Shareholders who wish to make proposals or move
a resolution may, however, convene an extraordinary general meeting (the
“EGM”) in accordance with the “Procedures for Shareholders to convene
an EGM” set out below.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an EGM

According to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company (the “Eligible
Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
require an EGM to be called by the Board or the Company Secretary for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition, including
making proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM.

Eligible Shareholder(s) who wishes to convene an EGM for the purpose
of making proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM must deposit a
written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned (the “Requisitionist(s)”) at the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong (presently at 31/F., 148
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong) for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

The Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned, his/her/their shareholding in the Company, the reason(s) to
convene an EGM and the proposed agenda.
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Following receipt of the Requisition, the identity and shareholding of the
Eligible Shareholder(s) will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong. If the Requisition is found to be proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene an EGM
and/or include the proposal(s) made or the resolution(s) proposed by the
Requisitionist(s) at the EGM within 2 months after the deposit of the
Requisition. On the contrary, if the Requisition has been verified as not in
order, the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of the
outcome and accordingly, the Board will not call for an EGM nor include
the proposal(s) made or the resolution(s) proposed by the Requisitionist(s)
at the EGM.

If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition the Board fails to
proceed to convene such EGM, the Requisitionist(s) himself/herself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquires to
the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them by post to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong (presently at 31/F, 148 Electric Road, North
Point, Hong Kong) or by email to info@spfood.com, for the attention of
the Company Secretary.

Upon receipt of the enquiries, the Company Secretary will forward the
communications relating to:

1. the matters within the Board’s purview to the executive Directors;
2. the matters within a Board committee’s area of responsibility to the
chairman of the appropriate committee; and

3. ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, enquiries and
client complaints to the appropriate management of the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’ communication policy with
the objective of providing the Shareholders with equal and timely access
to information about the Company in order to enable the Shareholders to
exercise their rights in an informed manner and allow them to engage
actively with the Company.

Information will be communicated to the Shareholders through the
Company’s financial reports, circulars, AGMs and EGMs that may be
convened as well as all the published disclosures submitted to the Stock
Exchange.

DIVIDEND POLICY

On 29 March 2019, the Board approved and adopted a revised dividend
policy as follows:

The Company intends to retain all available funds and earnings, if any, to
finance the development and expansion of its business. Any future
determination for the declaration or recommendation of dividends will be
made at the absolute discretion of the Board. It is the policy of the Board,
in considering the payment of dividends, to allow the Shareholders to
participate in the Company’s profits whilst preserving the Company’s
liquidity to capture future growth opportunities.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend, the Board will take into
account, amongst other matters:

(i) the strategies, business cycle, operations, earnings, financial
condition, cash requirements and availability as well as capital
expenditure and future development requirements of the Group;

(i)  the possible effects of the Group’s credit-worthiness, the financial
covenants to which the Group is subject and any restrictions on the
payment of dividends that may be imposed by the Group’s lenders;

(i)  the interests of the Shareholders, the dividend receivable/received
by the Company from its subsidiaries and the taxation
consideration;
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(iv)  the general economic and political conditions and other internal and ~ (iv)  — A& 48 % & BUA AR A & 7] e i AR &=
external factors that may have an impact on the business and ENEEETERBERNTENEM
financial performance of the Group; AE RN A =

(v)  any restrictions under all applicable laws (including the Companies () A @B ZR(BHEHZHEE R

Law of the Cayman lIslands), rules, codes and regulations, the E) A SFRIREE - AREED Tm
accounting policies and financial reporting standards that the MR BUR R T R ,E'J LA K 48
Group has adopted as well as the Articles of Association; and BERAMANIET A E MRS

(vi)  other factors that the Board may consider relevant. Vi ES=SgreRsHEENEMAE-

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time. There is no ZARX R BAFBTRERE - BEREZHE
assurance that a dividend will be proposed, recommended and/or 7~ B LA T ] © %8 ok BE B R - 2 %R

declared in any amount or at any time from time to time. R/REIRKE -
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS HBER XS

There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the Company R=-Z— N\EMBEE AR WAL E
during FY2018. %%XWIEEH 28

A consolidated version of the Company’s constitutional documents is A A G KA S X HNE S RAT D R
available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the HEEXATRAAFTMEILER -
Company.
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The directors (the “Directors”, each a “Director”) of S&P International
Holding Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) their report for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year” or “FY2018”) and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) for the Year (the “Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of its major subsidiaries are set out in Note 14 to the Financial
Statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Discussion and analysis of the business of the Group for the Year are set
out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 8 to 10
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 49 to 56 of this
annual report. The discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance in
the above sections form part of this report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year and the Group’s financial position
as at 31 December 2018 are set out in the Financial Statements on
pages 107 to 208 of this annual report.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) has resolved not to recommend the
payment of any final dividend for the Year.

There is no arrangement that a Shareholder has waived or agreed to
waive any dividend.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the Shareholders’ rights to attend and
vote at the annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) to be
held at 11:00 a.m. on 30 May 2019, Thursday at 27-1, Jalan PJU 5/13,
Dataran Sunway, Kota Damansara, 47810 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul
Ehsan, Malaysia, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Saturday, 25 May 2019 to Thursday, 30 May 2019, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) will be registered. In order to be eligible for attending and
voting at the forthcoming AGM, non-registered Shareholders must lodge
all duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited, Room 2103B, 21/F, 148
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30
p.m. on Friday, 24 May 2019.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group in the form of a comparative table for the last five financial years is
set out on page 2 of this annual report. The summary does not form part
of the Financial Statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

Climate change could influence the food security and food supply chain
in varying extent. Along the food supply chain, energy, water and other
resources are consumed at every step to transport, prepare and
package. In light of this, the Group has taken initiatives that facilitate
adherence of our operations on the environment to relevant laws and
regulations such as Environmental Quality (Industrial Effluent) Regulations
2009 in Malaysia. Additionally, evolving regulatory requirements and
escalating stakeholders’ expectations on environmental issues serve as
the impetus for establishing a systematic and quantitative approach to
manage the resources consumed and environmental emissions.

The Group has also dedicated its effort to review and monitor the
Group’s environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) policies and
practices to ensure compliance with the relevant legal and regulatory
requirements as described in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange” and the “Listing Rules”, respectively).

S&P International Holding Limited
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In addition, the Group is also committed to engaging with its key
stakeholders and operating its business in a fair, responsible and
transparent manner.

Details of the Group’s ESG performance for the Year can be found in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” as set out on pages 17
to 48 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has in place compliance and risk management policies and
procedures, and members of the senior management are delegated with
the continuing obligation to monitor adherence to and compliance with all
significant legal and regulatory requirements by the Group. As far as the
Company is aware, the Group has complied in all material respects with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group during the Year and up to the date
of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors are aware that the Group’s financial condition, results of
operation, businesses and prospects may be affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties. The key risks and uncertainties identified by the
Group are set out as follows:

(i) Price fluctuation in and shortage of raw
materials and perishability of coconuts may
materially and adversely affect business
operations

The coconut-related food manufacturing industry depends on a
sufficient supply of major raw materials, namely coconuts and white
kernels, at commercially reasonably prices. If our suppliers for any
particular raw material are unable or unwiling to meet our
requirements, we could suffer shortages or significant cost
increases. In addition, any shortage or disruption in our supply of
coconuts and other raw materials could affect our performance and
our ability to satisfy the purchase orders of our customers, which
may adversely affect our profitability, results of operations and
financial condition.
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Coconut is a perishable raw material which may deteriorate due to
delivery delays, or poor handling during transportation by suppliers
or logistic partners. This may result in failures to operate production
of coconut products, thereby damaging our business and/or
reputation. If any raw materials or finished products are alleged or
found to be spoiled, contaminated, tampered with, incorrectly
labelled, unsafe or otherwise associated with food safety incidents,
we could be subject to product liability claims, adverse publicity
and regulatory investigation, intervention or penalties or product
returns, any of which may result in decreased profitability as well as
damage to our brands and reputation.

Our industry is subject to changes in legislative
requirements and laws, national health and
safety standards in Malaysia and the
respective jurisdictions, where our products
are sold

The coconut-related food manufacturing industry in Malaysia is
subject to the local food safety laws and regulations. Please refer to
“Regulatory overview” of the prospectus of the Company dated 29
June 2017 (the “Prospectus”) for further details of the relevant
food safety laws and regulations. Failure to meet the government
requirements or any instance of contamination could occur in our
operations or those of distributors or suppliers. This could result in
fines, suspension of operations, loss of production permits, and in
more extreme cases, criminal proceedings against our Group and
our management. Moreover, negative publicity could be generated
from false, unfounded or normal liability claims or limited recalls.
Any of those failures or occurrences could negatively affect our
business and financial performance. The Group is also subject to
stringent legislative requirements and relevant laws in the
jurisdictions where our products are being sold. Any changes in the
foreign government’s policies and measures that are unfavourable
to the industry may have an adverse effect on our production
process and also our sales and profitability.

S&P International Holding Limited
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(iii) Risks of foreign currency fluctuations

We conduct all our operations in Malaysia and our functional
currency is Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”). The sales to our customers
abroad are mainly billed and settled in United States dollars (‘US$”),
and sales to our customers located in Malaysia are billed and
settled in RM. We source most of our packaging and raw materials
locally, which are paid in RM, whereas our coconut milk products
and some of our packaging and raw materials are sourced
overseas and paid in US$ (or other foreign currencies). There can
be no assurance that the exchange rate of RM will remain stable
against US$ (or any other foreign currencies) in the future. Any
significant movement of exchange rates of foreign currencies
against RM may significantly affect our financial condition and
results of operations. In addition, foreign exchange rate fluctuations
in the currencies mentioned above may result in foreign exchange
losses and hence, may have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operations.

For other risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, please refer
to the section headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

On 11 July 2017, the Company completed its IPO by way of a global
offering of 270,000,000 Shares at an issue price of HK$0.48 per Share
and the Shares commenced trading on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on the same day.

The Net Proceeds after deducting the relevant one-off and non-recurring
Listing expenses amounted to approximately HK$90.4 million (equivalent
to approximately RM46.8 million based on Bank Negara Malaysia’s mid-
rate as at 29 December 2017 (being the last trading day of 2017) of
HK$1.00:RM0.51795)) (the “Year End HK$:RM Rate”) as disclosed in
the 2017 Annual Report.
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The Group is in the process of implementing its business strategies as
set out in the Prospectus and has utilised approximately RM26.8 million
of the Net Proceeds as at 31 December 2018 by reference to the Section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus. The
following sets forth a summary of the allocation of the Net Proceeds and
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AEBITEEEBREEMBAOEL K
B BRZ-ZZTE—-—N\F+A=+—HEZ
BHEBRERIARRFTERAEREBERE] —
MBI ALY EESFRADTSHTNMER

(SN

HAER TXHIN-_FT-N\FEF+=_A=

their utilisation as at 31 December 2018. T-HEABRIBEFENDERESAME -
Approximate
Approximate unused amount
actual amount of the Net
Approximate Approximate of the Net Proceeds
original percentage Proceeds as at
allocation of the of the Net utilized as at 31 31 December
Use of Net Proceeds MEBREFERE Net Proceeds Proceeds December 2018 2018
®
—E-N\E§
+=A=+-H R-B-N\&
FRERE FENE BRANMEBRE +=B=+-H
FEEAN FEEN FEHN MBRERE
NBRIBeH BOk ERSE ABRAHNLHE
(RM "milion) %) (RM "milion) (RM "milion)
(AEEXRAED (REBXAT (ABBXRED
%) (%) <) Ex-1)
Expanding and upgrading the production X R EHERE TR
facllities at the Perak Plant EEHRE 35.6 76.0% (21.4) 14.2
Recommissioning of the Johor Plant ZBIMIMELE 4.7 10.0% - 4.7
Advertising and promotion expenses EEREERAS 1.2 2.5% 1.2) =
Investing in new equipment to enhance the B & ¥ % - 125
research and development tHEsEN 1.2 2.5% 0.1) 1.1
General corporate purposes and —RARAEREEES
working capital 41 9.0% @.1) -
Total @zt 46.8 100.0% (26.8) 20.0

The unutilised Net Proceeds will be applied in the manner consistent with
that mentioned in the Prospectus. The Directors are not aware of any
material change to the planned use of proceeds as at the date of this
annual report.

The Net Proceeds in RM were arrived at after taking into account the Year End HK$:RM
Rate. Should there be any further movement in the foreign exchange rate until the actual
utilisation of the Net Proceeds, any upward or downward differences will be taken into
“general corporate purposes and working capital " .
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SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year. Details of the Company’s share capital as at 31 December
2018 are set out in Note 19 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 110 of this
annual report and movements in the reserves of the Company are set out
in Note 19 to the Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVES

At 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as calculated under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, was approximately RM42.6
million.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 58.2%
of the total revenue of the Group for the Year whilst the largest customer
accounted for approximately 36.1% of the total revenue of the Group for
the Year.

The Group’s five largest coconut suppliers accounted for approximately
62.8% of the Group’s total raw material purchases during the Year whilst
the largest coconut supplier accounted for approximately 48.7% of the
total coconut purchases of the Group for the Year.

At all times during the Year, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any Shareholder (who, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the number of
issued Shares) had an interest in any of the five largest suppliers or the
five largest customers of the Group for the Year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who served for FY2018 and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Koon Fook (“Mr. Tang”) (chairman)
Mr. Lee Sieng Poon (“Mr. Lee”) (managing director)

Mr. Yap Boon Teong (“Mr. Yap”)
Ms. Wong Yuen Lee

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)

Mr. Fung Che Wai, Anthony (“Mr. Fung”)
Mr. Chong Yew Hoong (“Mr. Chong”)
Mr. Ng Hock Boon (“Mr. Ng”)

In accordance with article 84(1) of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an AGM at
least once every three years.

Accordingly, Mr. Tang, Mr. Yap and Mr. Fung will retire from office as
Directors at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The profile of the Directors and the senior management of the Group are
set out on pages 11 to 16 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS/
LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three years commencing on the Listing Date,
which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.
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Each of the INEDs has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on the Listing Date,
which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles.

None of the Directors has a service contract or letter of appointment with
the Company, which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group during the Year are
set out in Note 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this annual
report.

Save as disclosed above, no other transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
an entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the Year or as at the
end of the Year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'’S INTEREST

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contracts of significance
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or any contracts of any significance for the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries subsisted at any
time during the Year or as at the end of the Year.

BEBUBTEEFEEHARANLERE
A EmBEREF AP =F S AEE
BRAHTEL A DR =E AR5 HBA
[ = =

MEEFAERAMNGERERBEEEL

EEHMERELRARRIBETAHARAR —
FARNEBECEERERIIN TIUK L
MRS HREK -

ESREHANEXRESR

RAFER AEENBABRTXZFEH
RN R A B 15 MR M E28

B EXHEEEN BEARDAREAEM
B AR ANEBEEBAA L ME =M
EXANERERARAEFTAEAER
MEMR S RHERBEEAARAFER
EAEREIARFERDABR -

ERRRES

BRAFRAMEESN BEARAHEAL
B AR EARAN - B ERER(EE
R ETRAN) S E AR E R R ZER LA
BEXGH MEARRAERKERIEE
fa] Bt BB 2 A) [\ AR 2 &) 3k EL AR AT BT /BB R B $2
HREOTAEESHNAFE NI
AR FERIDABR -



; 8 8 S&P International Holding Limited
/4‘5 Annual Report 2018

Report of the Directors (continued)

§$ -'?E D ()

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 55
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONSINTHE ®KH *H Hﬁi
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND Bz 12 &
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS

ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of the Directors WR-_Z—NE+_-_A=+—B EF LK K
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and A &) & E TBRABRAER T & H BB EBE
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the (FET&E R BB EZPEST1EZ 5 KBS KN
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 ([ % R HEIE &6 ]) EXVER) B9k « 1878
of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”)), which were required: (@) to be RN M EEZPHE : QB BEZSERTE
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 {7l EXVEFE 7 &80 BN B Fl & KN A &) Kk B
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which X iy #E S X B (B HERIE F 5 & H %’i
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (b) KU BBEIE X £ /Es R AE B S

pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register of the % & ): (0)IE 1B B % & 81 & (& 7] 3524678
Company referred to therein; or (c) to be notified to the Company and the pa ﬁ* TE 3% 68 Py 3l AN N &) & =0 1 A9 48 28 500K

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions o Sk(c) R #E LT AR BY BT R 10FT # £ T

by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing 1T AE%gﬁ AT S MEESTR|([E%

Rules (the “Model Code”), were as follows: SEHNDETETEMNE RRNE LT ERD
KRBT -

() Long position in the Shares () RBRGOZHR

Percentage of
Number of shareholding
Shares interest in the

Name of Directors Note Capacity/Nature of interest interested Company
EEERN Frik A& A F

EERE Krat BH REtE RGO E BEBS L

Mr. Tang 1 Interest in a controlled corporation 567,000,000 52.5%

Tang %t & YR A E

Mr. Lee 2 Interest in a controlled corporation 243,000,000 22.5%

Lee %t 4 RELEEES

Notes: HiaE -

1. Mr. Tang, the chairman of the Board and an executive Director, beneficially 1. Tangt £ EEEXFERHUTES  EX
owned 100% of the issued share capital of TYJ Holding Limited (“TYJ”) and he # 75 TYJ Holding Limited ([TYJ]) & #5 & %
was deemed to be interested in 567,000,000 Shares held by TYJ by virtue of TRA - BIEZERBEKS BHKES
the SFO. FATYJF #5567,000,0008% B 17 7 17 B 1 %5 ©

2. Mr. Lee, the managing Director and an executive Director, beneficially owned 2. leet 4k EZHRLERPTES Ex
100% of the issued share capital of Trinity Holding Limited (“Trinity”) and he # A Trinity Holding Limited ([ Trinity |) &
was deemed to be interested in 243,000,000 Shares held by Trinity. 8B B 1T R AN o 1 B AR B R Trinity BT 1

243,000,000 & B D R HE B A 25 ©

3. The percentages of shareholding interest in the Company shown in the table 3. EFRETHARARETE S L TIR =
above are calculated on the basis of 1,080,000,000 Shares in issue as at 31 T-NE+_A=Z+—HBHHE BT
December 2018. 1,080,000,000 8% A% 1 2 E 7T H ©
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Long position in the shares of associated (i)
corporation

REBZERGZHFR

Name of Percentage of

associated Capacity/ Number and class shareholding

Name of Director corporation Nature of interest  of share interested interest
BEEREEN

EspE HE LB AR B REME RHBE REH KREBSL

Mr. Tang TYJ Beneficial owner 1 ordinary share 100%

Tang 5t & TYJ EREAA 1ACE 8 R 100%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required: (a) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he/she was taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), (b) pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register of the Company referred to
therein, or (c) pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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“A=t—B BMEEEHLARFE
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B (EERBSRBE R EXVE) &
Befn - HEBMDABEEZEFHEE (@
RIEFE SR AEERGIEXVEBET R8D
BBZR A& AR A ) K B 32 BT A R SOR
RBEREBEISLBEKGA B K
XEEFESBRREENREIXR)
OIRERE 7 R E RO £ 352K As
BEZGAAAAREL MO EE K
KR HORERETRAMEAR
AR R FTH ERBOR A
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than a Director or the chief executive of the
Company) and entities had interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO:

S&P International Holding Limited

Report of the Directors (continued)
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HHi
=
W
Bk
S
S
i

R-ZE-NFE+-_A=+t—H HEZFH
RIFTHE  THAL(MNBREARRESRTHE
ETRAB)RERBNEMN RAEABRD S %
BREE 5 R B E R 5E 336 R AR AR
RAFFFEECMOERIOLS

Percentage of

Number of  shareholding
Shares interest in the
Name of Shareholders Note Capacity/Nature of interest interested Company
BEREREN FRAG A2 H]
IR R A B fied B REHEME BRHEA BEBDL
TYJ 1 Beneficial owner 567,000,000 52.5%
TVJ BEHERA
Ms. Yeow Geok Tiang (“Ms. Yeow”) 1 Interest of spouse 567,000,000 52.5%
Yeow Geok TiangZ £ ([ Yeow & £ |) P 48 4 =
Trinity 2 Beneficial owner 243,000,000 22.5%
Trinity ExnlEEA
Ms. Goh Soo Cheng (“Ms. Goh”) 2 Interest of spouse 243,000,000 22.5%
Goh Soo Cheng % 1= ([Goh Z % |) Bic (8 7 &1
Notes: Hiazx -
1. TYJ was beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Tang, the husband of Ms. Yeow. By 1. TYJHYeowZ T K TangE £ BEX 2 EH A °

virtue of the SFO, Ms. Yeow was deemed to be interested in the Shares held and
deemed to be held by Mr. Tang.

2. Trinity was beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Lee, the husband of Ms. Goh. By
virtue of the SFO, Ms. Goh was deemed to be interested in the Shares held and
deemed to be held by Mr. Lee.

3. The percentages of shareholding interest in the Company shown in the table above are
calculated on the basis of 1,080,000,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2018.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, so far as the
Directors or chief executive of the Company are aware of, no other
persons (other than a Director or the chief executive of the Company) or
entities had any interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares, which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein.

RIEEH K BB YeowK 3 18 & R Tang
EEMBFABERFEORD P HEES -

2. Trinty fGoh X T K Klee e A B 2 EHH ©
BREZHRBEGEH  Gonk WM AR Leek &
FiFAME RS ENRORERER -

3. ERBTOARAREAOLNE T N\F+
Z—A=+—B#®E%#171,080,000,000 8% i& 5 Z &

Y -
BREXHIBEEN RZZE-NEF+A

=t+t—B BREFHAARAEIBTBRAR
Pra MIEEMAL(ESHARAEEST
BABEKRIN BRI BB+ %
BREESFRBEMRIIEXVEEE2 %37 #8
BXEATRENEASIREXRBEESF R
HIE RSB 336 IR AR AW SR A B B iC 8%
RERMOERIORE -
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company during
the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 23 June 2017 (the “Adoption Date”), the Shareholders approved
and conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) to enable the Company to grant options to eligible participants
as incentives and rewards for their contribution to the Group. The Share
Option Scheme became effective on the Listing Date and no options
have been granted since then. As at 31 December 2018, there were no
outstanding options and no options were exercised or cancelled or
lapsed during the Year.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme:

1. Purpose:

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme prepared in
accordance with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and is established
to recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the Eligible
Participants (as defined in paragraph 2 below) had or may have
made to the Group. The Share Option Scheme will provide the
Eligible Participants with an opportunity to have a personal stake in
the Company with the view to achieving the following objectives:

(i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going business
relationship with the Eligible Participants whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group.
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Participants:

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to the
following persons (collectively the “Eligible Participants”) to
subscribe for such number of new Shares as the Board may
determine at an exercise price as the Board may determine in
accordance with the rules of the Share Option Scheme:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i)  any directors (including INEDs) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries; and

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers, distributors
and such other persons who in the sole opinion of the Board
will contribute or have contributed to the Company or any of
its subsidiaries.

Total number of Shares available for issue:

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed
108,000,000 Shares, representing 10% of the total number of
issued Shares as at the Listing Date.

No option has been granted under the Share Option Scheme since
the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2018. Accordingly, the
number of Shares available for issue upon exercise of options that
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 108,000,000,
representing 10% of the total number of issued Shares as at the
date of this annual report.

S&P International Holding Limited
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4. Maximum entitlement of each participant:

(i)

Subject to paragraph (i) below, the total number of Shares
issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company (including both
exercised and outstanding options) to each Eligible
Participant in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at the date of
grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit
shall be subject to:

(@ the issue of a circular by the Company containing the
identity of the Eligible Participant, the numbers of and
terms of the options to be granted (and the options
previously granted to such Eligible Participant), the
information as required under Rules 17.02(2)(d) and the
disclaimer required under 17.02(4) of the Listing Rules;
and

(b) the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting
and/or other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time with such Eligible Participant
and his/her close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) (or his/her associates if the Eligible Participant is
a connected person (as defined in the Listing Rules)) of
the Company abstaining from voting.

The maximum entitlement of each INED or substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company,
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) in the 12-month period up to and including such date
of grant shall not exceed:

— in aggregate over 0.1% (or such other percentage as
may from time to time provided under the Listing Rules)
of the number of the Shares in issue; and

— an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million (or such
other sum as may from time to time provided under the
Listing Rules), where the value shall be based on the
official closing price of the Shares on the date of each
grant.
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If the Board proposes to grant options to any of the persons
or entities above-mentioned, which will result in the number
of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person or entity in excess
of the above limit(s), such further grant of options shall be
subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and the
approval of Shareholders in general meeting on a poll, at
which all core connected persons (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company shall abstain from voting in favour,
and/or such other requirements as prescribed under the
Listing Rules from time to time.

Period during which the options must be
exercised to subscribe for Shares:

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date on which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the
expiry of 10 years from that date or such shorter exercise period as
the Board may in its absolute discretion determine in relation to the
grant of such options. No option may be exercised more than 10
years after it has been granted.

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised:

There is no minimum period for which an option granted must be
held before it can be exercised except otherwise imposed by the
Board.

Amount payable on application or acceptance
of the option and the period within which
payments or calls must or may be made:

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date of
offer, upon payment of HK$1 per grant.

Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price for the options that may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion, save that such price must be at least the
highest of:

(i) the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which
must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the
business of dealing in securities;
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(i)  the average of the official closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and

(i) the nominal value of a Share.

9. Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme:

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
commencing on 11 July 2017 and ending on the tenth anniversary
of the Adoption Date (both days inclusive), subject to earlier
termination by the Company in general meeting or by the Board.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any Director or their respective associates nor was the Company and any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, the Group did
not enter into any related party transaction that falls under the definition
of one-off connected transaction or continuing connected transaction as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION

The Group believes that the remuneration package to its employees is in
line with local industries. It offers its employees group hospitalisation and
personal accident insurance. The Group also offers its employees an
incentive bonus scheme which encourages their individual performance
and then to contribute to their departmental performance as well.
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The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and approved by the
remuneration committee of the Board, having regard to factors, including
remuneration paid by comparable companies, time commitment, job
duties and responsibilities in respect of the relevant positions. The
Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme, details of which are
set out under the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report
above.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid individuals
in the Group during the Year are set out in Notes 10 and 11 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

During the Year, there was no arrangement under which any Director had
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem its Shares listed on the Stock Exchange
nor did the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of
such Shares during the Year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group has not made any charitable donations in
excess of HK$10,000 (2017: HK$10,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer
new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating elements of
good corporate governance in the management structures and internal
control procedures of the Company so as to achieve effective
accountability. The Company is committed to the view that the Board
should include a balanced composition of executive Directors and INEDs
so that there is a strong independent element on the Board which can
effectively exercise independent judgement.
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The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code as contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules (the “CG Code”) as its own code of corporate governance.

During the Year, the Company had complied with all of the applicable
code provisions of the CG Code. For details, please refer to the “Corporate
Governance Report” which is set out on pages 57 to 78 of this annual
report.

The audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”), consisting
of all three INEDs, namely Mr. Fung (chairman of the Audit Committee),
Mr. Chong and Mr. Ng, is responsible for reviewing the Company’s
corporate governance policies and the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code and will make relevant recommendations to the Board as and
when required.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as its code of conduct governing the
Directors’ transactions of listed securities of the Company. All of the
Directors has confirmed, upon a specific enquiry made by the Company,
that he/she had complied with the Model Code during the FY2018.

INDEPENDENCE OF INEDs

The Company has received from each of its INEDs a written annual
confirmation of independence, and the Company considers that each of
them is independent and has met the independence guidelines as set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

INTEREST OF DIRECTORS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the Year and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors or their respective close associates had interests in businesses
which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Pursuant to a deed of non-competition dated 23 June 2017 and
executed by TYJ and Mr. Tang (the “Deed of Non-competition”), each
of TYJ and Mr. Tang has undertaken to the Company that it/he will not
engage in, and shall procure its/his close associates (other than members
of the Group) not to engage in, any business which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.
Details of the Deed of Non-competition have been disclosed in the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — Deed of
Non-competition” of the Prospectus.

The Company has received from TYJ and Mr. Tang an annual
confirmation that it/he has fully complied with its/his obligations under the
Deed of Non-competition. The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the confirmation and not being aware of the occurrence of any
event which led to the non-compliance of the Deed of Non-competition,
they were satisfied that each of TYJ and Mr. Tang had complied with and
enforced the provisions of the Deed of Non-competition during the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float of the issued Shares (i.e.
at least 25% of the issued Shares being held by the public) as required
under the Listing Rules, throughout the Year and thereafter up to the
date of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognizes that its employees are the valuable assets for the
Group’s continuous development. Thus, it provides medical insurance
coverage to employees who are retained after the probation period. In
order to enhance overall efficiency, employee loyalty and retention,
employees of the Group are required to attend orientation sessions when
they first join the Group and may attend other training courses held onsite
or externally.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme to recognise and
motivate contributions of its employees. Further details regarding the
Share Option Scheme are set out in the paragraphs headed “Share
Option Scheme” above.

S&P International Holding Limited

Report of the Directors (continued)
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The Group provides high quality coconut related products to its
customers from both private sector and public sector to fulfil their
immediate and long-term needs. The Group also communicates with its
customers regularly to maintain close relationship with them.

During the Year, there was no material or significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers as the Group has been maintaining fair and
cooperative relationships with them.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

As required by the Malaysian law, the Group makes contributions to the
state pension scheme, the Employees Provident Fund (the “EPF”), a
social security institution formed according to the Employees Provident
Fund Act 1991 which provides for the retirement benefits for all local
employees. Both the employer and employee are required to make
contributions into the employee’s individual account in the EPF at a
specified percentage of the employee’s monthly income. As at the date
of this annual report, the Group is in compliance with this requirement.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles and subject to the applicable laws and
regulations, every Director, the independent auditor, the company
secretary or other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they or any of them may sustain or incur by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices.

The Company has taken appropriate insurance coverage in respect of
Directors’ and officers’ liability for the Year.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares. If the Shareholders
are unsure about the taxation implications of purchasing, holding,
disposing of, dealing in or exercising of any rights in relation to the
Shares, they are advised to consult their professional advisers.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract (except for the service contracts of the executive Directors)
concerning the management or administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or
existed during the Year.

IMPORTANT EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE
YEAR

Except as disclosed in note 33 to the Financial Statements, no important
event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the Year and up
to the date of this annual report.

REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL RESULTS

The Audit Committee had reviewed this annual report (including the
Financial Statements) and the annual results announcement of the
Company for the Year and had submitted the same to the Board for
approval. Members of the Audit Committee are of the opinion that the
Financial Statements, the results announcement and this annual report
have been prepared in compliance with the applicable accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory provisions and that
adequate disclosure has been made.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
The Financial Statements have been audited by KPMG PLT.
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint

KPMG PLT as the external auditors of the Company until the conclusion
of the next AGM and to authorise the Board to fix their remuneration.

On behalf of the Board

Tang Koon Fook
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019

S&P International Holding Limited
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Independent Auditors’ Report
15 7 i BB 1R

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF S&P INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of S&P
International Holding Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 107 to 208.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our auditors’ report. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.
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Key Audit Matters

FREFEXSEH

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, FAEEZEBIIIRIE S S 7 B 2 HE - &
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial ARNEEGAMBEHRE I ERRAEE S
statements for the current year. These matters were addressed inthe B - ZEZHE I AR EEEXEBEEGEAS B
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as awhole, ZFHEX N FH ELEEERETEE  LES
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate T @z EEEIREHEBER -

opinion on these matters.

Valuation of inventories

FEZEE

Refer to Note 3(g) — Significant accounting policies: Inventories; Note 16 — Inventories.

FLHMESQ - EASFER : F8  WE16—FE -

The key audit matter
BRERSER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEEERPHNEERE

The Group held inventories which comprises packaging and
raw materials, unpacked finished goods and finished goods
with an aggregate carrying amount of RM25,330,420 as at
the end of the reporting period.

EEEARNBERARFELFERERBERRME - KR8
FERMRER D #BREER25330420FRAE L

==

5 °

The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted
average method. The primary raw materials is coconuts,
which is a commodity, and its cost generally affected by
markets factors, such as price fluctuations, market supply
and demand, logistics and transportation costs. The cost of
coconuts is adjusted with anticipated wastages and losses in
the production process in order to derive the inventory
standard costs. The inventory standard costs are affected by
the extraction yield from the coconuts, which is dependent
on the maturity and quality of the coconuts. As a result, the
inventory standard costs used by the Group may be
incorrect.
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This assessment required significant judgement and
estimation by the Group. Accordingly, we identified the
valuation of inventories (other than packaging material) as a
key audit matter.

WLIEF AR EREELERAE RGG  - Bt &
EEBFECHEBEMHRINBINREREZS
I8 o

In this area, our audit procedures include:
EzrE BECERREFEE:

. Obtained an understanding of and assessed the
design and implementation of management’s key
internal controls over the processes of determining
the inventory standard costs.

e TEHAIMEEEUHECFERERAZER
Z FABEA ED R 2 BRAT BRI o

° Assessed the historical accuracy of arriving at the
inventory standard costs.

s HHEBRTEERERAZESL BRI

° Agreed the cost of raw materials to third party
supplier invoices on a sampling basis.

s MERBERAF=-"FTHEBRHEZIBEZZHER
B -

o Challenged the reasonableness of the key inputs
within the inventory standard costs and the evidence
supporting the underlying assumptions used by the
Group by comparing to the underlying records.
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
annual report and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the annual report and, in doing so, consider
whether the annual report is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the
annual report, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the internal control of the Group.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that gives a true
and fair view.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the current year and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our auditors’ report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Other Matter

This report is made solely to the shareholders of the Company, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any
other person for the content of this report.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Sia Chin Hoe.

KPMG PLT

Chartered Accountants

Level 10, KPMG Tower

8 First Avenue, Bandar Utama
47800 Petaling Jaya

Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia

Date : 29 March 2019
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Level 10, KPMG Tower

8 First Avenue, Bandar Utama
47800 Petaling Jaya

Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income

ok b2 mka

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RM RM
BRADR BRAED
<HE °H
Note Restated
M &t ]
Revenue U &= 4 79,989,035 96,231,559
Cost of sales $HE KA (54,164,489) (65,029,580)
Gross profit ER 25,824,546 31,201,979
Other income H g A 5 490,483 652,722
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEHAXZ (4,515,258) (5,647,423)
Administrative expenses TERAX (10,828,866) (20,012,924)
Other expenses Hfth B 52 (2,624,345) (1,480,735)
Profit from operations Feg— gl 8,346,560 4,713,619
Finance income B Hs Uz A 6 832,224 189,953
Finance costs B 75 AR AR 7 (274,621) (376,973
Net finance income/(costs) MBEBA(RAE) BHE 557,603 (187,020)
Profit before taxation R B A 5 F 8,904,163 4,526,599
Income tax expense Frisfim X 8 (2,609,280) (4,337,899)
Profit for the year FREA 9 6,294,883 188,700
Other comprehensive income/(expense) for FREMEEW A~
the year, net of tax (B) (MBRFLE)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to HiEnEgEN L EE
profit or loss: BmZEE -
Foreign currency translation differences SN E E R 889,813 (2,748,679)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for £ARAZEW A (BX)
the year PR 7,184,696 (2,559,979)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to: LT ALEERER
(B#8) :
Owners of the Company KRABHEA A 6,295,729 188,700
Non-controlling interest FEIE IR = (846) -
Profit for the year FREA 6,294,883 188,700
Total comprehensive income/(expense) LTALTESAZEBAS
attributable to: (BAR) 4% :
Owners of the Company VIN/NETEZF SN 7,185,725 (2,559,979)
Non-controlling interest FE5 A% HE 2 (1,029) —
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for £RZEW A (B X)
the year PR 7,184,696 (2,559,979)
Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary BERETEREAREEER
share (expressed in Sen): F (AR R) ¢ 12 0.58 0.02

The notes on pages 112 to 208 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

F12E208A M ENREMHRR A
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Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

tn o Nl i it R e

As at 31 December 2018 R=—_ZE—N\F+_-_A=+—H

Assets
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Goodwill
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Inventories
Current tax asset
Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital
Share premium
Reserves

Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of
the Company

Non-controlling interest

Total equity

31.12.2018 31.12.2017 01.01.2017
—E-NE —E—+F —E—+F
+=—A=+—-H8H +=-—A=+—8H —A—H
RM RM RM
BEXATESH ERADSE ERALSE
Note Restated
k=3 Epdl
EE
IERBEE
ME  BE LB 13 49,839,306 24,746,533 21,666,828
GES 15 = = =
B IE A B 21 - 36,304 49,464
49,839,306 24,782,837 21,716,292
RBEE
s 16 25,330,420 30,315,062 19,924,361
BNEARE I & B 318,577 656,665 —
B 5 KEMER
= 1E 17 20,235,346 18,289,111 22,240,123
B4 RESZEY 18 46,089,253 59,425,300 10,115,057
91,973,596 108,686,138 52,279,541
EE#E 141,812,902 133,468,975 73,995,833
EEkasE
R
A% 7 19 5,941,706 5,941,706 —
f&% 17 & 8 58,707,916 58,707,916 —
1 58,012,702 50,826,977 53,386,956
KATEZRERENS
EREEE
122,662,324 115,476,599 53,386,956
FERER 91,832 = —
ERpE 122,754,156 115,476,599 53,386,956
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Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position (continuea)

f o Wil i th R 26 ()

As at 31 December 2018 R=-_Z—N\F+-_A=+—H

31.12.2018 31.12.2017 01.01.2017
—E-N\F —E—tF —E—+F
+=BA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H —H—H
RM RM RM
BERAESH BRATSE BRATSHE
Note Restated
g3 EE]
Liabilities =K
Non-current liabilities FEREBAE
Loans and borrowings EFRER 20 2,906,435 3,404,583 3,798,876
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBAE 21 1,487,541 2,249,292 2,649,900
4,393,976 5,653,875 6,448,776
Current liabilities RBas
Loans and borrowings ERRER 20 463,261 1,396,096 3,259,833
Trade and other payables B 5 KEMER
| 22 13,774,954 8,931,171 9,073,811
Contract liabilities AHEE 23 392,000 292,278 —
Current tax liabilities BIEAR A & & 34,555 1,718,956 1,826,457
14,664,770 12,338,501 14,160,101
Total liabilities EEHEE 19,058,746 17,992,376 20,608,877
Total equity and liabilities EaRkBEEE 141,812,902 133,468,975 73,995,833
Total assets less current EEHERRBERS
liabilities 127,148,132 121,130,474 59,835,732

*

The balance represents amount less than RM1. HEHRIELRIBRALRSHEZRA -

EFEeN_T-NAF=ZA-_t+tHLAHAER
BT -

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29
March 2019.

Tang Koon Fook
Director
Tang Koon Fook
gF

The notes on pages 112 to 208 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

Lee Sieng Poon
Director
Lee Sieng Poon

EF

F12E208A M ENZREFMH IR A
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Changes in Equity

ey

HEH®

Consolidated Statement of

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—T—\F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ANAEERRER
Non-
Share Share Other  Translation controlling
capital premium reserve reserve  Retained interest Total
(Note 19(b))  (Note 19(c)(i)) (Note 19(c)(ii)) (Note 19(c)fiii))  earnings Total (Note 14.1) equity
[N R EE Htt it BERE FERER
(BeE19i)  (BEE190c)i) (BEE19)i) (Ka19c)ii) HRERF @ (HF141) BER
RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM
SRAED SRED BRES BRET BRED BREE  SREE SRAER
2F F *F *H 5 *F & *F
At 1 January 2017 R-B-+5-A4
—f —* = 150,200 3,356 53,233,400 53,386,956 — 53,386,956
Foreign currency translation BINEBRNERE
differences for foreign operations =8 - = - (2,748,679 - (2,748,679 - (2,748,679
Other comprehensive expense FREM2HRS
for the year - - - (2,748,679 - (2,748,679 - (2,748,679
Profit for the year, restated FREF B2 - - - - 188,700 188,700 - 188,700
Total comprehensive expense EREEMIAR
for the year - - - (2,748,679) 188,700  (2,559,979) — (2,559,979
Contributions by and distributions to A2\ a]# B A 11 & J
owners of the Company VAvd
— Shares issued under initial public ~ — B XA EEH
offering, net of share issuance M {3 %47
expenses (MB R
BITRY) 1,485,427 63,164,195 - - — 64,649,622 — 64,649,622
— Capitalisation of share premium ~ — &7 E &AL 4,456,279 (4,456,279) = = . - - _
At 31 December 2017, restated R-ZB-+E+=A
=+-A8EJl 5,941,706 58,707,916 150,200 (2,745,323) 53,422,100 115,476,599 — 115,476,599
At 1 January 2018, as previously WRZ-Z-N\FE-A
reported —B EHEH 5,941,706 58,707,916 150,200 (2,745,323) 53,644,231 115,698,730 — 115,698,730
Adjustment on initial application of ~ #]5 fiE 3 EL P2 81 7%
IFRS 15, net of tax (Note 30) ERBE155K
fEHE AR - Mik
BB (:E30) - - - - (222,131) (222,131) - (222,131)
At 1 January 2018, restated R=Z-NE-A
—-B 85 5,941,706 58,707,916 150,200 (2,745,323) 53,422,100 115,476,599 — 115,476,599
Foreign currency translation MEBENEHRE
differences for foreign operations =8 - - - 889,996 - 889,996 (183) 889,313
Other comprehensive income FREMPERA
for the year - - - 889,996 - 889,996 (183) 889,813
Profit for the year FREM = - - - 6295729 6295729 (846) 6,294,883
Total comprehensive income FREAURALE
for the year - - - 889,996 6,295,729 7,185,725 (1,029) 7,184,696
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 29) U B& — R Fii B A 7]
(Htit29) - - - - - - 92,861 92,861

At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\E+ZA
=+-H 5,941,706 58,707,916 150,200 (1,855,327) 59,717,829 122,662,324 91,832 122,754,156
* The balance represents amount less than RM1. * HERIELIBRAGESEHE ZHRA -

F112E208E 2 Wi Dz EH Kk 2A
R EB S ©

The notes on pages 112 to 208 are an integral part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-Z

Rolalas

Cash flows from operating activities

RETHMBRERE

Profit before tax W B4 A e A

Adjustments for: BT EBEL % -

Bad debts written off 358 AR 0 8 9
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - -BEMIBINE 13
Deposit paid for a land acquisition written off B A5 - 3 W B 12 < 8 9
Finance costs B 75 B AR 7
Finance income B4 A 6
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEVE BMEMREHNEEFEE 9
Net loss on unrealised foreign exchange differences REBRINEZBERTFRE 9
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 9
Plant and equipment written off B Bk 5% 8 i8R 9
Operating profit before changes in working capital &#E&£# AL RER

Change in inventories FEEE)

Change in trade and other receivables
Change in trade and other payables

%%&Eﬁtﬁ%”ﬂl%ﬁﬁﬁiﬂ
BH5NEMENFIAED

Change in contract liabilities ERBEES)
Cash generated from operations KEEH Fﬁ e
Income tax paid EENIZIES

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash and cash

REEDHFEB (FRRLSTHE

REFHFBRERE
WEME  BFE R&E
WE-—ENERE - HREKREN

equivalents acquired RekBeEEY 29
Interest received 2 W F 8
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment & #) % MERERERERE
Net cash used in investing activities REFEHMARSER
Cash flows from financing activities MEIHMEEESRE
Capital element of finance leases paid BENRERENERT S

Interest and other borrowing costs paid
Interest element of finance leases paid
Proceeds from new bank loans

Proceeds from shares issued under initial public offering,

net of issuance expenses
Repayments of bank loans

B FL8 K KA 8 B AR
ENBEEENF SIS
FILRITERPAE A

1R IB B KD BB BT R M S
IR (R BAITR D)
RITERER

Net cash (used in)/from financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

MEED (A, FEREFE

REeRRSESEMHORD), 1Em
FH

R—A—H” E’\Jﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%

MEREBNF

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

RT=-ZA=+-HHRERES
£EY 18

The notes on pages 112 to 208 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

BE D o

—NF+ZA=+—RILFE

2018
—EB-N\F
RM

BREZSE
Note
Kt F

8,904,163

12,505
2,172,761
196,020
274,621

(832,224)

2,122,922
515,513
19,476

13,385,757
4,984,642
(2,137,431)
2,224,847
99,722

18,557,537
(4,681,040)

13,876,497

(27,285,010)

85,021
832,224

(26,367,765)

(274,621)

(1,430,983)

(1,705,604)

(14,196,872)
50,425,300
860,825

46,089,253

‘ 111

2017

—tF

RM
BRAELHE
Restated

Edl

4,526,599

9,347
2,013,191
376,973
(189,953)
53,916
1,052,191

7,842,264
(10,390,701)
3,131,874
(166,412)
202,278

709,303
(5,489,513)

(4,780,210)

(5,192,185)

189,953
45,373

(4,956,859)

(25,083)
(372,756)
4,217)
6,913,000

64,649,622
(7,146,352)

64,014,214

54,277,145
8,115,462
(2,967,307)

59,425,300

F2E208B 2 MEFZEYBRER A
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

S&P International Holding Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law,
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman lIslands as an exempted company with limited liability on
10 November 2016.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in manufacturing and distribution of coconut cream powder, low fat
desiccated coconut and other related products. The Company’s
shares were listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange on 11
July 2017.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual IFRSs, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”). These financial statements also
comply with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are set out in Note
&

The IASB has issued a number of new and revised IFRSs. For
the purpose of preparing these financial statements, the
Group has adopted all applicable new and revised IFRSs for
the current and prior accounting periods, except for any new
standards or interpretations that will be effective for the
accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The
new and revised accounting standards, amendments and
interpretations issued that will be effective for the accounting
period beginning on or after 1 January 2019 are set out
below. Note 3 provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected
in these financial statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements

NEER

BEEBRERARTARRADR-F
—RF+—RA+EEHREHSRER
EBE - NARN—FEIREH(BHEE
KAERT) £228 R AR M KL B
BReBRAFA -

ARA R —AREERAF - AR A
REMBRAR(SBIAEE]) T2
BREERDHBER KEBE R
HitbHBAEMR - ARABROR =F —
TtFELA+T - BARBRAERLET -

m BB %

(a) &HBH

% F M B ®RERITIRE B E R R
B % B 75 R 5 28 R (T B R B 75
SEADRE - BRMBREE
AlepRRER et EAERe (R
REFEABES)BONME
i R E B B R S s R B
et ER(TEReF &R &
BB -RERBERRNATAER
RAMGHIRERE AR T BB
ERZMBERAAES EHRA
B 3 PR 4 BB A5 5L o 7N 5 [ T BR A
MEBERETHRRENMES -

BERet L BEEECRHZE
MARKEBREY B HREE
Al- AR EZEMBRERME -
AEBERASTHREALEES
At B BR A P B B A R HT AT M A
ERTBIFR M B mE LR R
E-NF-A—BHZEFABEN
R GOk Gl 23
BRI - EBRHAEHR=—F— 1
F-A—BgzKABNETH
£ B H AT R B AT @ R &
Al BRI R BEH N X - M
SHINAMFERAEAKEBR
By bt B B i 2 BUR B B R R P
RRER M BE S HREAEE
BEREBHEF
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(a)

Statement of compliance (continued)

Effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019
o IFRS 16, Leases

° IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

° Amendments to IFRS 3, Business Combinations (Annual
Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle)

o Amendments to IFRS 9, Financial Instruments —
Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

° Amendments to IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements (Annual
Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle)

° Amendments to IAS 12, Income Taxes (Annual
Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle)

° Amendments to IAS 19, Employee benefits — Plan
Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

° Amendments to IAS 23, Borrowing Costs (Annual
Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle)

° Amendments to IAS 28, Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures — Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

2. B E%E g

(a)

EHRBH@W

ey | el = el = 17
ZERBHNEFTHBEX
e BB BHMEEDFE6

e HHREVBHEREBZES
F 235 - AT 1E B R HE AT
EE

s BEMBRESENFEIFRD
1B EHAS (BB H
EEA—FE—RFEZ

T FHRAFRNE)

e BERMBEREEFIRM
il 2@ T A - AFE
718 B9 1€ Bl AZ S HF 1

s HEEVMBHREEANFEIIR
WIEET  HEZH (ERRA
BHREEA —FE—OFZ
—E—+FAENFEHS
#)

. Bl PR & 5 2 B 51257 B9 {5
5] BT F (BB BT 7% 3 &
EA—FE—RHFE L —
+ F B F R )

o EIE®E LA F19% G
B BEEF — HBE
BT R E

e BEEgFERFE2BHMIE
2] AR A (BB BT R
ERA - FE—RFEF-F
—-EF R F )

. BEEIEMBBRME
S RERBEAARASE
RF -~ RBEAFAREE

R AR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continuea)
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2. ImBLEE 4
(@ &HREBH@

(@) Statement of compliance (continued)

Effective for accounting periods beginning on

or after 1 January 2020

° Amendments to IFRS 3, Business Combinations —
Definition of a Business

° Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of Financial
Statements and IAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors — Definition of
Material

Effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2021
° IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

Effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after a date yet to be confirmed

\\—v—gﬂi H_Hj
ZERBNESTHBEER
e BERFBHREEREIFRD

BF] RBEAH — BHA
E &

e HEEREFEAFIFENE
R BHRENZ SR E
B #ﬁ RIE8% » @it
& BEIBA N EE R EE
—EKE’JAE%

AZEBE-_—F—HF—HH

ZERBRVETTHEEN

. B PR BF 7 3R & % R 17
o RS A

=

=

REARERB RN 2 RB
Zl“EI’J THIE AR

. Amendments to IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial By B E?I %S 2R E 1058

Statements and |AS 28, Investments in Associates and WIEE] AR EHRE K
Joint Ventures — Sale or Contribution of Assets Re it E R E28HR KE
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture REBE NG REENE —
RELZHABELNAKA
ERAZEAMNEELEH
FE
The Group will apply the abovementioned accounting AREBRHERN L ANEREBH %
standards, amendments and interpretations that are Al - igsT kR ELEREERZEZE 25t
applicable to the Group when they become effective. AR BRI MR-

The initial application of the accounting standards, VFFERZESTER 2B EET
interpretations or amendments are not expected to have any BT eHAEEANEHME BT H;ﬁ ]
material financial impacts to the current period and prior MBS RIERTFRENT B E
period financial statements of the Group except as mentioned ME N X T B AD :

below:
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(a)

Statement of compliance (continued)
IFRS 16, Leases

IFRS 16 replaces the guidance in IAS 17, Leases, IFRIC 4,
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC
15, Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC 27, Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease.

IFRS 16 introduces a single, on balance sheet lease
accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-
use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset
and a lease liability representing its obligations to make lease
payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-term
leases and leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting
remains similar to the current standard which continues to be
classified as finance or operating lease.

The Group has assessed that the new standard is not likely
to have significant impact on how it recognises leases.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The Company and other investment holding subsidiaries
incorporated in the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin Islands
and Hong Kong have their functional currencies in Hong
Kong Dollar (‘HK$”) and subsidiaries established in Malaysia
and Singapore have their functional currencies in Malaysian
Ringgit (‘RM”) and Singapore Dollar (“SGD”) respectively. As
the Group mainly operates in Malaysia, RM is used as the
presentation currency of the financial statements.

2.

im BB XE ()

(a)

(b)

EREH@
B PR BY S 3R & % Bl 516
woMHE

B R B 75 ¥ o 22 R 55 16 55 AX (K
REstERFE175%  HE - BE
MBERERBZEGFAN B
E-BLebBeHE »i
FHREEGREEIN  FLEH
E-ZprheBERHLRESR
BE27TH - AL RBEELRET
AR5 EE A5 5]

B B 7 o o5 22 A S 16 5% B A
ASIA—HEERBERANEE
SRR AEARBRREMRE
AEEEENRMNSEREEE
MREREBETHENREKAH
ERE-HEHBEEMEEEYD
mAWHEEARA#H R - HEAR
AAREDEESENBELARELL
EHERRITEAMEMU -

N A R R N = o S
MEREEELEEATE -

ATEREE
MBBRBELRALERE -

DERZIER

ARRIERASES REBEX
HEMBBEAMALNEMIKRE
ZIRMTB A RIAET(ET))E
RENEEE  MRNFRAE R
R 0358 B ST H B B X A 0 Bl A 5
KAGSHE(HRAZSE] R
st (MR TDIERESE
MEEERE ARNAREERHE
BROEDEEES  WHERAE
CERBEMBRERNZNE
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2. MEEE g

(d) fh &K F 6 E A

(d) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected.

There are no significant areas of estimation uncertainty and
critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements other than as disclosed below:

Valuation of inventories

The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted
average method. The primary raw materials is coconuts,
which is a commodity, and its cost generally affected by
markets factors, such as price fluctuations, market supply
and demand, logistics and transportation costs. The cost of
coconuts is adjusted with anticipated wastages and losses in
the production process in order to derive the inventory
standard costs. The inventory standard costs are affected by
the extraction yield from the coconuts, which is dependent
on the maturity and quality of the coconuts. This assessment
required significant judgement and estimation. The carrying
amount of the inventories is disclosed in Note 16.

BREBRMBREENREY
BRATEEEREBIELHE - #
AR % FHE - mE R
BRETESFBRERN LA
ERNWEE AE BWARRAX
S -BEBRGLERNKE RN A::':‘HE
e

B REEBRREFETUR
7] o BRT AR HIERT RME R fh 5t
MEIR R AR EHRRER -

BTXAEEEN RAGTR
RE MG TARERR AR
B I 48 AT AR B X002 B A R
RTHEANEHEENEATE

FEzZME
GFERAFEAMEFTSETE -
IE%MH%W% EAWE&-
KABRESEEBEMBEREFE
mf%&@ misHERFR -
MR RIBB A o W7 Z A TD
KHEERERNEEBREFRN
BRETAZE NERFEZE
FRAR o 77 B2 AR AR X248 1 32 BL
RE) R E - IR EUEREUR R T
ZHRAERESE - WIETHEAEE
HERHE RGT -FEZEE
BRI FE16HE -
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to the periods presented in these financial statements
and have been applied constantly by Group entities, unless
otherwise stated.

Arising from the adoption of IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, there are changes to
the accounting policies of:

(i) financial instruments;

(i) revenue recognition; and

(i) impairment losses of financial instruments

as compared to those adopted in previous financial statements.
The impacts arising from the changes are disclosed in Note 30.

(a) Basis of consolidation

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities, including structured entities,
controlled by the Company. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Merger accounting is
adopted for common control combinations (see below)
in which all of the combining entities are ultimately
controlled by the same controlling shareholders both
before and after the business combination and that
control is not transitory.

The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Potential voting rights are
considered when assessing control only when such
rights are substantive. The Group also considers it has
de facto power over an investee when, despite not
having the majority of voting rights, it has the current
ability to direct the activities of the investee that
significantly affect the investee’s return.

3.

TESHBE

BRAITHBEIN TXAHEFHE
ERZEVHHERR2INWHAREBEK
A IrhASEEE —BE&XA-

e S A9 B 7 9 5 2 R 15
HoE B A KBt R BB B TS R
RAIFOW - £ BT A 55 AR T
BEAEMERR L TEEFER
HRAE

T H

|

0 &
(i) WEER: &

(i) ® R T AR EBE
;% BE)PTE & B E R M E30H

%o

(a) HREAREE

(i) MBEQE

B LA ZHEARAE
%HE’JEW(@%%%'IEE

o fit B B B B 1S R
EHX/EV%‘JTEZEI%_?M\
REMBHRER BEEEE
RiEZ Bk RHRIESE
H(BLHTX)HRBA B
S5 B MAEAHE

O

BREBSOAZAZNE
AR MR AR SR B A% 2 ] - B
%”Iﬂzgﬁmah{g°

EXAEER2EEERY
XBREGRERERAE

L%k RBEENHERITE
HENMmEEE@ME  AIAK
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

i)

(ii)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries are measured in the
Company’s statement of financial position at cost less
any impairment losses (see Note 3(j)(ii). The cost of
investment includes transaction costs.

Business combinations

Business combinations arising from transfers of
interests in entities that are under the control of the
shareholders that control the Group are accounted for
as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of
the earliest comparative period presented or, if later, at
the date that common control was established; for this
purpose comparatives are restated. The assets and
liabilities acquired are recognised at the carrying
amounts recognised from the controlling shareholders’
perspective. All differences between the cost of
acquisition (fair value of consideration paid) and the
amounts at which the assets and liabilities are recorded
have been recognised directly in equity as part of the
other reserve.

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method from the acquisition date, which is
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continuea)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

(ii)

Business combinations (Continued)
For new acquisitions, the Group measures the cost of
goodwill at the acquisition date as:

° the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

° the recognised amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree; plus

° if the business combination is achieved in stages,
the fair value of the existing equity interest in the
acquiree; less

° the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

For each business combination, the Group elects
whether it measures the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the
acquisition date.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the
issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group incurs
in connection with a business combination are
expensed as incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

(iii)

Non-controlling interest

Non-controlling interest at the end of the reporting
period, being the equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the equity holders of the
Company, are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position and statement of changes in equity
within equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interest in the
results of the Group is presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the profit or loss and the
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interest and owners of the Company.

Losses applicable to the non-controlling interest in a
subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling interest
even if doing so causes the non-controlling interest to
have a deficit balance.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any
unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-
group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continuea)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEEXm

(Continued)

(b) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on business combinations is measured at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwiill is not
amortised but is tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that it may be impaired.

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the
respective functional currencies of the entities comprising the
Group at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the end of the reporting period are retranslated
to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are not retranslated at the end of the reporting
date, except for those that are measured at fair value are
retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at
the date that the fair value was determined.

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of foreign operations are translated into RM at the
exchange rates which approximate the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of transactions. Statement of financial
position items, including goodwill arising on consolidations of
foreign operations acquired, are translated into RM at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the translation reserve.

However, if the operation is a non-wholly owned subsidiary,
then the relevant proportionate share of the exchange
differences is allocated to the non-controlling interest.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c)

Foreign currency (continued)

In the consolidated financial statements, when settlement of a
monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation is neither planned nor likely to occur in the
foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains and losses arising
from such a monetary item are considered to form part of a
net investment in a foreign operation and are recognised in
other comprehensive income, and are presented in the
translation reserve within equity.

Financial instruments

Unless specifically disclosed below, the Group generally
applied the following accounting policies retrospectively.
Nevertheless, as permitted by IFRS 9, Financial Instruments,
the Group has elected not to restate the comparatives.

(i) Recognition and initial measurement
A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised in
the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Current financial year

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
significant financing component) or a financial liability is
initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issuance. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

Previous financial year

Financial instrument was recognised initially, at its fair
value plus or minus, in the case of a financial instrument
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that were directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of the financial instrument.

S&P International Holding Limited
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

Financial instrument categories and
subsequent measurement

Financial assets

Current financial year

Categories of financial assets are determined on initial
recognition and are not reclassified subsequent to their
initial recognition unless the Group changes its business
model for managing financial assets in which case all
affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day
of the first reporting period following the change of the
business model.

Amortised cost

Amortised cost category comprises financial assets that
are held within a business model whose objective is to
hold assets to collect contractual cash flows and its
contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding. The financial
assets are not designated as fair value through profit or
loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial
assets are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is
reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Interest income is recognised by applying effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount except for
credit impaired financial assets (see Note 3())()) where
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost.

All financial assets are subject to impairment
assessment (see Note 3(j)(i)).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

Financial instrument categories and
subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Previous financial year

In the previous financial year, financial assets of the
Group were classified and measured under IAS 39,
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables category comprised debt
instruments that were not quoted in an active market,
trade and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents.

Financial assets categorised as loans and receivables
were subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

All financial assets were subject to impairment
assessment (see Note 3(j)(i)).

Financial liabilities

Current financial year

Amortised cost

Other financial liabilities not categorised as fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the profit or loss. Any gains or
losses on derecognition are also recognised in the profit
or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial instrument categories and
subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Previous financial year

The financial liabilities were individually recognised on
the trade date when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. The Group
derecognises a financial liability or a part of it when its
contractual obligations were discharged or cancelled,
or expired.

The non-derivative financial liabilities were initially
measured at fair value less any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
these liabilities were measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Derecognition

A financial asset or part of it is derecognised when, and
only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire or transferred, or control of the
asset is not retained or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred to another party. On derecognition of a
financial asset, the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the sum of
consideration received (including any new asset
obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised
in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Financial instruments (continued)

(iii)

Derecognition (Continued)

A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when,
and only when, the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expires. A financial liability is
also derecognised when its terms are modified and the
cash flows of the modified liability are substantially
different, in which case, a new financial liability based
on modified terms is recognised at fair value. On
derecognition of a financial liability, the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit
or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise
the asset and liability simultaneously.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment

(i)

(ii)

Recognition and measurement

Freehold land and property under construction are
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses (see Note 3(j)(ii). Other items of property, plant
and equipment are measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses (see Note 3(j)(ii).

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the asset and any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to working
condition for its intended use, and the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the
site on which they are located. The cost of self-
constructed assets also includes the cost of materials
and direct labour.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality
of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that
equipment.

When significant parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of
property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the
future economic benefits embodied within the
component will flow to the Group, and its cost can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
component is derecognised to profit or loss. The costs
of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and
equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHBEEw

(Continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) e) M¥ BERRE:=
(iii) Depreciation (i) 7E
Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset. rE IR EEMKAK G
Significant components of individual assets are HoHpEEMNEZIL DY
assessed, and if a component has a useful life that is @ TG BMESLSH
different from the remainder of that asset, then that AIfE R FHEZE EH &
component is depreciated separately. o AmE - Bz E D & B
FTEE -
Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight- 4&7) ¥ WMELEZEEBREI
line basis over the estimated useful lives of each TR EGEAHEFERZ
component of an item of property, plant and equipment HERE G FE B FH
from the date that they are available for use. Leased REGERBRTER -
assets are depreciated over the lease term unless it is EEENHEBRITE  KBIE
reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership AEBEEAEEBHERA
by the end of the lease term, in which case they are Hist R EN S A #E - £t
depreciated over their useful lives. BRAT HEEEREAMF
RAEBHAFTE-
Freehold land is not depreciated. Property, plant and KAERELTH T TIHE - &
equipment under construction are not depreciated until EYE HMEMKERZE
the assets are ready for their intended use. BEAERTAZATT
E-
The principal annual rates of depreciation are as TEREFENT
follows:
Leasehold land 2% et 2%
Factory buildings and other buildings ITHEFR
3%-4% HAhETF 3%-4%
Plant and machinery 7%-20% T B K 1 25 7%-20%
Motor vehicles 20% R 20%
Furniture, fittings and equipment HKA-KER
10%-15% Bg 10%-15%
Depreciation methods and useful lives are reviewed at WEFEZROUFERERAR
end of the reporting period, and adjusted as WEBHRFURT LA

appropriate. (fHEE) -
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the

Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.

(i) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are
recognised as property, plant and equipment and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are
recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out
in Note 3(e)(iii). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in
Note 3(j)(ii). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period
of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Leased assets (Continued)

(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted
average and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs
incurred in bringing them to their existing location and
condition. In the case of finished goods, cost includes an
appropriate share of production overheads based on normal
operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group’s right to
consideration is conditional on something other than the
passage of time. A contract asset is subject to impairment in
accordance to IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (see Note 3 (j)(i)).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Contract assets and contract liabilities

(i)

0)

(Continued)

A contract liability is stated at cost and represents the
obligation of the Group to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which non-refundable consideration has been
received (or the amount is due) from the customers.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances
and deposits with banks and highly liquid investments which
have an insignificant risk of changes in fair value with original
maturities of three months or less, and are used by the Group
in the management of their short term commitments.

Impairment

(i) Financial assets
Unless specifically disclosed below, the Group generally
applied the following accounting policies retrospectively.
Nevertheless, as permitted by IFRS 9, Financial
Instruments, the Group elected not to restate the
comparatives.

Current financial year

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised
cost. Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit loss, except for debt
securities that are determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date, cash and bank balance and other
debt securities for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, which are measured
at 12-month expected credit loss. Loss allowances for
trade receivables are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Impairment (continued)

i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Current financial year (Continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating expected credit loss, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-looking information, where
available.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit
losses that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the asset, while 12-month expected
credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within
the 12 months after the reporting date. The maximum
period considered when estimating expected credit
losses is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

The Group estimates the expected credit losses on
trade receivables using a provision matrix with reference
to historical credit loss experience.

An impairment loss in respect of financial assets
measured at amortised cost is recognised in profit or
loss and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-
impaired. A financial asset is credit impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

3.

0)

SHBEXR@

B AE ()

(i)

TREE @

KA K FE (&)
FETcREEZIEER
REVFEREE S KR
EmkRAGEERERAE
Kb AEESEEEBER
EBANHBZRAHE N
BIAEBS ZEABRAIHEE
ol BREBEASE B
ARBEKENEEFTHS
HrEEREHER KD
M- I B IE BT IE 1 E R (1
W) -

2HEHEREBLANREE
EZEAFHRLERZH
EEEENEMSIBRZE
HiEREBX mi12@A &
HERBXRXIHRERAHE
NEARBRZEEED
EHS B zEHEREBX
ZEbD o HETTEHIE BB XL

KREBZEAHRASAE
EEmEEERBRZEKRA

K EARR

AEEE2EREERE
RERRABERE MG

BorWHIEEHER
B
REEKNAHEZERE

EZHEBEREDTE
R MEEEZREESR
150 P 38 F3 FR FTORK ©

//>

EWERH  AEBEFME
ﬁ%%ﬁ$ﬂ$2%ﬂﬁ
EEDE%"%EE1+,\/J—X{EQ =
HemMEEMNMGETREKR
eREAEFTNEEH—
B ZEEHEER %2
MEEFEEERIE -



BEEEARAT
—E-NEEH

‘ 133

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Rl 7 ¥t 7 I 51 (@)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEEXm

(Continued)
() Impairment (Continued) () ®E @
() Financial assets (Continued) i) EWMEE@®
Current financial year (Continued) N F B ()
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written E+ HEER AR YE R
off (either partially or full) to the extent that there is no e REEMBRmESR
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case ﬁ% (*B 3k 2 E0) S - e

when the Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
the write-off. However, financial assets that are written
off could still be subject to enforcement activities in
order to comply with the Group’s procedures for
recovery amounts due.

Previous financial year

All financial assets (except for investments in
subsidiaries) were assessed at each reporting date
whether there was any objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events having an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the asset. Losses
expected as a result of future events, no matter how
likely, were not recognised.
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An impairment loss in respect of loans and receivables ER Nk ERZENRES
was recognised in profit or loss and was measured as BRIEZPER TKE

the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows

ERAELEAZEERER
MERBEBEOHEFRKR

discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. S RElHEZHE E{j =Rt
The carrying amount of the asset was reduced through E-AEFREBEZAGAR
the use of an allowance account. AR o

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment HMREEBRESENEH%
loss decrease and the decrease could be objectively fER A & 7% R Al B

related to an event occurring after the impairment loss HERNEBRTERAEESIR
was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss BEBEENEHAER BIEE
was reversed, to the extent that the asset’s carrying EEAFRE - EEERT

amount did not exceed what the carrying amount
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised at the date the impairment was reversed.
The amount of the reversal was recognised in profit or
loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Impairment (continued)

(ii)

Other assets

The carrying amounts of other assets (except for
inventories and deferred tax assets) are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. For goodwill, the recoverable amount is
estimated each period at the same time.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are
grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets
or cash-generating units. The goodwill acquired in a
business combination, for the purpose of impairment
testing, is allocated to a cash-generating unit or a group
of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating
unit.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount
of an asset or its related cash-generating unit exceeds
its estimated recoverable amount.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

0)

(k)

Impairment (continued)

(ii)

Other assets (Continued)

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) and
then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets
in the cash-generating unit (groups of cash-generating
units) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses
recognised in prior periods are assessed at the end of
each reporting period for any indications that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognised. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’'s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised. Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the financial year in which the
reversals are recognised.

Equity instruments

Instruments classified as equity are measured at cost on initial
recognition and are not remeasured subsequently.

(i)

Issue expenses

Costs directly attributable to the issue of instruments
classified as equity are recognised as a deduction from
equity.

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Employee benefits

i)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of
salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and other
benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and
are expensed as the related service is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be
paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

The Group’s contributions to statutory pension funds,
which are defined contribution retirement plans, are
charged to profit or loss in the financial year to which
they relate. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is
available.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

3. FEEHHEmw

()

BRERA

(i)

(iii)

%E,H}HEE?E*IJ

e FERS AFF
Tﬁxﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ﬂvﬂﬂsﬁﬁa
B E AR B EE
B WRRHEE BRI
BFX e

WMAEERAEESBTIRME
MRS MELERBEAZEK
ﬁiﬁﬁmiﬁﬁiﬁ &
EEA NI RE Bgn
BBEEHIAHESERR
BE-
?"?wzf R Kot 8 f#
7rA
REBWETETAESHRK
(U 5 A e RERE S
REEEATES BN
BREEREBZRPNE - 5K
DiRBEEEEAFEMNE
DLEH - MARBIRR S
R AR - FET R RER
BEE-

BRRILHEE
Ai{]”ﬂtﬁ%‘ EAXA&KHE

ERERERHZEHEDR
ﬁﬁ@ RN ARRLE
HENBEKREAREE
RS HERR



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BEEEARAT
—E-NEEH

| 137

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Rl 7 ¥t 7 I 51 (@)

(Continued)

(m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

i)

Revenue

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer, excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group
recognises revenue when (or as) it transfers control over
a product or service to customer. An asset is
transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of
the asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service at a
point in time unless one of the following overtime criteria
is met:

(@ the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided as the Group
performs;
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n)

(o)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

() Revenue (Continued)
(b)  the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use and the Group has
an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

(ii) Rental income
Rental income from investment property is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised as
an integral part of the total rental income, over the term
of the lease. Rental income from sub-leased property is
recognised as other income.

(iii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method in profit or loss except for
interest income arising from temporary investment of
borrowings taken specifically for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset which is accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing
costs.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest
method.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of
the cost of those assets.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

3. FEEHHEmw

(n)

(o)

W 2= & H At U A (a0

(i) Wz @

b RNEBEMELAEEK
HERFPREEWE
IR
B

© AEBEWEDLF A
& —EEE R
GE BAZEEES
RESBIEEERD
BHEAN RS
CEYL LIk

(i) HLWBA
KEEREMEOBES KA
RESEZEAHARER
THER R THHEHERE
EHEAERSES KA
REMAEKED - KBEHE
MENHSWABRSE
U A -

(i) R 2 WA
B AREE R IRE
BRI E R B AR -
BEADRBAEREED
i 3k B B B IR B B E A 1
Bl A - BRI 1 2R AL A
M B B AL o

fa ;AR AN
YHERBRWE REREE

—HAEREENERKARRA
BERMEBEAN BT ER -

RUHE g EEMNARM —
BR BB R B A 07 AT R 6 E PR ik S 3
EHE E M B X B ERKAR
BRIEZEEEMMO KA



BEEEARAT
—E-NEEH

‘ 139

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Rl 7 ¥t 7 I 51 (@)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(0)

Borrowing costs (continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or completed.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.
Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination
or items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive
income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the
taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
financial years.

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, providing
for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in these consolidated statements of
financial position and their tax bases. Deferred tax is not
recognised for the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be
applied to the temporary differences when they reverse,
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets,
and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax
entities, but they intend to settle current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be
realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised.

Earnings per ordinary share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share
data for its ordinary shares (“EPS”).

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the period, adjusted for own shares held.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for
own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares, which comprise convertible notes and share
options granted to employees.

S&P International Holding Limited
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(r

Operating segment

An operating segment is a component of the Group that
engages in business activities from which it may earn revenue
and incur expenses, including revenue and expenses that
relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other
components. Operating segments’ results are reviewed
regularly by the chief operating decision maker to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment
and to assess its performance, and for which discrete
financial information is available.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(@  has control or joint control over the Group;

(b)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is amember of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(@ The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(b)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(c) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

3. FESHEEXm

(r)

(s)

A

o
# 9

okk

B

R Eb R AN S B AT R R I
EERX(BREARNSEIME
fE D MR 5 A B e
SOMBREBNERE D - &
ENHMEERTIBELERRE
TEHBERUE D MEERD ER
APEERBELRE XA R
AR B B 75 B L
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B Bt 5

) ZEALTHZRALHIHE
AEEBRAE WAL

(@ ¥ HI Sk AR E
=
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHBEEw

(Continued)
(s) Related parties (continued) (s) B8 B 5 (m)
(d)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and o —HEBRE=FE
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. BHNEELE M3
—ERBAZE=FE
EEXE: /NI
(e) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for ) ZERBAASENHE
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an 7TN SEEEHMNERZ
entity related to the Group. HIEENEFZ A B
BB R ET &l
() The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a H ZEBIZOMEZI A
person identified in (). T i ok 2 LR I
(@ A person identified in ()(a) has significant influence @ RO@FT#H A AT %
over the entity or is a member of the key ZERBFERTEN
management personnel of the entity (or of a B EE(NZERE
parent of the entity). MNERE)TEEEE
Bk 8 o
(h)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it (h MRMASEEFIKEEE
is a part, provides key management personnel RNARBEETEETEA
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent. ERGHEEXEFRN

BEBENEMKER

E_J o
Close members of the family of a person are those family THRGEKEEEBHAIHZE A
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced THERBHMNEEBKNT EHE
by, that person in their dealings with the entity. ERFANEESETHETYENTRK
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(t)

Fair value measurements

Fair value of an asset or a liability, except for lease
transactions, is determined as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The measurement assumes that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market.

For non-financial asset, the fair value measurement takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair
value are categorised into different levels in a fair value
hierarchy based on the input used in the valuation technique
as follows:

Level 1:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2:  inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3:  unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair
value hierarchy as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfers.

3. FESHEEXm

(t)

NAEBES

BEXBENARBEEER
SHBRINEBEERMSL2EERG
EAMEAEFRSGHPHEEEFRN
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fin

NARBEFEFEHEE =
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FHYEE S ©

HEAERRENDALBER
AEEBT LR ABRED S B
5 o 2 (B AR 18 1 1140 A D
WARES AU T FAAR EE
B

F—EBR: RHREEXBEL
BTG L WE
(REgHE) -

F_EBL: EHAEEXAGER
BEXMEAEENR
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FZEBE: RHEEEXAEN
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FZREERER -



S&P International Holding Limited
Annual Report 2018

il Ja4

Rl %5 6 7 Bt 5t ()

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4,

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacturing and
distribution of coconut cream powder, low fat desiccated coconut,
coconut milk and other related products.

Revenue represented the sales value of coconut cream powder,
low fat desiccated coconut, coconut milk and other related
products to customers net of trade discounts, rebate and returns.

" Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

18 2 o B & #

AEENTEXBLARER D HBE
0 EESE B REMABER -

Wats A& P &M - K5
B MOLREMEBERMEEEE
(MBERSHTM - BRREE) -

Revenue from contracts with customers REZEFE&S AU E
— Coconut related products —FHEBEE®D
— Others — Hb

2018 2017
—E-N\F T tF
RM RM
BERAZESE SRAZSH
Restated

E

78,729,819 94,736,886
1,259,216 1,494,673
79,989,035 96,231,559

The chief operating decision maker of the Group assesses the
performance and allocates the resources of the Group as a whole,
as all of the Group’s activities are considered to be primarily
dependent on the manufacturing and distribution of coconut cream
powder, low fat desiccated coconut, coconut milk and other related
products. Therefore, management considers there is only one
operating segment under the requirements of IFRS 8, Operating
Segments. In this regard, no segment information is presented.

mMRARENSBEGRE BT BK
BYERS HHBED  ERBE B
PRAMERER ASEIEEE
REEFEAEENERENRER
S o [ Ut - 1595 B0 B 75 R 2
FOREEUH WA ERERAEA
—EEESB-HUTE BALT
SHER o
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. %K 9 2B E @)

(Continued)

Geographical information i 35 & B

The following table sets out information on the geographical TREY IR I8 D AN £ Bk g o6
locations of the Group’s revenue from external customers. The ZEWEHNER - BEPBH I #H Ty
geographical location of customers is based on the location at WHEWESIMmE -

which the goods are delivered.

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

RM RM

BREZSE BRAZLE

Restated

Edl

West Indies AEERHES 24,310,019 24,511,313

South East Asia REDR 17,930,899 22,092,216

Middle East PR 16,995,650 23,793,761

North America SIS 5,208,574 5,449,300

East Asia R 3,193,807 2,155,336

Other regions H i [& 12,350,086 18,229,633

79,989,035 96,231,559

The following table sets out information on the geographical TREF R I E D 8 AR & E IR
locations of the Group’s non-current assets. BEWMEHR -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

RM RM

BRAZSE SREAZTSH

Malaysia SRAR 49,813,814 24,746,533
Singapore b 25,492 —

49,839,306 24,746,533
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. W& R FBER @

(Continued)
Major customer FEEF
Company A is the only major customer with revenue equal or more NEAEHE ——ZBWHRERNLBAN
than 10% (2017: 10%) of the Group’s total revenue: EFBEWZHEIO%(ZE—+F :10%)
WEERF:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RM RM
BREZSE FBRAZRLTHE
Restated
Rl

Company A (including all common control

companies) 28,897,334 30,900,035
Nature of goods BmitE
The following information reflects the typical transactions of the UTERRBASEE BT S :
Group:
Timing of recognition Obligations
Nature of goods or method used to Significant Variable element for returns
or services recognise revenue payment terms  in consideration or refunds
Eﬁj
BmEREEE WBEEIANWEER A EEXMNHR ERERD BRREME
Coconut related products ~ Revenue is recognised Credit period Sales incentive are Not applicable
at point in time when of 7to 120 given to customers
the customer obtains days from when specific
control of goods invoice date criteria are met
168 - 48 A 2 WERNEBEFPEGERE FEHEEE RETCEERER TEA
il 7 B ey ] B T R HERFA7TE #Z#REPXNH
1208 ERE
Others — Freight and The revenue for freight Credit period Not applicable Not applicable
shipping charges and shipping charges is of 7to 120
recognised over time days from
invoice date
Hih —GEREWE EEREREN EEBHERE TEA A3 A
e 2 & BF ) B R0 HER7E

120 H
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OTHER INCOME 5. Hilr A
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RM RM
BRAGZSE BRARSH
Rental income He WA 204,000 204,000
Others Hih 286,483 448,722
490,483 652,722
FINANCE INCOME 6. BIEEWA
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
RM RM
ERAESE BRATSTH
Interest income of financial assets calculated  ££ 8 B B F & 55 5+ & 3 1 8 5
using the effective interest method that AT BN € R EEN B
are at amortised cost A 189,953
FINANCE COSTS 7. BMBRAE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
RM RM
BRAGZSE BFRARSH
Interest expense of financial liabilities that are 7 IEIE A /¢t [BEET A B W
not at fair value through profit or loss SREENTNERX 376,973

147
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

@)

Income tax expense in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income represents:

8. FIEBIMAX

@ HFeEmElEME2EKRERAM

AR
BHAE -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RM RM
ERAESE SRADSH
Restated
Epdl

Current tax — Malaysian Income Tax BIEABiIE — SREEFEHR
Current year KEE 3,168,831 4,643,419
Under provision in respect of prior years BEIFERETT 165,896 81,928
3,334,727 4,725,347

Deferred tax EIEBE

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 7 4 [k B B E b =58 (525,232) (122,853)
Qver provision in respect of prior years BAFEBEEE (200,215) (264,595)
(725,447) (387,448)
2,609,280 4,337,899

The Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is 8.25% on estimated assessable
profits up to HK$2 million and 16.5% on any part of the
estimated assessable profits over HK$2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018. Hong Kong Profits Tax rate was
16.5% for the year ended 31 December 2017. The Group is
not subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax as it had no assessable
income arising in and derived from Hong Kong for the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Malaysian Income Tax has been provided at the statutory tax
rates of 24% (2017: 24%) on the estimated chargeable
income arising in Malaysia for the year ended 31 December
2018, except for certain subsidiaries that are entitled to tax
rates at 6% (2017: 6%) lower than the statutory tax rates for
their first RM500,000 chargeable income during the financial
year (see Note 8(b)).

REBBEANFAEHREREBRLHE
EAPTEH

BE_ZT-/\F+A=+—BLFE" 2
B 88T ARl 5T B R BUE M 8 E B A
EHBERR825% MBB2ASBITHNG
AHERBE M ER DRI S16.5% - B =
—E—+tHE+A=+—BILEE BE
MEHRERI65% BE_ZT—-—/\FRZ
E—tF+-_A=+—"BLFE ARY
BRERFREEBNEMERRKA &
REEBBAHERBEMNEH -

BHEz-_Z—-N\F+-A=T—HLFE"
£ 55 R 78 5 B A A 1A AT R AR L A 1224%
(ZF—EF: 24%) MEAER X EF KA
TAEH - MR Z Y B E & £500,000 5
KAGSENERRBABRRENEE
MEE%(ZE—LF 6% WREHBAE
T K 18 2 BIBR 9 (BT EES(0)) °
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 8.

(b)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting

profit at an applicable tax rate:

FrBFHExZw

(b) HEAMERTENMEHA X E
SR Az EE HER

2018 2017
—E-N\F e
RM RM
BEXRA BRAESE
Restated
Epdl

Profit before tax R 35 A& A 8,904,163 4,526,599
Income tax calculated using Malaysian KABRARETHE24%

statutory tax rate of 24% (2017: 24%) TE—EF 1 24%)FTER

REE 2,136,999 1,086,384

Effect of preferential tax rate charged on 7 B AR 75 28 Ak AR 2 A

a portion of chargeable income for certain & T K B A &l 89— 2B 5

subsidiaries incorporated in Malaysia* FERH W AR BERE

S EA 0 -2 (53,896)

Effect of a reduction in tax rate by stages TR 138 A] Uk )\?;z P ER

on incremental chargeable income* WMAOBEN T E (24,418) (46,948)
Effect of non-deductible expenses TAHBRAEIHNTE 531,018 3,545,926
Over provision in respect of prior years BEFEHERE (34,319) (182,667)
Effect of recognition of previously HMARABTFRERLRZEHN

unrecognised temporary differences T (10,900)

2,609,280 4,337,899

@ According to the tax regulations in Malaysia, certain subsidiaries with # BREFRARHHBEER SR

paid-up capital of RM2.5 million (2017: RM2.5 million) or below at the
beginning of the basis year of assessment are subject to a lower
corporate tax rate of 18% (2017: 18%) on chargeable income up to

RM500,000 (2017: RM500,000).

Chargeable income in excess of

RM500,000 (2017: RM500,000) is charged at statutory tax rate.

The above preferential tax rate is not applicable to the subsidiaries
which have more than 50% of their paid-up capital owned by an entity
with a paid-up capital exceeding RM2,500,000 at the beginning of the

basis year of assessment.

ANE2EEBERARSE (2T —
+tF 25HBERARSE) MU
THETHERRMRTEEESF
) H FE 3R B U A $Z 500,000 55 2R
monSE (=ZF— £ F 5000005
RATZLH)  AlR18% (=T —+
F:18%) MEE BT KM - 4n
Eﬁ%%%%%kﬁi@soo,ooo%%ﬁﬁﬁ
H(Z T — 4 : 500,000 5 2K 7
Eﬁéu CRREE R B o

PR EERETERRFEEEF
F B R kA #8382,500,000 5 KA
DL EMNEEEABRE0%H 2
Ny NG|
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. 48 .
8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 8. MBHEX®@
(o)  Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting b) HERAMETENMEHATH

profit at an applicable tax rate: (Continued) iR Z AR (8)

* According to Malaysian Budget 2017 and 2018, there is a reduction of i BE_Z—+FR_ZT—NFEX
tax rate by stages based on the percentage of increase in chargeable T fEE HE IKBE F—FHE
income as compared to the immediate preceding year of assessment ENESHWAERAE DL RE
as follows (provided that the resident company is incorporated under BBRAIBRERNONT(FIREERAT
Companies Act 2016): BE S NEQREFMAK):
3 One percentage point for increase in chargeable income . ] U g A F 5% =

between 5% to 9.99%; 9.99% KR — A E 9 8
3 Two percentage point for increase in chargeable income . ] {2 U I A28 A0 T 10% &
between 10% to 14.99%; 14.99% R A M B B 5 B
3 Three percentage point for increase in chargeable income . Al 1 U U A DY F15% =
between 15% to 19.99%; and 10.99% )R 2> = A8 5 &
)54
. Four percentage point for increase in chargeable income of 20% . A I A 38 1020% K BA B

and above. BER A PO E E o B o
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9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 9. FRAEF

2018 2017
—E-N\E TR
Note RM RM
W BRAZSE BFRARSH
Profit for the year is arrived at after ERBENTAR(FEA)
charging/(crediting): T5EAE:
Auditors’ remunerations: ZEEMN S -
— Audit fees —BRER
KPMG PLT KPMG PLT 399,000 213,025
Other auditors H b iz AT 8,032 2,838
— Non-audit fees —EERER
Local affiliate of KPMG PLT KPMG PLT
f=: s N/NE] 50,000 —
Material expenses/(income) BEARZ(KA)
Bad debts written off 122 AR 88 12,505 9,347
Depreciation of property, plant and WE - BENMEEBITE
equipment 13 2,172,761 2,013,191
Deposit paid for a land acquisition written off & 1} + $f Uk B 1% & i 8% 196,020 -
Impairment loss on goodwil R REEE 15 515,513 -
Listing expenses il - 13,209,615
Net loss on disposal of plant and equipment & B E M & EE B F 5 - 53,916
Net (gain)/loss on foreign exchange SNE =58 (W), B8
differences FEE
— Realised — B &8 (231,992) 374,628
— Unrealised — KRB 2,122,922 1,052,191
Personnel expenses AEEH
(including Directors’ emoluments): (BIEESHMH) :
— Wages, salaries and other benefits —TITE] 42K
H A 18 A 11,670,737 9,225,509
— Contributions to Employees’ Provident —EERABEESMHEK
Fund 862,499 581,370
Plant and equipment written off T Ko 5% 1 B 8 19,476 -
Rental of premises HEWHE 441,397 357,581
Rental income HEaWA 5 (204,000) (204,000)

o i

= .4 "rh"{.‘} Tk
H.u
=

A%
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 10.

Mr. Tang Koon Fook and Mr. Lee Sieng Poon were appointed as
Directors of the Company on 10 November 2016 (date of
incorporation) and were re-designated as Executive Directors on 22
March 2017. Mr. Yap Boon Teong and Ms. Wong Yuen Lee were
appointed as Executive Directors of the Company on 22 March
2017. Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony, Mr. Chong Yew Hoong and Mr.
Ng Hock Boon were appointed as independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company on 8 June 2017.

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation
are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

EEH M

Tang Koon Fook %t 4 K Lee Sieng Poon
EERZZE—R"F+—A+AGEMH
MYBH)EEZEEAEARRIEETIR
ZE—+F=ZAZTZHBHFETRH
7T & 2 ° Yap Boon Teong %t £ K Wong
YuenleeX TR T —+tF=H =+
—HEZAARERRRRTES - HE
f& % 4 + Chong Yew Hoong %t 4 & Ng
Hock Boonft £ A — T —tF /X AN
BEZFTAARARARBIULIFNTES -

RBCE B R AHEB) £ 381(1) fF k(R
A(RBEEENRER)RODF 28 H
BEONEEFMOT

Year ended 31 December 2018
BE-Z-\F+-A=+—-HLEE

Salaries, Contributions

allowances to Employees’

Directors’ and benefits Discretionary Provident
fees in kind bonuses Fund Total

e 2R EEAES
EsHe B & MEIEAL R mat
RM RM RM RM RM

BRAEZSE BRAZSE BREDSE FRAZSE FRAEDSE

Chairman and Executive IERITES

Director
Tang Koon Fook Tang Koon Fook 770,225
Executive Directors HITES
Lee Sieng Poon Lee Sieng Poon 575,705
Yap Boon Teong Yap Boon Teong 269,399
Wong Yuen Lee Wong Yuen Lee 184,229

Independent Non-executive B E#HTES

Directors
Fung Che Wai Anthony HBER 61,783
Chong Yew Hoong Chong Yew Hoong 61,783
Ng Hock Boon Ng Hock Boon 61,783

383,053 1,799,558

911,979

694,117
351,055
255,663

61,783
61,783
61,783

215,552 2,398,163
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 10. E55F M@

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+&+_-_A=1+—"HLEE

Salaries, Contributions

allowances to Employees’

Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary Provident
fees in kind bonuses Fund Total

e 2UR EERESR
Rk EMH & BT AL HX HEt
RM RM RM RM RM

SRAZCE BRAGESE BSRAXSE BRALRSE BRAXSCHE

Chairman and Executive TRRPBITES

Director
Tang Koon Fook Tang Koon Fook 25,062 557,411 = 64,368 646,841
Executive Directors BITES
Lee Sieng Poon Lee Sieng Poon 25,062 411,152 = 48,156 484,370
Yap Boon Teong Yap Boon Teong 25,062 255,010 — 29,940 310,012
Wong Yuen Lee Wong Yuen Lee 25,062 132,605 — 15,408 173,075

Independent Non-executive B FHITES

Directors
Fung Che Wai Anthony BER 31,328 - - - 31,328
Chong Yew Hoong Chong Yew Hoong 31,328 = = = 31,328
Ng Hock Boon Ng Hock Boon 31,328 — - — 31,328

194,232 1,356,178 = 157,872 1,708,282

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no #HZEZEZZ—N\FEkZZ—+tF+_A=+

emoluments have been paid to the Directors as inducement upon — B IFFF REB W EAE S L HE1
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. No ZH B fEAHEIMARNEEFEE N 1EAE
Directors waived or had agreed to waive any emoluments. BEaE - MEESNESCRENRER

o] 557 B o
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INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2017:
four) are Directors whose emoluments are as disclosed in Note 10.
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two (2017:

one) individuals are as follows:

M. ESHFMAL

ERERSFMA LT =2(ZF—+
FORATRES RENFHEER
MEE10 ZOMB(ZT—LF: —R) AL
MEFMerEMT

2018 2017
—E-NE —E—tF
RM RM

BRAZSE BSRATSH

Salaries and other benefits
Discretionary bonuses
Contributions to Employees’ Provident Fund

The emoluments of the above individuals with the highest

emoluments are within the following band:

496,154 150,927

- 5,320

59,376 18,264

555,530 174,511
FTHlESHFMNALTHTHBRIUTEHE

2018 2017

—E-NE —E—tF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE A

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000

£ %1,000,0007% 7T

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
emoluments have been paid to these highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation

for loss of office.

BE_ T \FR-_ZT—ttFt+-_A=+
—ALFE - AFRBEYERZSHEMAL
ST R B - {3 E A0 A S SR 8 3 A
AREEENRB SRR AHE -
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12. EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE 12. BREEREF
The calculation of basic earnings per ordinary share was based on B @R E AR R JYIR I T m R
the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of RM6,295,729 (2017: B& B FE 1k % 16,295,729 5 R P &5 &
RM188,700) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares F(ZF — + F:188,7005 & 74 ==
outstanding of 1,080,000,000 ordinary shares (2017: 938,712,329). SEIRDBEITE BRI IMEFEH
1,080,000,000 % & LH&(_ —tF:

938,712,3290% ) 5+ &

Number of
ordinary shares
ZEKREE
Deemed issued ordinary shares before RERARABEE(ERAREE]
the Initial Public Offering (“IPO”) AR RIEE BT @ Hx 810,000,000
Effect of ordinary shares issued upon the IPO SE=R/N ”D\ REERETLTBR
-7 128,712,329
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RZE—+F+_A=+—HB®
at 31 December 2017 I m AR N T 938,712,329
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H®W
at 31 December 2018 AN T & 1,080,000,000
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Sen Sen
il Il
Restated
=5
Basic earnings per ordinary share EREBRERRF 0.02

The diluted eamings per ordinary share is similar to the basic — F3 A 7N & [® 30 & {F {n] A & K& 71 #5483 E
eamnings per ordinary share as the Group does not have any HWEETEBER WERTBREETZF
material potential dilutive ordinary shares in issuance. HEREBRETRZFIALE-
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

13. 9% BEERE

Leasehold
land with
unexpired Factory
lease period buildings Furniture,
Freehold of more than and other Plant and Motor  fittings and Construction
land 50 years buildings ~ machinery vehicles  equipment  in progress Total
FBES
KAER BASEHN IEBFR %A
i HEr#  HAtEF BERES RE RBERRE  HEBRIRE @it
RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM
SREE SRED EREE SRER EREE SRED SRED SREL
2% 4% 4% 4% 4% 2% 4% 2%
Cost 2%
At1 January 2017 RZZE-t+5-f-H 397,046 415170 19,005590 20,912,859 677,720 2,206,097 135,837 43,750,319
Additions AE 3,400,000 - 48,000 1,422,612 - 114,886 206,687 5,192,185
Disposals HeE = = = (705,949) - (36,271) - (742,220)
Transfers - - - 25,100 - - - (25,100) -
At 31 December 2017/ RZB—+5+=4
1 January 2018 =t+-B/-E-N\%¥
—-A-B 3,797,046 415170 19,078,690 21,629,522 677,720 2,284,712 317,424 48,200,284
Additions NE - - 902,010 1,200,073 - 467,984 24714943 27,285,010
Write off k=] - - - (91,458) - (56,166) - (147,624)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\%
+-A=t+-A 3,797,046 415170 19,980,700 22,738,137 677,720 2,696,530 25,032,367 75,337,670
Accumulated depreciation Rt E
At1 January 2017 WZE—+F-F—H = 152,225 5,998,032 13,564,501 614,350 1,754,383 — 22,083 491
Charge for the year FRINE - 8,303 587,263 1,248,478 18,144 151,008 - 2013191
Disposals HE = = = (631,288) - (11,643) - (642,931)
At 31 December 2017/ RZF—+E+=A
1 January 2018 =t-R/-%-N\%
-A-8 - 160,528 6,585295 14,181,691 632,494 1,893,743 - 23453751
Charge for the year FRNE - 8,303 601,825 1,360,150 18,144 184,339 - 2172761
Write off ik = = - (77,700) - (50,439) - (128,148
At 31 December 2018 AZE-N\F
+-A=+-H - 168,831 7,187,120 15,464,132 650,638 2,027,643 - 25498364
Carrying amounts BEE
At 1 January 2017 RZB—+#
—-A-B 397,046 262,945 13,007,558 7,348,358 63,370 451,714 135,837 21,666,828
At 31 December 2017/ RZE-tF+ZAR
1 January 2018 =+-A/-E-N\E
-A-B 3,797,046 254642 12,493,395 7,447,831 45,226 390,969 317424 24,746,533
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E

3,797,046

246,339

12,793,580

7,214,005

27,082

668,887 25,032,367

49,839,306
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. %  HERRE®
(Continued)
(a) Security (a) K m
As of the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of RBEHR RAEEERAR
assets pledged to licensed banks for banking facilities TRVE (R MI3E20) 3K 3 T 335 h2
granted to the Group (see Note 20) are as follows: RITHEER@ENT :
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
+=ZA=+—HB +ZHA=+—H
RM RM

BREDRSH FSARAELH

Leasehold land HE L 246,339 254,642

Freehold land KA FERE T3 97,046 97,046

Factory buildings and other buildings IHEFELEMESF 10,091,943 11,344,831

10,435,328 11,696,519

(b) Assets leased out under operating leases b) REKLBEHNHELENE

B

The total future minimum lease payments receivable under REBESTHESLEHOERNR
non-cancellable operating lease are as follows: RERBEENRBELOT -

31.12.2018 31.12.2017

—E-N\E —E—tF

+=Z—A=+—-H +ZA=+—H

RM RM

BRADSHE FSARAEESH

Within 1 year 1R 170,000 204,000
After 1 year but within 5 years 1FEZ5F R - 170,000

170,000 374,000

The Group leases out a portion of a property under an AREERE —MHE&ERLOME L E
operating lease. The lease typically runs for a period of three IME -ZHEAO—RBHA=F"

years, with an option to renew the lease. Lease payments are AEEEH - He W EASTA
agreed at a fixed monthly amount. The lease does not include TEIRTE ° 3Z A4 I B FE ]

any contingent rentals. gAES -
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(c) The analysis of carrying amounts of

properties is as follows:

In Malaysia: NRERALDR :
— freehold — KAFERE
— medium-term leases — R I A9
Representing: Rk
Factory buildings and other buildings IREFREMEF
Interest in leasehold land with unexpired 7l 64 F8 HA #8 3 50 4F £
lease period of more than 50 years HEtbaERs
Interest in freehold land KA ERE L Ay 25

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
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31.12.2018
—E-N\F
+=—A=+-—H
RM
BRAZRSE

10,114,318
6,722,647

16,836,965

12,793,580

246,339
3,797,046

16,836,965

13.M¥ -BEERRXE@

) MEBREENTHUT :

31.12.2017
—E—+F
+=-—A=+—A”
RM
BRALRSH

10,431,711
6,113,372

16,545,083

12,493,395

254,642
3,797,046

16,545,083
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14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14. RHB DA RIHKRE

R-E—NE+=A=+—AHBA T

Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are as follows:

BT
Place and date of Issued and fully Proportion of
Name of entity incorporation/establishment paid share capital ownership interest Principal activities
AR % BRTR
EREH RAH BRRA FREEL TEEH
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
+ZA=+-B +ZR=+-H
Directly held
EERF
SP Coco Limited* The British Virgin Islands United States Dollar 100%  Investment holding
11 November 2016 (US$") 1
HREAHS EH REER
“F-REt-AT-R ()
Indirectly held
BERE
S&P (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$1 100%  Investment holding
Holding Limited* 25 November 2016
Bk 1B REER
—Z-R"¥+-A=+xA
Edaran Bermutu Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM100 100%  Investment holding
(“Edaran”) 29 November 2001
SRAES 100 REZR
“2E-Ft-A-tAR  BREDLE
Radiant Span Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM100 100%  Investment holding
(“Radiant”) 11 July 1998
BRADR 100 REER
~AANELAT-B BRAZSE
S & P Industries Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM5,000,000 100% Manufacturing and distribution
20 December 2004 of coconut cream powder,
low fat desiccated coconut,
coconut milk and related
products
SRAES 5,000,000 SERDHBER - K
—ZZNE+-AZ+H ERATLH BE - BHREHEER

o i

7 .‘ ‘.,h\{‘:'.-_._ 7
N
o

A%
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14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continved) 14, A K B 2 7] BV R & (@)

Place and date of Issued and fully Proportion of
Name of entity incorporation/establishment paid share capital ownership interest Principal activities
AR % BEIR
ERER REH BERXK FAEELA TEEHR
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
ZB-NF CTtf
t=A=t+-8 +ZA=1+-H
Rasa Mulia Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM50,000 100%  Trading of coconut cream
(‘Rasa Mulia”) 20 October 1999 cream powder, low fat
desiccated coconut, coconut
milk, ketupat, kerisik and
related products
SRED 50,000 BEEMEYN  KREE
—“ AN E+AZFA BRAESH B4 ~ ketupat * kerisik &%
EBE®
Shifu Ingredients Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM100,000 100%  Manufacturing of ketupat and
(“Shifu”) 4 July 1996 kerisik
BRED 100,000 B13% ketupat ) kerisik
—ARELANA SRATLE
Stancodex Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM2,400,004 100%  Trading of coconut cream
4 March 1998 powder, low fat desiccated
coconut and related products
SRED 2,400,004 BEERRYH BEREBER
—WANE=ANA EREELHE EBER
Meridian Ace Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM100,000 100% Inactive
13 November 1996
BRED 100,000 OmE
—ANRE+—A+=H SRATLE
S&P Foods Pte. Ltd. (Previously  Singapore Singapore Dollars 100% Inactive
known as Stancodex Pte. Ltd.)* 16 November 2015 (“SGD”) 50,000
(A& Stancodex Pte. Ltd.)* ¥ A13% 50,000 %7 M3% 7T EEER
—Z-RF¥+-At+RH (T3 3% e )
M. Ace (Thailand) Co., Ltd.** Thailand Thailand Baht 90.57% — Inactive
(‘M. Ace”) 28 June 2011 (“THB") 2,500,000
el 2,500,000% # OmER

—Z——4%XAZTN\H

(TR k)

*  Companies not audited by KPMG. * OREKPMGEZHAE] ©
#  The statutory financial year end of M. Ace (Thailand) Co., Ltd., a newly acquired i
subsidiary, was 30 November 2018 and does not coincide with the financial year
end of the Group. M. Ace (Thailand) Co., Ltd. is in the midst of changing its
statutory financial year end to conform with the Group.

3 U B B B 22 FIM. Ace (Thailand) Co., Ltd. &1 )%
FUHREERAERA-_ZS—N\E+—A=+
B BASEVBFELEBT %M Ace
(Thailand) Co., Ltd. 5t &I % 58 H 3% & B B F 5 &
HERAUNEREERE B -
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14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

14.1 Non-controlling interest in a subsidiary

One of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-

controlling interest (“NCI”) are as follows:

14. AB R TN KRE @
1M§WEQE%#E&E
i

AREBEEP-—HHNBEARESR
AN EARSEE R an ([ SRR AR
@)

31.12.2018
2N
+=-—BA=+-—H
M. Ace
(Thailand)

Co., Ltd.

RM
BRAEDRSE

NCI percentage of ownership interest and voting interest

Carrying amount of NCI

FEBEEEERRER
SRENBE DL
FEIE R m R E (E

Loss allocated to NCI

D EIFEBRER N EE

Summarised financial information

& B A 2 R O AT RO B

before intra-group elimination ERBE
As at 31 December R+=-ZHA=+—8H
Current assets mENEE 232,216
Current liabilities mEaE (665,986)
Net liabilities BEFRE (433,770)

Year ended 31 December
Revenue

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss

BE+-B=1+—HLEE
g =
FANEE (48,681)
SHEEBS (50,620)

Cash flows from operating activities KEEHMEHEESRE (91,928)
Cash flows from investing activities KREFSAEHRESRE 2,542
Cash flows from financing activities BMEEBMEHRESRE 175,139
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEYIEINFER 85,753
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

GOODWILL 15. &
Note RM
i BRARSH
Cost AR
Acquisition through business combination BIRESSFWE 29 515,513
Impairment loss REEE
Impairment loss for the year FRBERE (515,513)
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2018 R-_E—NF+_A=+—H =

During the financial year, an impairment loss on goodwill of
RM515,513 was recognised in profit or loss due to the shortfall of
recoverable amount and the net liabilities position of the subsidiary
acquired.

RAFHRFEEA - BARA KD SR
REFTKEBHEBRARNFEFAENRR
R EREEREEES155135 2K
[iEEIE A=

INVENTORIES 16. & &
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
—E-N\F TE—F
+=—A=+—-8B +ZA=+—H
RM RM
BRARSSE BRAESE
Packaging and raw materials BEREMR 5,357,262 4,423,453
Unpacked finished goods RBEREKm 18,231,429 24,996,480
Finished goods BN M@ 1,741,729 895,129
25,330,420 30,315,062

The amount of inventories recognised as BRAERAINGFEFRIEN
an expense is as follows: T

Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFENEREE

54,164,489 65,029,580
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. ES R EMERRE
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
ZE-N\F —T—tF
+t=A=+-8 +=A=+—H
Note RM RM

K BRAZLTH FRATLE

Trade receivables B 5 e W IR 17(a) 14,243,657 14,878,361
Deposits, prepayments and Ze BRZKER
other receivables H fth & W R I8 5,991,689 3,410,750
20,235,346 18,289,111
Al trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered or PMEES REMBUREBBRAHR —
recognised as expense within one year. FAREHERBAE -
(a) Trade receivables (@ EZEWRE
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of BERSTHR EXNEEBHY
trade receivables based on the invoice date is as follows: B REKEREDNAOT
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
—E-NE —E—+tF
+=ZA=+—H +ZA=+—H
RM RM
BRAEZRSE BRAESE
Within 1 month 1EAR 6,361,134 8,756,688
1 to 2 months 1ZE21E A 3,979,570 3,514,127
2 to 3 months 2ZF 31 A 2,045,243 1,690,037
Over 3 months 31E A KA £ 1,857,710 917,509
14,243,657 14,878,361
The following table provides information about the exposure TREVWEBABR-_ZE—N\F+=
to credit risk and expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for trade A=+—BEBSrkKZxEBE(RE
receivables as at 31 December 2018 which are grouped HEEARREREE MBS T —
together as they are expected to have similar risk nature. E)HEBENEERR XEH{E B

B E R -
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 17. B 5 & H b & U 20 18 (@)

(a) Trade receivables (continued) (a) EZEWRKE @
31.12.2018
—E-N\E+=ZA=+—8H
Gross carrying Loss Net
amount allowances balance
BERHEE EiERE e FEE
RM RM RM
BRAZRSE BRADZSE BRAZLE
Group wE
Current (not past due) ) (R#HE) 10,271,863 10,271,863
1-30 days past due #AEI1 =30H 3,221,402 3,221,402
31-60 days past due #HI31 =60 H 213,704 213,704
61-90 days past due #HI61£=90H 536,688 536,688
14,243,657 14,243,657
Credit impaired EERE
More than 90 days past due BHIO0H LA £
Individually impaired & 518 (&
Trade receivables g 5 W IE 14,243,657 14,243,657

Further qualitative disclosure in respect of the Comparative
information under IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement is as follows:

188 E BR @ 1 R OSRAT T
A AR EFLHARLE
ERME—SEERBDT

31.12.2017
—E—tF
+=-—A=+—8
RM
ERADSE

Not past due 0 % 180 2R

Past due 1 to 30 days BHI1 =30k
Past due 31 to 60 days BHIB1 E60K
Past due more than 60 days BHIBOK LA £

10,913,966
3,104,572
514,755
345,068

14,878,361
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@) Trade receivables (continued)

At 31 December 2017, none of the Group’s trade receivables
was individually or collectively considered to be impaired.
Trade receivables are due within 7 to 120 days from the date
of invoice. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set
out in Note 24(d).

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

17. EZ Kk H b FE W R )

(@ EZEWAREm@m

R-_ZE—+tF+-_A=+—8"
AEBMBE F W GKIEAEE R =k &
B RBERBRE - E 5 EWK
HREZABB7TE120K A E
H-BHEAEEFEABRKNE—
FSEFIBE R EE24(d)

B 48 280 2 5 KRG (B /O FE W sk 0R BB
ERY BEERDHENEZEFA
-

278 1B R BUE H) B R IB W K
SHEREEARIFEBLED
BYRP REBELR BE
BHRE BFERXFEHRTEMR
BERE RARERAERLER
ZECAZFEHRNBERBAE
gl o

18 RERBEEEY

Cash on hand
Bank balances in licensed banks

FERS

REFRRIRITROIRTT H 81

Cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated statement of cash flows

ReEEY

REARERERNRE R

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
—E-NE —E—tF
+=ZA=+—-8 +=ZA=+-—8H
RM RM
ERARSE BRAGESE
131,662 56,443
45,957,591 59,368,857
46,089,253 59,425,300
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19. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 19. R A K f# 18
(@ Movement in components of equity () EZEEHEF
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances REFBFEYREARZSHEHENEGES
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set BENEHEFIWNGEEEZE S
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Ko ANANTBUEZEENRER
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual MEEFEEYWOT
components of equity at the end of the year are set out
below:
Share Share Other  Translation
capital premium reserves reserve Accumulated
(Note 19b) ~ (Note 19(c)fj)  (Note 19(c)i))  (Note 19(c)ii)) losses Total
LAEN RBEE Htb iR BERE
(Hist19p)  (Ha190)) (WEE190m)  (#a 190)i) 2itER @t
RM RM RM RM RM RM

BRELSE BRALCE FRALSE FRALSE FRALSE HRALSHE

At 1 January 2017 RZB-tF
-f-§ — — 49,144,626
Shares issued under intidl BN AR R ENKH
public offering, net of share 17 (k& Bk 17

(1,856,600 47,288,026

issuance expenses BITHY) 1,485,427 63,164,195 - - — 64,649,622
Capitalisation of share BALRGEE

premium 4,456,279 (4,456,279) - - - -
Loss for the year FRER - = = —  (13802,048)  (13,802,048)
Other comprehensive expense 4 W E it 2 E B X

for the year = = = (2,746,220) = (2,746,220)
Loss and total comprehensive £ R EE R 2 E

expense for the year GRSt - = - (2746220) (13,802,048  (16,548,268)

At 31 December 2017/ R-E-t&E+=R

1 January 2018 =t-8/
—E2-N\E-§
—f 5,941,706 58,707,916 49,144,626 (2,746,220)  (15,658,648) 95,389,380
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (451,582) (451,582)
Other comprehensive income £ 7 & 1 2 E U 28
for the year — — — 899,303 - 899,303
Profit and total comprehensive £ 4% | & 2 & U 25
income for the year ek ) - - - 899,303 (451,582) 447,721

At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
+=-A=+-H 5,941,706 58,707,916 49,144,626 (1,846,917)  (16,110,230) 95,837,101

The balance represents amount less than RM1. * HEHRELPNERATLSEZIRIE -
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19. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 19. i% Z< X {3 8 ()

(b) Share capital

The Company was incorporated on 10 November 2016 as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
with authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into
38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each. On 8 June 2017, the
authorised share capital of the Company has increased to
HK$50,000,000, divided into 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each. Details of the changes in the Company’s
equity for the year are set out below:

(b) BRZA

AKRaIRZE—R"F+—A+A
ETHREHESFMRLIAEERR
BR AR AT KA /380,000
& 7T » 9 /38,000,000 % & A%
BOOIB T R M RZF —
+tE&EXANB AAREER
7K 3 hn & 50,000,000 7T 0 9 B
5,000,000,000 f% & % ™ 160.01 /8
TTHE B - AR R F R
BFFBEERINAT

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
—E-NF+=HA=+—-8H —E—+F+=ZRA=1+—H
No. of shares HK$  No. of shares HK$
BB EE BT B 1 20 B BT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of FREEOEITH
HK$0.01 each Tk 5,000,000,000 SO0 D [ 5000,000,000 50,000,000

31.12.2018

31.12.2017

—E-NF+=ZB=+-—-H —EZ—+HF+-_A=+—H

No. of shares

RM No. of shares RM

BROBE BREZSTH BO#E BRAGSE

Ordinary shares, issued EER BHITR

and fully paid off: Fo G
At 1 January »n—A—H 1,080,000,000
Capitalisation of share BRI =B

premium (Note (i)) (K@)

Shares issued under initial & /X 2 B 2 E R BR 15
public offering (Note (i)) 17 (K72 (i)

At 31 December R+=-—B=+—-H 1,080,000,000

The balance represents amount less than RM1.

5,941,706 60 =

809,999,940 4,456,279

270,000,000 1,485,427

LR O 1,080,000,000 5,941,706

BRELMIBRAGTSEZRA -
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19. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b) Share capital (continued)

Notes:

(i)

Pursuant to written resolutions of the Company’s shareholders passed
on 8 June 2017 and 23 June 2017, conditional upon the crediting of
the share premium account of the Company as a result of the issue of
ordinary shares pursuant to the initial public offering, the Directors were
authorised to allot and issue a total of 809,999,940 shares, by way of
capitalisation of the sum of HK$8,099,999 (approximate to
RM4,456,279) standing to the credit of the share premium account of
the Company, credited as fully paid at par to the controlling
shareholders.

On 11 July 2017, the Company issued 270,000,000 shares with a par
value of HK$0.01, at a price of HK$0.48 per share by way of a global
initial public offering to Hong Kong and International Investors. Net
proceeds from such issue amounted to HK$117,511,009 (approximate
to RM64,649,622) (after offsetting share issuance expenses of
HK$12,088,991 (approximate to RM6,650,855)), of which RM 1,485,427
and RM63,164,195 were recorded in share capital and share premium,
respectively.

(c) Nature and purposes of reserves

(i)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between
the nominal value of the shares of the Company and
proceeds received from the issuance of shares of the
Company. Under the Cayman Companies Law, the
share premium account of the Company is distributable
to the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company would be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of the business.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continuea)

19. R A K % & @
(b) B% 2 cm)

Bzt

(i)

BEAABDBRER=-T—tF~A
)\E&:ﬁ—tiﬁﬂfﬂ-_ﬁ‘
BREERER 4D Tﬁxfnm
Fﬁélmﬁax’xﬁ%ﬁ%%%ﬁ
B R #RE %?ZEH%EH%ZK
2 7 B& 17 % B AR 8,099,999 % T
(éﬁ4456279%5!€@§£ﬁi)m%&
RERRERN BERETEH
809999940Hxﬁxf CIREE AR
VEFE R PR R R IR K o

RZF—tF&tA+—8 ARQA
NE2HREARAEENTARE
78 & B B #% & % % 17270,000,000
SR EEA001BTHRNG:
EREHK BB T AR E
Fr 5 5K 18 # 8 A 117,511,000 7T
(#764,649,622F RIS FH ) (K
85 I& 19 % 17 F 212,088,991 %
7 (476,650,855 5% R FA = < &))
H 1485427 K A1 &5 4 &
63,164,195F RA T F D HIAR
B R HE o

c) BEHERAR

(i)

It &E

I 10 4 B 18 AN A & R 0 BR
EHEERRQABETRG K
BMAERBZEANERE B
BRER/FE AR 71&@
/ﬁnEE'ETﬁi/\/EE%$
R WEEEED /E{HX_\
2B ARAAFENX
KB EEBRRESR I
Btz EE -
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19. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature and purposes of reserves (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Other reserve

Other reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the par value of the Company’s shares issued
and the aggregate amount of paid-up capital of Edaran,
Radiant, Rasa Mulia and Shifu acquired from the
controlling shareholders on 29 December 2016
pursuant to the share swap as if the current group
structure and share swap had been occurred on 1
January 2016.

Other reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the par value of the Company’s shares issued
and the equity in Edaran, Radiant, Rasa Mulia and Shifu
acquired from the controlling shareholders on 29
December 2016.

Translation reserve

The reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note
3(c).

(d) Dividend

The board has resolved not to recommend the payment of
any final dividend for the current financial year.

19. R AR & & @)
(c) EEMEERAZ®@

(ii)

(iii)

Hib ke
AEEEMFEBERER
MEBRBETHARRARMD
HEER -_ZT—XNE+=
AZ+hBrZERRkElK
8% #Edaran - Radiant - Rasa
Mulia & Shifu i 2 I& 2N 48 %8
ZHEMmERE  BNIBRITEE
BEIBRNMEREN_-ZF
—NF—A—BELE-

AR EMmEEERR A
BEETEOEEER_Z
—A"NFE+ZA=Z+NLHMA
7 B% B% 3 U B A Edaran -
Radiant + Rasa Mulia }z Shifu
I R ZE%E o

BE A
ZHREERBREBINER
MBEBRRELENEZHER
=R o % E IR R FE3(0)
PRE M AT R IE -

(d) BE

EFTECRFBTEBRIRN AN K
FENEMRHARS -
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20. LOANS AND BORROWINGS 20. ER KRB
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
—E2-N\F —ET—+tF
+=ZA=+—-H +ZA=+—H
Note RM RM
(k=3 BRATSEH BRADSE
Non-current I BY HA
Bank loans — secured IRITER — HEA 2,906,435 3,404,583
Current BN HA
Bank loans — secured RITER - BEA 463,261 1,396,096
3,369,696 4,800,679
(@) Bank loans (@) |ITER
As of the end of the reporting period, the bank loans were RmERR BEERTERN
repayable as follows: N
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
—E-NE —E—F
+=-—A=+—-H +ZA=+—H
RM RM
ERAESEH ERALSE
Within one year —FNR 463,261 1,396,096
After one year but within two years —FEMFEN 484,796 387,097
After two years but within five years MEERAFRN 1,593,837 1,161,291
After five years HF 1% 827,802 1,856,195
2,906,435 3,404,583
3,369,696 4,800,679
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20. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued)

(a) Bank loans (Continued)

Security

20. ERKRBER @

The bank loans and bank overdrafts are secured over the
leasehold land, freehold land and factory buildings and other
buildings (see Note 13(a)) and the corporate guarantees given
by the Company (see Note 28(c)).

(b) Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to
cash flows arising from financing activities

(@ |ITER@m
K @

‘ 171

ZERITERKIBITEZTIAME
Bt KAXRELHWUARTE
BFREMET (LK E13() A
K AR A B o R AE IR (R B

iE28(c)) fEHE A o

b) EELSERRME T
BREREHK

At
At Net changes from 31 December 2017/ Net changes
1 January financing 1January  from financing
2017 activities 2018 activities
®»
“E—tF
+=A=+-8/
RZE—+F REEH —E-N\f REED
-A-H 2EHEE —-A-H SEEE
RM RM RM RM
ERATLHE ERATLHE EXRETE BRALRE
Bank loans BITER 5,034,031 (233,352) 4,800,679 (1,430,983)
Finance lease liabilities BEMERE 25,083 (25,083) - -
Total liabilities from
financing activities REEDHABLE 5,069,114 (258,435) 4,800,679 (1,430,983)

At
31 December
2018

R-B-N\fF
tTZA=t-H
RM
BREZSE

3,369,696

3,369,696
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21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are attributable to the following:

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
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M| :

31.12.2018
—E-N\F
+t=A=t-8
RM
BRELSE

Property, plant and equipment

(2,182,813)
462,952
138,240

94,080

(1,487,541)

Unrealised foreign exchange differences & & 5 SM [ = 58
Tax loss carry-forwards HIEBEGE
Provisions B
Contract liabilities EHBE
Representing: AT FEAG
— Deferred tax assets —REERIEEE
— Deferred tax liabilities —REEHIEAE

(1,487,541)

(1,487,541)

1. EEBHBREE (BE)

BEERBEE /(BB BBERATH

31.12.2017
—E—tF
+=-—A=+—AH
RM
BRAGESE
Restated

Exdl

(1,799,069)
(524,740)
40,674

70,147

(2,212,988)

36,304
(2,249,292)

(2,212,988)
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21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 1. EXEHRBEBEE (BB @

(Continued)
Movements in temporary differences during the year: FRNEREEEESH
At
31 December At
At Recognised in 2017/ Recognisedin 31 December
1 January 2017  profit or loss 1January 2018  profit or loss 2018
R-Z—t&§
+=A
=+t-8/ R=—ZB-N\f
R-E—tHF —E-N\F tTZA=+-
—A—8H RESER —A—H REZRA H
(Note 8) (Note 8)
(KF3E8) (Bt 5E8)
RM RM RM RM RM
BERALDSE BRAGSE SRERLET BFRALSE BFRAGRSE
Restated Restated
Edl Edl
Property, plant and equipment  #1%¥ - MR K& & (2,010,922) 211,853 (1,799,069 (383,744) (2,182,813)
Unrealised foreign exchange RAERINEZRE
differences (777,218) 252,478 (524,740) 987,692 462,952
Tax loss carry-forwards BEBBEE 49,464 (8,790) 40,674 (40,674) -
Provisions B 138,240 (138,240) - 138,240 138,240
Contract liabilities aHEaE - 70,147 70,147 23,033 94,080

(2,600,436) 387,448 (2,212,988) 725,447 (1,487,541)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. E 5 & Hth B FRIE
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
—E-NF —T—+F
+=ZA=+—-H8H +=ZA=+—H
RM RM
BRAZESE BRARSHE
Trade payables B 5 BB 3,501,209 4,459,014
Prepayment received from customers BREFENRE 584,608 470,734
Other payables and accruals HiEMNZBEBLESER 9,689,137 4,001,423

13,774,954 8,931,171

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled within
one year or are repayable on demand.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
payables based on the invoice date is as follows:

FMEES REMENRBERYR —F
NEBRNBEREEE -

BEREHMR ERBEZAHNES
FER FRIRRE DTN T ¢

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
+=-A=+—-8B +=-A=+—H”
RM RM

BERADSE FSARAESH

Within 1 month 118 AR

1 to 3 months 12 31E A
3 to 6 months 3ZE61EA
Over 6 months 618 AN E

2,195,529 3,454,925
1,155,955 1,001,723
147,300 =
2,425 2,366

3,501,209 4,459,014
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23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 23. EHNEE
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
+=-ZA=+—-8B +=ZA=+—H
RM RM
ERAESLH BERARSH
Restated
=7
Contract liabilities CROB=RE 392,000 292,278
The contract liabilities represent the contract with customer BHNRABRERBERRATHENTP
incentive (free goods) that is not completed as at the end of the REBEH(REEY) AHBEER
reporting period. The contract liabilities are expected to be RHERBF AL -

recognised as revenue within a year.

Significant changes to contract liabilities balance during the period HASGHNABERNERES W T
is as follow:
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
+=-—A=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
RM RM

BRAZSHE SRAEELH

Contract liabilities at the beginning of REVEREREZNEHERE
the period recognised as revenue
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Categories of financial instruments

The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments
as at 31 December 2018 categorised as amortised costs

24. @I A

(@ EMIAEER

TREER -_Z—N\F+_-_A=
+—HBoEEEHEK A ([HEEK

(“AC"). KNSRI EDH -
Carrying
amount AC
BREE 8 R AR
Note RM RM
e BRADZSE BRAZSE
2018 —E-N\E
Financial assets ERMEE
Trade and other receivables* B 5 & H e HxIE 15,454,269 15,454,269
Cash and cash equivalents HWERIBESEEY 18 46,089,253 46,089,253
61,543,522 61,543,522
Financial liabilities cREE
Loans and borrowings B RER 20 (3,369,696) (3,369,696)
Trade and other payables B 5 & H &S 5RIE 22 (13,774,954) (13,774,954)

(17,144,650) (17,144,650)
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments

as at 31 December 2017 categorised as

(@) Loans and receivables (“‘L&R”); and

(b)  Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (“FL”)

ontinued)

follows:

‘ 177

24. T Aw
(@ €@MITEEH@m

TREHRR-F

—tF+=R=

T—HERATHOENERMIAES

i

@ EXREREURFETER R
FEURIRD) + &

b HEEKAFTENTREA

B(E@RAE])
Carrying
amount L&R/(FL)
B & ER
R/ (&8
REE afE)
Note RM RM
Mg HBRAGRSE BRATESH
2017 —E—tHF
Financial assets EEEE
Trade and other receivables* 5 & H e W skIE 15,382,024 15,382,024
Cash and cash equivalents R RRLEEY 18 59,425,300 59,425,300
74,807,324 74,807,324
Financial liabilities SREE
Loans and borrowings BERNER 20 (4,800,679) (4,800,679)
Trade and other payables* E 5 K& H M FE A goE (8,714,562) (8,714,562)
(13,515,241) (13,515,241)

excluding prepayments and goods and services t

* excluding goods and services tax payable

ax receivable

TEERNFIARE &R BRI IA

* T EEE GRS RS IE
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Net gains and losses arising from financial

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

24. €@t T B )
b)) EMIEELENRER

instruments BB ERE
2018 2017
—B-N\F Tt
RM RM
ERAESE SRADSH
Net (losses)/gains on: LTEEW(ER), W& FE:
Financial assets at amortised cost REBERATENSREE
— Bad debts written off — ZEAR MG (12,505) —
— Foreign exchange differences — HNEE = 58 193,309 —
— Finance income — B A 832,224 =
1,013,028 —
Loans and receivables BERREWRIE
— Bad debt written off — 22 IR B8 (9,347)
— Foreign exchange differences — HNE ZE (1,446,924)
— Finance income — g A 189,953
(1,266,318)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost R#E K AT ENERAE
— Foreign exchange differences — SN = FE (2,084,239) 20,105
— Finance costs — B A AR (274,621) (376,973
(2,358,860) (356,868)
(1,345,832 (1,623,186)

(c) Financial risk management

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of

c) cREARER
AEBRERFHASR T A MmN

financial instruments: TR :
e Credit risk . =ERR

° Liquidity risk °

° Market risk .

nBEE AR
5 E K
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 24. $WI A

(d) Credit risk d) EERK

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss if a customer or
counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
arises principally from the individual characteristics of each
customers. There are no significant changes as compared to
prior periods.

Trade receivables

Risk management objectives, policies and processes
for managing the risk

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to
credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
facilities.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether any of
the trade receivables are credit impaired.

The gross carrying amounts of credit impaired trade
receivables are written off (either partially or full) when there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.
Nevertheless, trade receivables that are written off could still
be subject to enforcement activities.

There are no significant changes as compared to previous
year.

EERBREEFSeRIASHTF
FAREBITEANEBERHB
BEAMER AEEHEERR
TEREZEEPHEASR - H
BAEPEALRITESEKES -

EZEWRKIE
flﬁgﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
B Bz ) R S

EEECEREERRYLFESR
REERR - EEFERMAR
FEREERERET-

REBEEH  AEEFGHEM
BEH5RKRAEAZEHBREER

m R

fid B2 BB £ AR ERIE - K
SEAEME(Brx2H)EE
WMEE 5 RN FIERAREE -
ZERBEHREANEEEEE
AL E E S ARIRA] E £
Eﬁ’jfﬁﬁmuib{ E@%Wﬁﬁ%@
oA EMBOE S RYK
AP B B SR B #TT -

BHE-—FELRITEENE
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 24. £ T B @)
(d) Credit risk (continued) (d) FEERRE @

Trade receivables (Continued)

Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral

As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables are represented
by the carrying amounts in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than the
industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, 59% and
52% of the total trade receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and 71% and 65% of the total trade
receivables was due from the five largest customers of the

Group respectively.

Concentration of credit risk

The exposure of credit risk for trade receivables as at the end

of the reporting period by geographic region was:

2 5 EWRKE @
EERE EEEZEREMA
L

RMEBR KRB E HEKRFAE
HERAEERBIEESTBEKR
FHBEEE -

AEEERHNEERBREERE
HEPHERFEMIETPLE
FIBTHIBERNZE  AlLE
AEESEFRBEZHNTEE
BER % P REEAZEKE
BAS R N\FR_F—
tF+_A=+—"HB EF5EK
TR IH 48 58 1 59% N 52% & fIE U A
SEHEAREFPHKIE MEZEHK
FRIBBEEIT1% X 65% 4 & A
SBERAREFHIA-

EEEFER
REEHR BHRKFENGE
ERBIRIMEE DR

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
—®-N\F  —T—t%
t=A=t+-8 +=A=+-8
RM RM

SRAZSHE SARAZLH

West Indies AHEHS 6,970,903 4,940,295
South East Asia HEEgin 2,035,807 3,575,263
Middle East AR 2,784,555 2,222,832
North America IS 1,422,510 1,453,342
East Asia ¥ 45,243 216,806

Others Hib 984,639 2,469,823

14,243,657 14,878,361
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 24. @ T B
(d) Credit risk (Continued) (d) FEERE @
Trade receivables (Continued) g 5 EWRIE @)
Recognition and measurement of impairment losses JREE BRI ERRGE

In managing credit risk of trade receivables, the Group
manages its debtors and takes appropriate actions (including
but not limited to legal actions) to recover long overdue
balances. Generally, trade receivables will pay within 60 days.
The Group’s debt recovery process is as follows:

EEREZIREFENEERR
o NEEEEEGER ALK
BETH(BEEANRERR
*’\)Lxﬂk@tﬁﬂﬂiﬁﬁ%?ﬁ o — R
B S RYEGREBRE0RA
S‘ZN o 7R 4R B 1Y & 75 W B A2 an

un}

T

(@) Above 90 days past due after credit term, the Group @ 1EEH% @ 0K U £ -
will start to initiate a structured debt recovery process REEBEHBRE&BEE
which is monitored by the sales management team; Fi‘%ﬂ&lﬁl&ﬁ HIEEERE
and B B BE

(b)  Above 120 days past due, the Group will commence a ) BMHI120KR A b NEEK
legal proceeding against the customer. HEPEBRERFD -

The Group uses an allowance matrix to measure ECLs of all AREBFERABEEREFEMEE
trade receivables. Consistent with the debt recovery process, SEWGFIENIEE{=ZRE L - &
invoices which are past due 90 days will be considered as ERWERF 5 BE0XA

credit impaired.

Loss rates are calculated using a ‘roll rate’ method based on
the probability of a receivable progressing through successive

stages of delinquency to 90 days past due.

Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over
the past three years. The Group also considers differences
between (a) economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected, (b) current
conditions and (c) the Group’s view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables. Nevertheless, the
Group believes that these factors are immaterial for the

purpose of impairment calculation for the year.

The Group assessed that there is no significant loss
allowance recognised in accordance with IFRS 9 as at 31

December 2018.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would

expose the Group to credit risk.

BRERRESEERE-

BRAERERREXR|TERERE
HQ*”IELL%@i%T’@Tﬁ%EQZEEE
BEOORMBERETE -

BRAEERBE=FNERER

BRERMNTE - AEEITE E@)
WS JE £ BiiE BRI a0 8 B AR OR

(ORI + R (c) 7 5 B 4 B LK
FIRTE B eV B AR L B0 B B
ZHEBMEE - A XEERZ
ZEREZHARFENREFEL
TEX-

AEBAL RZF—NF+=
A=+—8 TRREBRY G
#4508 A FEOW R E A
-

AEEYEEHGEETEEE
2 B ) FE AT 4R
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 24, Et T B

(d) Credit risk (Continued) (d) EERE @

Trade receivables (Continued)

Recognition and measurement of impairment losses
(Continued)

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in Note 17.

Cash and cash equivalents

The cash and cash equivalents are held with banks and
financial institutions. As at the end of the reporting period, the
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by their
carrying amounts in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

These banks and financial institutions have low credit risks.
The Group is of the view that the loss allowance is not
material and hence, it is not provided for.

Other receivables

Credit risks on other receivables are mainly arising from
deposits paid for office buildings and fixtures rented. These
deposits will be received at the end of each lease terms. The
Group manages the credit risk together with the leasing
arrangement.

As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by their carrying amounts in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group did not
recognise any allowance for impairment losses.

Inter-company loans and advances

Risk management objectives, policies and processes
for managing the risk

The Company provides unsecured loans and advances to
subsidiaries. The Company monitors the ability of the
subsidiaries to repay the loans and advances on an individual
basis.

2 5 EWRKE @
S EE B TR KB ()

BRAKERAE S REMEYK
REWNEERRNE - FELR
BENME7 -

RERBAEESEY

Re MRS SEMNRIRER
WERE - NREHER KA
ERBIEENGABERRED
AR E -

ZERTReBEBNEERR
BR - AKERBBRERL T
BER - HUL W R B -

H fth f& W 7R IE
HtEEFBRENEERREEK
BEREABRABFTFREEEES
HE’HZ??ﬁ ZEREHENEHE

AEREHIR - AEFEAER
$3F—19$ EREERR -

EAib’ziHﬂEE RAEERRER
KRB BRRAROEREE -

RBEHR AEEYELBEE

BRI -

RAEERRBERK

/7 R EEAIE HERKEIE
R E{]%f/_‘»

ZN’AETHJ‘JWJ%’D\ET%%T#E%EWE
RARBK - NRRBEEN B QA
B {8 & B R BREBE S -
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 24. €@t T B )
(d) Credit risk (continued) (d) BN )
Inter-company loans and advances (Continued) ARBEREBR @
Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral EERERE EEEZZEHHF
v
As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure RIEHER FEREERAKRIER
to credit risk is represented by their carrying amounts in the RARNRHBARKROREE -

Company’s statement of financial position.

Loans and advances provided are not secured by any FriR /Y B 30 & 2 O LA ] #K
collateral or supported by any other credit enhancements. WYEE BB TMEMmEER
VARED R
Recognition and measurement of impairment loss R EEBHERRGE
Generally, the Company considers loans and advances to —RBRME ARABRAEEMER
subsidiaries have low credit risk. The Company assumes that FANMEBERERBTNEERRE
there is a significant increase in credit risk when a subsidiary’s Ko ARRBRBEERRLK B
financial position deteriorates significantly. As the Company is NEMBH R BEERRREE
able to determine the timing of payments of the subsidiaries’ A0 o RN D TR 591 FE < B
loans and advances when they are payable, the Company EEMBAREREATOI
considers the loans and advances to be in default when the BRE B ENB AR EERE
subsidiaries are not able to pay when demanded. The KENE ARAFIREERLH
Company considers a subsidiary’s loan or advance to be RED -FETHBFERLT » AR A
credit impaired when: REWMBARINERSN BT HI
EERME
° The subsidiary is unlikely to repay its loan or advance to o Z M B A Bl K] BE [A) A
the Company in full; NAIZHEEEERKE

=
A

e The subsidiary’s loan or advance is overdue for more . ZHBARMERLBR
than 365 days; or # HAHBA365 K ¢ Bk

. The subsidiary is continuously loss making and is o ZMBAREEER Wi
having a deficit shareholders’ fund. SRRESEA -

The Company determines the probability of default for these AR EME R RS A A B E RHE

loans and advances individually using internal information AMETZEERNRATNOEDT

available. o

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company did not E &= B NI /NI I 2 3 s K =

recognise any allowance for impairment losses. BIE R -
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet
its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s exposure
to liquidity risk arises principally from its trade and other

payables and loans and borrowings.

The Group maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
and adequate banking facilities by the management to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to

meet its liabilities as and when they fall due.

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity
analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly

different amounts.

Maturity analysis

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the

Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the

reporting

period based on undiscounted contractual payments:

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

24. €@t T B )

(e)

RBETRER

mBECREMBEAREREEE
IHeRmBENER - AEEE
HHRBECERIEHEES
K H A BN RIE - BERREK
A8 o

AEBFREFNREIREFE
MERANRITRE  REERE
BRREABAEERESHESR
HORBESUEREIHE

BHIAPELIMTNRSAED

ERERENTEERRATRG
SR -

FBA DM
TREANBERRAEEE R
BENIMABR(ENRR
BHRF)

Contractual
interest
Carrying rate per  Contractual Under More than
amount annum cash flows 1year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5years
FEE AOFHE GHBRERE 1EUR 1826 2B5F 5
RM % RM RM RM RM RM
BREAERE % HZRAETLE FREGRSE FRALSE SRALSE BRALLE
2018 —E-N\E
Loans and borrowings EXRER
— Bank loans —RITEXR 3,369,696 4.02%-4.65% 3,755,470 602,280 602,280 1,806,840 744,070
Trade and other payables & 5 & H
B 13,774,954 13,774,954 13,774,954
17,144,650 17,530,424 14,377,234 602,280 1,806,840 744,070
2017 —E-tF
Loans and borrowings EFRER
— Bank loans - RITEX 4,800,679  4.02%-4.65% 6,056,105 1,741,089 691,528 2,074,583 1,548,905
Trade and other payables & 5 & H
JEfTFRIA 8,931,171 - 8,931,171 8,931,171 = = =
13,731,850 14,987,276 10,672,260 691,528 2,074,583 1,548,905
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

() Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as
interest rates, foreign exchange rates and commodity prices
that will affect the Group’s financial position or cash flows.

(i) Interest rate risk
The Group’s fixed rate borrowings are exposed to a risk
of change in fair value due to changes in interest rates.
The Group’s floating rate borrowings are exposed to a
risk of change in cash flows due to changes in interest
rates. Short term receivables and payables are not
significantly exposed to interest rate risk.

Risk management objectives, policies and

24. £ T B @)

() ™%EE

misERETSERHREDH
Rk mEEREREETEN
SEMBARLBESRENH
RNEER N mER -

i) FEE®
AEBEHEENEERE
HRFAEZHEHA L B
ERBMER - AEEHT
OEES PR
PEUBLAREHNA
o o K350 M SR B R
YR AL 4 5 AR R LR o

RBREERE BHERL

processes for managing the risk EIE 7 B ) 2 7
The Group utilises long and short term borrowings for NREBEGFZEEELHEEH
working capital purposes. The Group manages its ARENEHEZ AEH
interest rate exposure by maintaining a mix of fixed and BB E TR EEH
floating rates borrowings. FEEREEEEELR R
Exposure to interest rate risk B] 31 71 3 2] B
The interest rate profile of the Group’s significant RBEHRARAARNEFBE E 5t
interest-bearing financial instruments, based on carrying ESBMTEMFERBR(E
amounts as at the end of the reporting period are as MREEmE)WNT :
follows:
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
+—A=+—H +=ZA=+—H
RM RM
BRAZESE BRATLSH
Fixed rate instruments EFEITAR
Bank loans RITERK 1,009,000
Floating rate instruments FEANERIA
Bank loans BITER 3,369,696 3,791,679
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 24. €@ T B @)
() Market risk (continued) () ™% & ks )

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) F==E @
Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis T 3K [ [ &0 7% JE 2 T
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments BEIEMETAMN 2 IBE
The Group does not account its fixed rate financial AEEBTEAREAAE
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a B AEBEHZNEEMNZE S
change in interest rates at the respective reporting mEE. Bt &% HH
dates would not affect profit or loss. MNEEESH BB -
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for floating rate EEFERT AME LR
instruments BHEESN
A change of 100 basis points (“bp”) in interest rates at MREREEIKR - A =S FH100
the end of the reporting period would have increased/ BEZTEZ]D BiE
(decreased) post-tax profit by the amounts shown WA EIR AT R4 5
below. This analysis assumes that all other variables B CRLA) o kD 18 E B
remain constant. BHMEBESREBFTE -

Increased/(Decreased)

post-tax profit

#gm, (D) BB %R

100 bp 100 bp
increase decrease
EM10EES WP 100EE S
RM RM

FRAZSTE SFRAZRSH

2018 —E-N\F

Floating rate instruments FEBANEITAR

Financial liabilities *HEE (25,610) 25,610
2017 —E—LF

Floating rate instruments FERANEIA

Financial liabilities SRAE (28,817) 28,817
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

24. £ T B @)

() Market risk (continued) () ™5 & ks )
(i) Currency risk (i) E¥ERE
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales AN EE AR E B E E
and purchases that are denominated in a currency B RE B LINE B B 5t
other than the respective functional currencies of Group BEHE S mYINE R - 5
entities. The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily BEBRHNEEFTE AX
US$. JT °
Exposure to currency risk [H ¥ & ¥ 7 bz
The following table details the Group’s exposure to TEEHENAEBEARE
foreign currency (a currency which is other than the HA 2K /9 BR M ([ M 5 9 (A
functional currency of the Group entities) risk, based on EEERNEEE UG
carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period. E¥)NRR - MERE M
For presentation purpose, the amounts of the exposure ms - Bk e5IRmEH
are expressed in RM, translating using the spot rate at REBEAME R 8 A 52K
end of the reporting period. AESHEIR-
Denominated in US$
UExFHE
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
—E-NF+ ZZE—tF+
—A=+—-H8H =—ZA=+—H
RM RM
BRAZSE BRALZSH
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk E bW FIE 12,888,159 11,349,669
Cash and cash equivalents BHe RBELEEY 10,939,964 2,542 152
Trade and other payables ZE o5 REMERRE (523,586) (378,904)
23,304,537 138,512,917
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

() Market risk (continued)
(ii) Currency risk (Continued)

Currency risk sensitivity analysis

A 10% strengthening of RM against US$ at the end of
each reporting period would have increased/(decreased)
post-tax profit by the amounts shown below. This
analysis is based on foreign currency exchange rate
variances that the Group considered to be reasonably
possible at the end of each reporting period. This
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remained constant.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continuea)

24. £ T B @)

(f)

™ % Bk o)

(i) E¥EE @
B B 8 R T
REREBRE RS S
EHET EF10% @ BRI

& A R AR PR & RR AR
moOm ) o D T ER
AEBERBNZTRERAR
BEBAURANIINEEXRE
BMiEL - kO MBRERAE
HiEgE(LEEMNE)F
ﬁfﬂ_x"

Increased/(Decreased)
post-tax profit for the

(iii)

year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-HLFERN

BR B %08 R IE b, CRL2)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —+tF
RM RM
BRARSE BRALSH

uss$ ETT (1,026,982

A 10% weakening of RM against US$ at the end of THEEMEERFTE

each reporting period would have had equal but BIBERT REREEHR
opposite effect on US$ to the amounts shown above, BRAGTSEHRET TR
on the basis that all other variables remained constant. 10%EHEXETEEHE EXR

FReBESERYER
MY -

Commodity price risk (i) BmEERR
Raw materials such as coconuts are major components HFERMETDEFEEKXAR
of cost of inventories. Exposure to fluctuations in the REZHEKED - BEERM

ARHERERESERH
%@Jﬁﬁ?fﬂﬁtﬂ 1735 3B
EEBER-

commodity prices of such raw materials is closely
monitored by management and managed through
adjusting the selling prices. B®
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 24. @ T B
(g) Fair value information (9 2AEEER
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, short HEMBESZEY SHEKRR
term receivables and payables and short term borrowings BEREMNZENLREHAEZOEE
reasonably approximate their fair values due to the relatively BEEAEALEBESEEE R
short term nature of these financial instruments. AZEeRm T AEYBHEYEH
M"E -
The table below analyses financial instruments not carried at TEROMARBECEEBIT &
fair value for which fair value is disclosed, together with their BEARBEIENSHBHITIAER
carrying amounts shown in the consolidated statement of SEVBERRKRATEERE - B
financial position. None of the financial instruments are carried WENME - HiEeRIARAR
at fair value during the reporting period. BEYK-

Fair value of financial instruments
not carried at fair value
WEREZAABBIIENESMIA

ARMEE Carrying

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total amount
EF—EBHR EF-EBHR E=ZEHR “®et REE
RM RM RM RM RM
Bk E Bk HRFmDE HARAE SRS
A= AN A= A= AN+

< A < A < A < A ~< A

2018 —E-N\F

Financial liability cRAE

Bank loans |ITER — 2,405,762 2,405,762 3,369,696

2017 ZE—tF

Financial liability e s

Bank loans RITER — — 4,354,561 4,354,561 4,800,679

25. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 25 EARXER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital is to maintain a AREEBREBEARNBEZERGEEH
strong capital base and safeguard the Group’s ability to continue ENEARAERMNRERAEBFTELE
as a going concern, so as to maintain investors, creditors and EBEWE T NEFREE BERA
market confidence and to sustain future development of the EmBEL UWERRBEBEHNKRKE
business. BER -
There were no changes in the Group’'s approach to capital REBEERN AEENEARAETEH

management during the financial year. SEW T o
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26. COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments

S&P International Holding Limited
Annual Report 2018

26. HIE

Capital commitments outstanding at the end of the reporting
period not provided for in the consolidated financial

statements are as follows:

(a)

BAXRERE

R EERNEGE T MK B KR
ARBENREZEERNEKEN
T

2018 2017
—ZE-NEF —E—tF
RM RM
BRARSE BRAELSH
Property, plant and equipment ME BERRZE
Authorised but not contracted for BREBKRETL 33,164,728 51,500,000
Contracted but not provided for BRI #BRFTIREBE 35,022,792 1,073,090
Operating lease commitments (b) KREHEHRE
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as ERTAHELEEEER W
follows: ™
2018 2017
—E-NE —E—tF
RM RM
BRARSE BRALSH
Within one year —F R 172,310 78,480
After one year but within five years —FLEBERAFEA 87,680 70,220
259,990 148,700

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties
held under operating leases. The leases typically run for an
initial period of one to three years, with an option to renew
the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases

includes contingent rentals.

AEBSRBELEHOFEZ R
MENEBEAN - BO—RNTH
H—Z2=%F EFEFMEGR
BRAEESEEN - HEEOE
BEAES -
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27. CONTINGENCY 27. {AREIE
The Directors are of the opinion that provision is not required in HRARBEEEKEEMNSOAEET
respect of this matter, as it is not probable that a future sacrifice of K BEERABARZEETIZRE -

economic benefits will be required.

2018
—E-N\EF
RM
BERARSE

Contingent liability not considered remote
FREBAFEK

Litigation

o 7

During the year, a lawsuit was filed by a third party against the Group in a dispute of sale and 784,080
purchase of a plot of land. The plaintiff is claiming the balance deposit of RM784,080 with interest
and costs, whereas the Group has filed a counterclaim for a refund of deposit paid previously
amounting to RM196,020. The Case Management and Trial are scheduled on 12 April 2019 and 6
May 2019, respectively. The solicitor is of the view that the Group has strong prospects of
successfully defending the action. Based on the legal advice, the Directors do not expect the
outcome of the action to have a material effect on the Group’s financial position.

RAFE —2F=7HALHEEUNHAEERLEFL - FRERRBK T L £784,0805F
KOEESHERNERER MAKECDRERBF - ERIRE KA X MR E 196,020
ERARLE RUBEBRBFESAIR-_ZE-AFHA+_BR-_ZE-—AFRANKB
EMRAAEERKAE ,thZ FARAKINEE - RBEZEER ESFTHRHFLERELEE
W BRI mMBEBRTE
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28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Identity of related parties

For the purposes of the financial statements, parties are considered
to be related to the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control or jointly control the party or exercise significant
influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions,
or vice versa, or where the Group and the party are subject to
common control. Related parties may be individuals or other
entities.

Related parties also include key management personnel defined as
those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group either directly or
indirectly. The key management personnel include all the Directors
of the Group, and certain members of senior management of the
Group.

(@) Significant related party transactions
The terms and conditions of the related party transactions are
based on negotiated terms. The significant related party
transactions of the Group are shown below.

28. Bt A R 5

BA Rt T Y & 17

RUBHEME  HAKEEENE
Bk R B R AR % T L%
THMBRREERRBEEARE
NWRZIRR)  KAEERZTZHK
[ #2132 05 1R AR /3 A 5 [ A A Bt
ToRmBET A REAKEMELRE -

B TERIEEEAE TBE
BABREREERIMEHAEEE
BORE - HEBrRRESNREERIRE
EFOAL - T2EBRAEREAEE
MEEEURAEERETEREERRE
BB o

(@ EXBEBAIRS
BAHE T X 5 B R R AR E R
BEREIGERET L - ARBEHNEKREH
AR ZBHRIMAT

=

Director
Disposal of a subsidiary

HE—FHEB R

2018 2017
—E-NE —E—+tF
RM RM
BRARSE BRALSH
(6,445)
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28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Identity of related parties (continued)

(b)

(d)

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s Directors as
disclosed in Note 10 and certain of the highest paid
employees as disclosed in Note 11, is as follows:

28. Bt A R 5 )
B S B B 19 (a0

(b)

TEEBAESTM

AEBEEERABEMH(BE
AT AR A E R (R 108
BIRETRSFMES (R

Salaries and other benefits HFehEME
Discretionary bonuses BB TE AT

1€
Contributions to Employees’ Provident Fund B & Af& & it

MEE)NESE)WOT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RM RM
BEXATSE BRATSH
2,726,664 2,094,370
— 19,816
302,828 221,627
3,029,492 2,335,813

The above remuneration for key management personnel is
included in personnel expenses as disclosed in Note 9.

Corporate guarantees by the Company

The Company entered into corporate guarantees in favour of
the banks, in respect of the banking facilities of
RM11,235,000 granted to S&P Industries and Stancodex as
disclosed in Note 20(a).

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

Subsequent to the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Main Board of Stock Exchange on 11 July 2017, the Group
did not enter into any related party transaction that falls under
the definition of connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

(c)

(d)

P 2B A B F MR
I BEMEARX -

ADNFHNTEER

A B Bt M §E20() B 3 25 S&P
Industries & Stancodex & #% £ #R 17
B & 11,235,000 5 2R A 55 < & A
RITATHEAGT L EER-

HEERZHEHBEN LHR
R B8 A
ARARBR-_T—LFLAT
—AEBMXMER LMK K&
B3 4% 5T S TR RIS 14AE R
EENMEXFARRMERH
B 1 ] B 7 52 5
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29. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 20. Wi —E M E A A
29.1 Acquisition of a subsidiary — M. Ace (Thailand) 091 E—BEHNE AR —M.
Co., Ltd. (“M. Ace”) Ace (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
(TM. Ace)
On 15 October 2018, the Group acquired 90.57% shares in M. RZZE—NF+HA+EBR K%
Ace (Thailand) Co., Ltd. for THB 300 (equivalent to RM38), B LA 300 k(M E R38F KA
satisfied in cash. The intended principal activity of M. Ace is < %) BB M. Ace (Thailand) Co.,
to import and export coconut milk products. Ltd. F)90.57% /% 1 + W LAIR & &

oM AR ETTHEB XK A
EOREOFPESD-

The following summarises the major classes of consideration AT prEERENEER
transferred, and the recognised amounts of assets acquired B A R A YRS B BB RE SR &9 AT IR
and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date: BEERTRIEABHNSE

RM
BRAEERLH

Fair value of consideration transferred FFEERENAOAEBE
Cash and cash equivalents e kBEEEYD 38

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed Frii BB sk Bl B E R Fr i

=R
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b & W kIR 26,981
Cash and cash equivalents e hkBEEEYD 85,059
Trade and other payables B 5 & E M FE IR (634,654)
Total identifiable net liabilities Al FE A F B EARE (422,614)

Net cash inflow arising from acquisition of a subsidiary U i# — B KB QA T E 4L

RERANTE
Purchase consideration settled in cash and cash equivalents € R\ Z B Y8
BENRE (38)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FIERE RS EED 85,059
85,021
Goodwill BE
Goodwill was recognised as a result of the acquisition as KWHEEROEENT
follows:
Total consideration transferred FreEZenE 38
Fair value of identifiable net liabilities AHFABENAREE 422,614
Non-controlling interest, based on proportionate interest RIERFTUWE AT RFA
in the net identifiable liabilities acquired &8 2= L I 5T B M FEIE
P& RE S 92,861

Goodwill (Note 15) EE (K E15) 515,513
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29. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)  29. Y g — B Mt B 2 & @)

29.1 Acquisition of a subsidiary — M. Ace (Thailand)
Co., Ltd. (“M. Ace”) (continued)

The goodwill in relation to the acquisition of M. Ace was fully
impaired during the year.

30. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

During the year, the Group adopted IFRS 15, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and IFRS 9, Financial Instruments on its
financial statements. IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for recognising revenue from contracts with customers.
IFRS 15 will replace the existing revenue standard, IAS 18,
Revenue, which covers revenue arising from sale of goods and
rendering of services. Whereas, IFRS 9 replaces the guidance in
IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement on
the classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities and impairment of financial assets.

The Group generally applied the requirements of these accounting
standards retrospectively with practical expedients and transitional
exemptions as allowed by the standards. Nevertheless, as
permitted by IFRS 9, the Group has elected not to restate the
comparatives.

30.1 Impacts on financial statements

The following tables summarise the impacts arising from the
adoption of IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 on the Group’s financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2017.
Upon adoption of IFRS 15 and IFRS 9, there is no impact to
the Group’s financial statements as of 1 January 2017.

1B —BEHNE A7 —M.
Ace (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
(TM. Ace) i)

HIREM. AceEFANAEC R F
NABURE °

30. B BERNEKREEH

FR - AEEREBERREABER
B HmELRUEISTR KEEFEH
A as & BIRRBE TS RS RSB O5E - £
MTA BERVBEREEANFIGHRZE
Y- ARRBREEF A QNS
BHER - BB B HRELENF165H A
BRRRARZERER S ERE18
S Wz OREHREEmMEHR—REE
Erias) o BRI 75 S ERIE
SRR BEIR G LR FEI% 2/ T
A - ERLRTEAHTREELSR
BEDENFEUNLREREEREDN
3l

AEEEBENERZSTETERD
RE URAZEENFAAFTORE
HRAkBERR - BE WU - WEE
MR ELERNFEFAAFA > REEE
BAYHRERETED -

NIHPBHRRNTE

R A BR A B R B 75 S 22 R
FIE R BERMHEHREENFE
FHAEERE _T—+F+ =
A=+—B LM ERFEN MR
RELENTE REMBERM
53R & A R 5515 5% I B B1 75 ¥
EEAESRR  AEEHE—
E—tF-A-—BHPBHRRL

= | =
EIE|TE -
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30. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 30. € B EMWE X8 F )

POL'C'ES (Continued)
30.1 Impacts on financial statements (Continued) NNEHBERRANEE @
a. Consolidated statement of financial a. mEMBMRRE
position

31 December 2017
—E—+tF+=-A=+—8H

As previously IFRS 15 As
reported adjustments restated

B BR B 7S 3R 5

R E 155
LA 23] A =]
RM RM RM
BRAGDSE BRALESEH BRAESEH
Total assets EE#E 133,468,975 — 133,468,975
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBEE (2,319,439) 70,147 (2,249,292)
Contract liabilities AHAaE = (292,278) (292,278)
Others H (15,450,806) — (15,450,806)
Total liabilities EEEAE (17,770,245) (222,131)  (17,992,376)
Reserves & (51,049,108) 222,131 (50,826,977)
Others HAtb (64,649,622) — (64,649,622)
Total equity EEEE (115,698,730) 222131  (115,476,599)
Total equity and liabilites X R A @E# % (133,468,975) — (133,468,975
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30. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 30. € BENE K& F 4
POL'C'ES (Continued)

30.1 Impacts on financial statements (continued)

b.

Consolidated statement of profit or loss

30.1 YW B WK AV

=% -9

= = (&)

b. #EEEREMEME

and other comprehensive income W = =
As previously IFRS 15 As
reported  adjustments restated
MR B R
R E155
FAI2 ] AE Rl
RM RM RM
SRAGESE SAEGESE SREESH
For the year ended HE-Z-+tE+=H
31 December 2017 =+—-HIEEE
Revenue W& 96,523,837 (292,278) 96,231,559
Cost of sales HEKA (65,029,580) - (65,029,580)
Gross profit E | 31,494,257 (292,278) 31,201,979
Other income HilA 652,722 — 652,722
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERE (5,647,423) = (6,647,423)
Administrative expenses THAEY (20,012,924) - (20,012,924)
Other expenses H i 32 (1,480,735) - (1,480,735)
Profit from operations "ERAN 5,005,897 (292,278) 4,713,619
Finance income U A 189,953 = 189,953
Finance costs B BB AR (376,973) - (376,973)
Net finance costs B HAFE (187,020) - (187,020)
Profit before taxation B %5 A0 % A 4,818,877 (292,278) 4,526,599
Income tax expense FTEmiAY (4,408,046) 70,147 (4,337,899)
Profit for the year FREA 410,831 (222,131) 188,700
Other comprehensive expense FREMZEBRX
for the year, net of tax (MpRBE)
ltem that may be reclassified REAESEN 7 EE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmsHE -
Foreign currency translation differences 4| ¥ i & 2 58 (2,748,679 = (2,748,679
Total comprehensive expense for ER2EHE XA
the year (2,337,848) (222,131) (2,559,979)
As
previously As
reported restated
KA 2], Rl
Basic and diluted earnings per BREBEREAKEE
ordinary share (expressed in Sen) Z R (ML RR) : 0.04 0.02
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30. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 30. €3 BEWE X E T (&

PO LlClES (Continued)
30.1 Impacts on financial statements (continued) NI HHBEHRRNOTE
c. Consolidated statement of cash flows c. Z=EeH ﬁiﬁ%%@
As previously IFRS 15 As
reported adjustments restated
MR BT R
Z R 51555
S A2 AE =]
RM RM RM
BRATSE FRATSE BRALSE
For the year ended BZE-_Z—tH&+=A
31 December 2017 =+—HLEEE
Profit before tax B BRI F 4,818,877 (292,278) 4,526,599
Adjustments for: LA T &I EH 8% -
Change in contract liabilities & %) & (& & &) — 292,278 292,278
Others Hifb (9,599,087) — (9,599,087)

Net cash used in operating F& FBFFARE

activities =2 (4,780,210) — (4,780,210)
30.2 Accounting for financial instruments N2EMIENSTEE
a. Transition a. BE

In the adoption of IFRS 9, the following transitional A ER 40 B R B 7% 3R 45 2= B
exemptions as permitted by the standard have been FOWKE KEBDHEABZ
adopted: R AFZTIBERR

() The Group has not restated comparative 0] B R 4% B BR B 7%
information for prior periods with respect to 4 ¥ Bl 5958 M 5|
classification and measurement (including e RmEELRSESR
impairment) requirement on the basis that there ﬁ EEREEEZEN =

are no differences in the carrying amount of E-NE—A—HBH&

financial assets and financial liabilities resulting 1% BEANEFEERE

from the adoption of IFRS 9 in retained earnings CAREFBY ESE E\J

and reserves as at 1 January 2018. The 15 rTHEE#ES A

information presented for 2017 does not generally FE(BEEE) %E T

reflect the requirements of IFRS 9, but rather ZHEER 275

those of IAS 39. - —+E&88A

B R R B

MEEAFGHE MR
oMM BB e Et
ERFEIFHRTE ©
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30. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

30.2 Accounting for financial instruments (continued)

a. Transition (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The following assessments have been made
based on the facts and circumstances that
existed at the date of initial application if
applicable:

—  the determination of the business model
within which a financial asset is held;

—  the designation and revocation of previous
designations of certain financial assets and
financial liabilities as measured at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”); and

— the designation of certain investments in
equity instruments not held for trading as at
fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”).

If an investment in a debt security had low credit
risk at date of initial application of IFRS 9, the
Group has assumed that the credit risk on the
asset had not increased significantly since its
initial recognition.

Loss allowance for receivables (other than trade
receivables) is recognised at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses until the receivable
is derecognised.

30. BT BEMEKREH @)

NIETRMIENETEE @
a. BE @
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30. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 30. € B EMWE X8 F )

POL'C'ES (Continued)
30.2 Accounting for financial instruments (Continued) N2&MTENEFEE W
b. Classification of financial assets and b. eREERSMEE
financial liabilities on the date of initial REREHREB KB &%
application of IFRS 9 HAERIEISE A HI M
2%
IFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal PR B 75 R & #E B B 95 15
classification categories: measured at amortised cost, EMEEIR=ZMEESE
at fair value through other comprehensive income Bl REHEKAGE EQ
(“FVOCI”) and at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). REBEEFTAEME2EKZE
These supersede IAS 39’s categories of held-to- (AR BEsSAHM S
maturity investments, loans and receivables, available- mzEl RiEARBES
for-sale financial assets and financial assets measured AE=m(Z 2R EBEFTA
at fair value through profit or loss. Bxml ZEHBEIRBE

SR EREIR 2 |
HEIHKRE BERRER
FRE -AHLESRHEER
BArREBEFAREZSE
BMEE -
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30. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 30. €:t BFE W E K& 8 @)
POL'C'ES (Continued)

30.2 Accounting for financial instruments (Continued) N2EMITENETEE W
b. Classification of financial assets and b. tREERERES
financial liabilities on the date of initial REXEREB KK
application of IFRS 9 (Continued) WEZERFEIORAHH
2E @
The following table shows the measurement categories TRINTAEEZEEHR
under IAS 39 and the new measurement categories EBENSRABER_ZE—
under IFRS 9 for each class of the Group’s financial NF—A—BHEBEE&:T
assets and financial liabilities as at 1 January 2018: R EI95IB TR EHE

AR BRSHEREERE
$RIR T MR 2R A -

1 January 2018
“E-N\E-A-H
Reclassification to new IFRS 9 category

ENDREERUBREENFINHOE

Amortised Fvocl Fvocl

31 December cost — Debt — Equity

Category under 1AS 39 2017 Remeasurement (“AC”) FVTPL  instrument  instrument

RANEE RONEER

ZEtF HPN-L HPN-Li

oS -h g +=A BRAAEE 2EkE 2ENE

ERETHNIE =+-8 B E BHERE FABE -fEBIR -RAIA
RM RM RM RM RM RM  Notes

FRADSE BREDSE FRALSH BRADSE BRAEDSE BRENSE M

Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables ERREWFGE
Trade and other receivables  E 5 R EMERFUE 15,382,024 15,382,024 30.2(b)f)
Cashand cash equivalents ~ F 42 RBELEEY 59,425,300 59,425,300
74,807,324 74,807,324
Financial liabilities EA= 5L

Other financial liabilites ~ Z#HR A EMN
measured at amortised ~ Hit$FER

cost
Loans and borrowings ERRER (4,800,679) (4,800,679)
Trade and other payables ~ B 5 L EMEMNZIE (8,714,562 (8,714,562)

(13,515,241) (13,515,241)
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30. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

30.2 Accounting for financial instruments (Continued)

b.

Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities on the date of initial
application of IFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)  Reclassification from loans and receivables
to amortised cost

Trade and other receivables that were classified
as loans and receivables under IAS 39 are now
reclassified at amortised cost.

Credit losses of financial assets on the
date of initial application of IFRS 9

IFRS 9 also replaces the “incurred loss” model in IAS
39 with the ECLs model. The ECLs model requires an
ongoing measurement of credit risk associated with a
financial asset and therefore recognises ECLs earlier
than under the “incurred loss” accounting model in IAS
39.

The Group applies the new ECLs model to financial
assets measured at amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, and trade and other receivables).

There is no significant impact on the Group’s financial
position and financial result upon initial application at 1
January 2018.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
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30. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 30. € BENE K& F 4
POL'C'ES (Continued)

30.3 Accounting for revenue 03 WEMNEFTTEE
The Group has elected to use the retrospective restatement REBDEREBFERALOWEY L -
method and comparative information has been restated in W ERE BRI a5 2R 15
accordance with IFRS 15. BN EE R o
a. Transition a. BE
In the adoption of IFRS 15, the following practical R 4R B B B 5 iR S 2 B
expedients as permitted by the standard have been E15HE AEBEE KA
adopted: ZEAARFTZTIERTRE
i
(@) for completed contracts, the Group does not @ HMEZTKEHME -
restate contracts that: REBWEEY T 5
a5
(i) begin and end within the same annual 0] NE—FEER/RE
reporting period; or BRI R iR R AR
1E 5k
(i)  are completed contracts at the beginning of i) REAZEIHHF
the earliest period presented. HEHT AL T
A # o
(o) for completed contracts that have variable b)) REEUTEREMHD
consideration, the Group uses the transaction TRAXME A&
price at the date the contract was completed FRALTKE B
rather than estimating variable consideration MRXSER mIEMH
amounts in the comparative reporting periods. StAIE R REEM

MBS
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30. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

30.3 Accounting for revenue (Continued)

a. Transition (Continued)

()

for contracts that were modified before the
beginning of the earliest period presented, the
Group does not retrospectively restate the
contract for those contract modifications. Instead,
the Group reflects the aggregate effect of all of
the modifications that occur before the beginning
of the earliest period presented when:

(i) identifying the satisfied and unsatisfied
performance obligations;

(i)  determining the transaction price; and

(i) allocating the transaction price to the
satisfied and unsatisfied performance
obligations.

for comparatives, the Group does not disclose
the amount of consideration allocated to the
remaining performance obligations and an
explanation of when the Group expects to
recognise revenue.

The application of these practical expedients are not
expected to have material impact to the Group.

" Notes to the Financial Statements (continuea)
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30. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 30. € BENE K& F 4

POL'C'ES (Continued)
30.3 Accounting for revenue (Continued) NINBHNETEE @
b. Presentation of contract liabilities on the b. REXERBEKMK
date of initial application of IFRS 15 & ZRlIE1598 A HA
2IEHEE
The contract liabilities represent the contract with EHBEERSERSH R MW
customer incentive (free goods) that is not completed AT EFEFEE(2EE
as at the end of the reporting period. )B4 e
Arising from the adoption of IFRS 15, the Group has PR B AN B BR B S 3R
recorded contract liabilities of RM292,278 as at 31 BIE155%% AEERZ=ZF
December 2017. This amount was previously —+tEFE+ A =+—B&
recognised in revenue according to the previous year BAEXB(E22278F KA
revenue recognition method. LH - ZRSHEAIBE L
FERZBREIERAEK
ﬁ_ﬁ_ o
c. Changes in revenue recognition policy B4

from the adoption of IFRS 15

Type of revenue
Wz Rl

Previous year’s revenue recognition

BEFENKRHERR

c. WEBRARBMKE
B B B 7% 3R 5 2 R 5B
1555 BN EE

Current year’s revenue recognition

FTEENRERR

Coconut related

Revenue was recognised when goods were either

Revenue is recognised at point in time when the

products loaded onto the carrier at port or delivered at the customer obtains control of goods.
customers’ premises which was taken to be the point
in time when the customer has accepted the goods
and the related risks and rewards of ownership
transferred.
B+ MR E m UREREMEHEEONEMARNEEFPEME WRRNEFPEGERERIENEBNER

(KRR BFPEREREHEAENEERR LD
BEBB R RE) TIAER

Revenue was recognised at the point provided that At contract inception, the transaction price is generally
the revenue and costs could be measured reliably, the  allocated to each performance obligation on the basis
recovery of the consideration was probable and there  of relative stand-alone selling prices. When specific
was no continuing managerial involvement with the criteria are met, a discount or variable consideration is
goods. allocated to one or more of the performance
obligation in the contract.

WaRAEhERERTSEEERFRER SARKE RZIERBEENHUBYEES
MREEER R RRERKARHEG BEES IEJEiﬁ E MERBERER  ABTE
2o FAEREIEEENN—ERXSHBHEL
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30. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 30. €3 BENE XS T 4

POL'C'ES (Continued)
30.3 Accounting for revenue (Continued) 0.3 WNEHEFTEE @
c. Changes in revenue recognition policy c. WEBRAMKBERHK
from the adoption of IFRS 15 (Continued) B PR Bt 75 R 2E A 5
1555 2 1Y & B) (@)
Type of revenue Previous year’s revenue recognition Current year’s revenue recognition
Iy % % Bl BEFENKREER FEENRE®RR

Others — Freight and The Group previously recognised revenue as part of The revenue for freight and shipping charges is
shipping charges  sale of goods when the customers accept the goods  recognised over time.
at destination port with the related risk and rewards of
ownership transferred.
Hih —KEREH EXFRENBRERERTEREEENEHE SERERENUEREBER -
& BB AEEEMBRERI/EEER
B —& 4
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31. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 31. 2B E MW BB AR R R
FINANCIAL POSITION
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Note RM RM
Wi BRERSE SRADSE
Assets EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR E 49,144,630 49,144,630
Loan to a subsidiary BT HENBARMER 45,496,000 =
94,640,630 49,144,630
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables E b fE U 5008 1,023,617 746,708
Cash and bank balances He RIBTEH 674,512 47,443,308
1,698,129 48,190,016
Total assets EE#E 96,338,759 97,334,646
Equity and liability EzREaE
Equity e
Share capital B& 2 19 5,941,706 5,941,706
Share premium BB 58,707,916 58,707,916
Reserves i 31,187,479 30,739,758
95,837,101 95,389,380
Current liability RBasE
Other payables H b & 3B 501,658 1,945,266
Total equity and liability EzRaEdE 96,338,759 97,334,646
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IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY AND
ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

The Company is a subsidiary of TYJ Holding Limited, which was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and regarded by the
Directors as the Company’s immediate holding company during the
financial year. The ultimate controlling party of the Group is Mr.
Tang Koon Fook. None of these parties produces financial
statements available for public use.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 13 March 2019, a subsidiary of the Company entered into a
US$12,500,000 secured term loan facility agreement with a
Malaysian licensed bank (“Bank”) for the purpose of financing the
subsidiary’s expansion plan at Bagan Datoh, Perak. The term loan
is repayable within 7 years and bears a floating rate interest based
on London Inter-bank Offered Rates plus an agreed percentage.

The term loan is secured by freehold land and buildings of a
subsidiary, specific debentures by the subsidiary incorporating
specific charge over the plant and machinery to be financed by the
Bank, and a corporate guarantee in favour of the Bank from the
Company. As at 29 March 2019, the Group has drawn down a
total of US$5,000,000 from this term loan.

32.

33.

| Notes to the Financial Statements (continuedq)
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ARalBREBE XS TMAKLH
TYJ Holding Limited 2 K & A 7 » B &
VBEERESRAARANEEE
I AR o AE B &RLIZERT ATang
Koon Fook 5L 4 » 2 & & 75 I & fj & 7]
N RAE R A B 7 R 5k o

HEREHE

R-ZEBE—NAF=ZA+=H ' A2a—
MWB AR E—HERAEFEERT
(M3 R 17 1) 5T 32 /& #£12,500,000 % 7T
LERBRTEHERBEG®E  AAMK
B A 7] 7 2% E Bagan Datoh H) ## o5& 5 &I
REES ZTHEREARTEFRE
B REIRTAZFENBEE D
L2 BF KRB -

ZTHEZRUMB AR KA E#L
HWEEF FRERZBITEENK
ER#EFETHRLENMNBRARIETEE
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